
CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 
CITY COUNCIL 

 
Helene Schneider 
Mayor 

 
Paul Casey 

City Administrator 
 Gregg Hart 

Mayor Pro Tempore 
Randy Rowse 
Ordinance Committee Chair 

Ariel Pierre Calonne 
City Attorney 

Dale Francisco 
Finance Committee Chair 

 

Frank Hotchkiss 
Cathy Murillo 
Bendy White 

City Hall 
735 Anacapa Street 

http://www.SantaBarbaraCA.gov 
 

JULY 21, 2015 
AGENDA 

 
ORDER OF BUSINESS:  Regular meetings of the Finance Committee and the Ordinance Committee begin at 12:30 p.m.  
The regular City Council meeting begins at 2:00 p.m. in the Council Chamber at City Hall.   
 
REPORTS:  Copies of the reports relating to agenda items are available for review in the City Clerk's Office, at the Central 
Library, and http://www.SantaBarbaraCA.gov.  In accordance with state law requirements, this agenda generally contains 
only a brief general description of each item of business to be transacted or discussed at the meeting.  Should you wish 
more detailed information regarding any particular agenda item, you are encouraged to obtain a copy of the Council 
Agenda Report (a "CAR") for that item from either the Clerk's Office, the Reference Desk at the City's Main Library, or 
online at the City's website (http://www.SantaBarbaraCA.gov).  Materials related to an item on this agenda submitted to 
the City Council after distribution of the agenda packet are available for public inspection in the City Clerk’s Office located 
at City Hall, 735 Anacapa Street, Santa Barbara, CA 93101, during normal business hours. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT:  At the beginning of the 2:00 p.m. session of each regular City Council meeting, and at the 
beginning of each special City Council meeting, any member of the public may address the City Council concerning any 
item not on the Council's agenda.  Any person wishing to make such address should first complete and deliver a “Request 
to Speak” form prior to the time that public comment is taken up by the City Council.  Should City Council business 
continue into the evening session of a regular City Council meeting at 6:00 p.m., the City Council will allow any member of 
the public who did not address them during the 2:00 p.m. session to do so.  The total amount of time for public comments 
will be 15 minutes, and no individual speaker may speak for more than 1 minute.  The City Council, upon majority vote, 
may decline to hear a speaker on the grounds that the subject matter is beyond their jurisdiction. 
 
REQUEST TO SPEAK:  A member of the public may address the Finance or Ordinance Committee or City Council 
regarding any scheduled agenda item.  Any person wishing to make such address should first complete and deliver a 
“Request to Speak” form prior to the time that the item is taken up by the Finance or Ordinance Committee or City 
Council. 
 
CONSENT CALENDAR:  The Consent Calendar is comprised of items that will not usually require discussion by the City 
Council.  A Consent Calendar item is open for discussion by the City Council upon request of a Councilmember, City staff, 
or member of the public.  Items on the Consent Calendar may be approved by a single motion.  Should you wish to 
comment on an item listed on the Consent Agenda, after turning in your “Request to Speak” form, you should come 
forward to speak at the time the Council considers the Consent Calendar. 
 
AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT:  If you need auxiliary aids or services or staff assistance to attend or participate 
in this meeting, please contact the City Administrator’s Office at 564-5305.  If possible, notification at least 48 hours prior 
to the meeting will usually enable the City to make reasonable arrangements. Specialized services, such as sign language 
interpretation or documents in Braille, may require additional lead time to arrange. 
 
TELEVISION COVERAGE:  Each regular City Council meeting is broadcast live in English and Spanish on City TV 
Channel 18 and rebroadcast in English on Wednesdays and Thursdays at 7:00 p.m. and Saturdays at 9:00 a.m., and in 
Spanish on Sundays at 4:00 p.m.  Each televised Council meeting is closed captioned for the hearing impaired.  Check 
the City TV program guide at www.citytv18.com for rebroadcasts of Finance and Ordinance Committee meetings, and for 
any changes to the replay schedule. 

http://www.ci.santa-barbara.ca.us/
http://www.santabarbaraca.gov/


 

7/21/2015 Santa Barbara City Council Agenda Page 1 

 
 

ORDER OF BUSINESS 
 
 2:00 p.m. - City Council Meeting Begins 
 5:00 p.m. - Recess 
 6:00 p.m. - City Council Meeting Reconvenes 
 
 

 
REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING – 2:00 P.M. 

 
AFTERNOON SESSION 

 
 

AFTERNOON  SE SSION 

CALL TO ORDER 
 
 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
 
ROLL CALL 
 
 
CEREMONIAL ITEMS 
 
1. Subject::  Proclamation Declaring July 26, 2105 As 25th Anniversary of 

Americans With Disabilities Act  (ADA) (120.04) 
 
 
CHANGES TO THE AGENDA 
 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
 
CONSENT CALENDAR 

2. Subject:  Minutes 

Recommendation:  That Council waive further reading and approve the minutes 
of  the regular meeting of June 30, 2015. 

 

 



 

7/21/2015 Santa Barbara City Council Agenda Page 2 

 
CONSENT CALENDAR (CONT’D) 

3. Subject:  Authorization To Amend Agreement For Legal Services With 
Colantuono, Highsmith & Whatley, PC To Cover The Costs Of The 
California Supreme Court Hearing in Jacks v. City of Santa Barbara (160.01) 

Recommendation:  That Council: 
A. Authorize the City Attorney to amend Legal Services Agreement Number 

25,126 with Colantuono, Highsmith & Whatley, PC to increase the not to 
exceed amount by $62,000 from $45,000 to $107,000 for special counsel 
services for the City's petition for review in the California Supreme Court 
on Rolland Jacks, et al., v. City Of Santa Barbara SBSC Case No. 
1383959 and 

B. Allocate $62,000 from General Fund appropriated reserves to the City 
Attorney's Office Fiscal Year 2016 budget to cover the cost of the legal 
services. 

 

4. Subject:  Grant Assistance For Training And Enforcement At Alcohol 
Serving Establishments (520.04) 

Recommendation:  That Council: 
A. Adopt by reading of title only, A Resolution of the Council of the City of 

Santa Barbara, Authorizing Acceptance of Funding Granted by the 
Department of Alcoholic Beverage Control for the Alcoholic Beverage 
Control Grant Assistance to Local Law Enforcement Agencies Project;  

B. Authorize the Police Chief to execute the grant agreement award; and 
C. Increase appropriations and estimated revenues by $50,000 in the Police 

Department Miscellaneous Grants Fund. 
 

5. Subject: Contract With InterVISTAS Consulting Inc. For Air Service 
Development Services (560.01) 

Recommendation:  That Council authorize the Airport Director to execute a 
contract with InterVISTAS Consulting Inc. for specialized air service development 
support for the Santa Barbara Airport, in an amount not to exceed $56,000. 
  

6. Subject:  Proposed Lease Agreement With The Santa Barbara Sailing Club 
(330.04) 

Recommendation:  That City Council approve a Five-Year Lease Agreement with 
the Santa Barbara Sailing Club for 8,677 square feet of dry boat storage area in 
the Santa Barbara Harbor at a Monthly Rate of $1,600. 

 
 



 

7/21/2015 Santa Barbara City Council Agenda Page 3 

 
CONSENT CALENDAR (CONT’D) 

7. Subject:  Representative Services Agreement With Carpi & Clay, Inc. 
(570.03) 

Recommendation:  That Council authorize the City Administrator to execute a 
three-year Representative Services Agreement between the City of Santa 
Barbara and Carpi & Clay Inc., for liaison and contact services with the United 
States Government, at a rate not-to-exceed $1,750 per month, and in a total 
amount not-to-exceed $63,000 for Fiscal Years 2016, 2017, and 2018. 
  

8. Subject:  Adoption Of The Rental Housing Mediation Board (Former Rental 
Housing Mediation Task Force) Bylaws  (580.03) 

Recommendation:  That Council adopt, by reading of title only, A Resolution of 
the Council of the City of Santa Barbara Approving the Bylaws of the Rental 
Housing Mediation Board (Former Rental Housing Mediation Task Force). 
  

9. Subject:  City Documents Related To Casa Esperanza Homeless 
Center/PATH Statutory Merger  (660.04) 

Recommendation:  That Council: 
A. Approve the assignment of City Agreements 25,144; 25,145; 25,194 and 

City purchase order 387931, to PATH (People Assisting the Homeless);  
B. Approve amending and restating the 1999 Restricted Use Covenant with 

an extended term of an additional 16 years; and  
C. Authorize the Community Development Director to execute such 

agreements and related documents, subject to approval as to form by the 
City Attorney, as necessary. 

 

10. Subject: Airport Master Plan Contract Amendment For Traffic Analysis 
(560.09) 

Recommendation:  That Council approve and authorize the Airport Director to 
execute an Amendment to Contract No. 23,903 with Coffman Associates for 
preparation of additional traffic impact analysis for the Airport Master Plan in an 
amount not to exceed $28,000. 
  

 
 
 
 
 
 



 

7/21/2015 Santa Barbara City Council Agenda Page 4 

 
CONSENT CALENDAR (CONT’D) 

11. Subject:  Sole Source Purchase Order For Emergency Medical Dispatch 
System (520.02) 

Recommendation:  That Council find it in the City's best interest to waive the 
formal bid procedure as authorized by Santa Barbara Municipal Code Section 
4.52.070 (K) and authorize the City General Services Manager to issue a 
purchase order to Priority Medical Corporation in an amount not to exceed 
$62,400 to purchase and install Priority Dispatch Emergency Medical Dispatch 
software for the City Police Department Combined Communication Center. 
  

12. Subject:  Contract For Construction Of North General Aviation Ramp 
Pavement Panel Replacement Project (560.04) 

Recommendation:  That Council: 
A. Award a contract with Lash Construction, Inc., in their low bid amount of 

$357,925 for construction of the North General Aviation Ramp Pavement 
Panel Replacement Project, Bid No. 3790; and authorize the Public Works 
Director to execute the contract and approve expenditures up to $35,792 
to cover any cost increases that may result from contract change orders 
for extra work and differences between estimated bid quantities and actual 
quantities measured for payment; and 

B. Authorize the Public Works Director to execute a contract with Kimley 
Horn in the amount of $54,585 for construction support services, and 
approve expenditures of up to $5,458 for extra services of Kimley Horn 
that may result from necessary changes in the scope of work. 

 

13. Subject:  Contract For Construction Of Airport Lighting And Safety Project 
(560.04) 

Recommendation:  That Council: 
A. Award a contract with Cindy Bales Engineering in their low bid amount of 

$2,143,410 for construction of the Airport Lighting and Safety Project, Bid 
No. 3763; and authorize the Public Works Director to execute the contract 
and approve expenditures up to $214,341 to cover any cost increases that 
may result from contract change orders for extra work and differences 
between estimated bid quantities and actual quantities measured for 
payment;  

B. Authorize the Public Works Director to execute a contract with Mead & 
Hunt in the amount of $296,800 for construction support services, and 
approve expenditures of up to $29,680 for extra services of Mead & Hunt 
that may result from necessary changes in the scope of work; and 

 



 

7/21/2015 Santa Barbara City Council Agenda Page 5 

(Cont’d) 
CONSENT CALENDAR (CONT’D) 
 
13. (Cont’d) 

 
C. Authorize the General Services Manger to issue a purchase order to ADB 

Airfield Solutions in the amount of $10,076.73, and authorize the General 
Services Manager to approve expenditures of up to $2,500 for extra 
services of ADB Airfield Solutions that may result from necessary changes 
in the scope of work. 

 

14. Subject:  Sole Source Agreement For Sanitary Sewer Chemical Root 
Control Services (540.13) 

Recommendation:  That Council authorize the Public Works Director to execute a 
Sole Source Maintenance Agreement with Duke's Root Control in the amount 
$128,577.16 for sanitary sewer chemical root cleaning services, and authorize 
the Public Works Director to approve expenditures of up to $12,857.72 for extra 
services that may result from necessary changes in the scope of work. 
  

15. Subject:  Authorization For Contingency Fee Agreement With Baron & 
Budd, PC Regarding Legal Services Relating To The Refugio Oil Spill 
(160.01) 

Recommendation:  That Council authorize the City Attorney to execute a 
contingency fee agreement with Baron & Budd, PC for legal services relating to 
the May 19, 2015 Refugio oil spill and a contingency fee amounting to 20% of 
any gross recovery. 
  

16. Subject:  Community Promotion Contract With Summer Solstice 
Celebration (180.02) 

Recommendation:  That Council authorize the City Administrator to execute an 
annual community promotion contract with Summer Solstice Celebration, Inc. in 
the amount of $66,000 to support year-round administrative expenses for the 
community event. 
  

17. Subject:  Community Promotion Contract With Visit Santa Barbara (230.02) 

Recommendation:  That Council authorize the City Administrator to execute an 
annual community promotion contract with Visit Santa Barbara to provide 
marketing services that promote Santa Barbara as a tourism destination, in an 
amount of $1,380,000. 



 

7/21/2015 Santa Barbara City Council Agenda Page 6 

 
CONSENT CALENDAR (CONT’D)  

18. Subject:  Set A Date For Public Hearing Regarding Appeal Of The Planning 
Commission Approval For 3425 Sea Ledge Lane (640.07) 

Recommendation:  That Council: 
A. Set the date of August 4, 2015, at 2:00 p.m. for hearing the appeal filed by 

Chris Krach-Bastian, of the Planning Commission's approval of an 
application for the construction of a new 400 square-foot pool and spa with 
associated pool equipment and safety fencing on a 17,490 square-foot lot 
in the Hillside Design District.  This proposal is an amendment to the 
recent Coastal Development Permit dated May 2, 2013, and revised on 
August 8, 2014, under MST2012-00135, which approved 2,508 square 
feet of one- and two-story additions, the demolition of the existing garage, 
and the conversion of 488 square feet of existing habitable floor area into 
a new two-car garage.  The discretionary application required for this 
project is an Amendment to the Coastal Development Permit (CDP2012-
00004) to allow the proposed development in the Appealable Jurisdiction 
of the City's Coastal Zone (SBMC Section 28.44).  The Environmental 
Analyst has determined that the project is exempt from further 
environmental review pursuant to the California Environmental Quality Act 
Guidelines Section 15303, New Construction or Conversion of Small 
Structures, which allows for the construction of accessory structures 
including swimming pools.   

B. Set the date of August 3, 2015, at 1:30 p.m. for a site visit to the property 
located at 3425 Sea Ledge Lane. 

 

19. Subject:  Set A Date For Public Hearing Regarding Appeal Of The Single 
Family Design Board's Final Design Approval For 1912 Mission Ridge Road 
(640.07) 

Recommendation:  That Council:  Set the date of August 11, 2015, at 2:00 p.m. 
for hearing the appeal filed by Trevor Martinson on behalf of Rinaldo Brutoco of 
the Single Family Design Board's Final Design Approval for project owned by 
Craig Morrison and located at 1912 Mission Ridge Road, Assessor's Parcel No.:  
019-083-021, A-1 Zone; Application No. MST2014-00585.  This project proposes 
a 22 square foot first-floor addition and a 530 square foot second-floor addition to 
an existing 2,146 square foot one-story, single-family residence with an attached 
579 square foot garage.  The proposal includes one new uncovered parking 
space, a 194 square foot covered patio at the entry, a 158 square foot second-
story deck, a raised pool and surrounding deck, and interior remodel work.  It 
also includes permitting an "as-built" air conditioning condenser unit, relocation of 
the pool equipment enclosure, and a new driveway and pedestrian gate.  The 
proposed total of 3,251 square feet on a 25,091 square foot lot in the hillside 
Design District is 69% of the guideline maximum floor-to-lot area ratio. 



 

7/21/2015 Santa Barbara City Council Agenda Page 7 

 
CONSENT CALENDAR (CONT’D)  

NOTICES 

20. The City Clerk has on Thursday, July 16, 2015, posted this agenda in the Office 
of the City Clerk, on the City Hall Public Notice Board on the outside balcony of 
City Hall, and on the Internet. 

 
This concludes the Consent Calendar. 
 

CITY COUNCIL ADMINISTRATIVE AND ATTORNEY REPORTS 

PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT 

21. Subject: Reactivation Of The Charles E. Meyer Desalination Facility (540.10) 

Recommendation:  That Council: 
A. Introduce and subsequently adopt, by reading of title only, An Ordinance 

of the Council of the City of Santa Barbara Authorizing the Approval and 
Execution by the City of an Installment Sale Agreement in Connection with 
the Desalination Plant Reactivation Project Drinking Water State 
Revolving Fund Project No. 4210010-005C; 

B. Introduce and subsequently adopt, by reading of title only, An Ordinance 
of the Council of the City of Santa Barbara Authorizing the Approval, 
Subject to Receipt of SRF Loan For Project No. 4210010-005C, and 
Execution by the Public Works Director of a Contract to Design, Build, and 
Operate the Charles E. Meyer Desalination Facility with IDE Americas, 
Inc., in the Amount of $43,437,234 and Approve Expenditures up to 
$1,864,420 to Cover any Cost Increases that may Result From Contract 
Change Orders for Extra Work and Differences Between Estimated Bid 
Quantities and Actual Quantities Measured for \Payment;  

C. Introduce and subsequently adopt, by reading of title only, An Ordinance 
of the Council of the City of Santa Barbara Authorizing the Acceptance 
and Execution by the Public Works Director of a Lease For a Term of 25 
Years with the State Of California State Lands Commission for the 
Continued Use and Maintenance of One 48-inch Diameter Sewer Outfall 
Pipeline and Maintenance of One 42-inch Diameter Non-operational 
Outfall Pipeline and Associated Facilities as Further Described on Exhibit 
"A" Attached Thereto; 

D. Authorize the Public Works Director to pay the $500,000 for work on a 
project to restore the upper Devereaux Slough in accordance with 
National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System permit special conditions; 

E. Approve a purchase order in the amount of $60,000 to Acciona Agua as 
stipend for submitting a proposal in response to the Request for Proposals 
for the  Recommissioning Of The Charles E. Meyer Desalination Facility; 



 

7/21/2015 Santa Barbara City Council Agenda Page 8 

(Cont’d) 

CITY COUNCIL ADMINISTRATIVE AND ATTORNEY REPORTS 
 
21. (Cont’d) 

 
F. Authorize the City Attorney to execute an Amendment to Legal Services 

Agreement No. 24,935 with Latham & Watkins LLP to increase the "Do 
Not Exceed Limit" from $200,000 to $220,000 for legal support related to 
the local Coastal Development Permit; 

G. Authorize the City Attorney to execute a Third Amendment to Legal 
Services Agreement No.24,835 with Hanson Bridgett LLP to increase the 
"Do Not Exceed Limit" from $150,000 to $175,000 for legal services 
related to negotiating and drafting the DBO contract; and 

H. Increase estimated revenues and appropriations in the Water State 
Revolving Fund Loan Fund in the amount of $8,000,000 for the Charles E. 
Meyer Desalination Facility for a total amount of $55,000,000. 

 

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT 

22. Subject:  Response To 2014-2015 Santa Barbara Grand Jury Report On 
Zoning Information Reports  (150.04) 

Recommendation:  That Council: 
A. Receive the Santa Barbara County Grand Jury Report on Zoning 

Information Reports; and 
B. Authorize the Mayor to send a letter forwarding the City's response to the 

Grand Jury Report. 
 

PUBLIC HEARINGS 

23. Subject:  Appeal Of Architectural Board Of Review Project Design Approval 
Of A New Seven-Unit Apartment Building At 1818 Castillo Street  (640.07) 

Recommendation:  That Council 
A. Deny the appeal of Brian Barnwell of the Architectural Board of Review's 

decision to grant Project Design Approval for the proposed new seven-unit 
apartment building; and  

B. Direct Staff to return to Council with Decision and Findings reflecting the 
outcome of the appeal. 

 
 

COUNCIL AND STAFF COMMUNICATIONS 
 
 



 

7/21/2015 Santa Barbara City Council Agenda Page 9 

COUNCILMEMBER COMMITTEE ASSIGNMENT REPORTS 
 
RECESS 
EVENING SESSION  

 
EVENING SESSION 

 
 

RECONVENE 
 
 
ROLL CALL 
 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
 
CITY COUNCIL ADMINISTRATIVE AND ATTORNEY REPORTS 

PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT 

24. Subject:  Direction To Staff On The 2015 Bicycle Master Plan (670.04) 

Recommendation:  That Council receive a presentation on preliminary bicycle 
network improvements developed from the community engagement process and 
provide input and direction to staff regarding the Draft Bicycle Master Plan 
Completion. 
  

ADJOURNMENT 

 
 



1*

23 ANNIVERSARY
OF

AIIEHIL4NS 1111 DISABRI1I[.S 4C[ (ADA)
JITi 26. 2QI.

WNKLA., IJi. .mwith P&qbiliü. kr .jD1J
00?)

PHER!rIS. /h kg,:*Iiw.! e.Iah..&h . .,.:.... ,o.1 :,c,oc
t,,ndow Jot to elatt?ooe of .Jit:t.•e:,dtso.h
.Jtt,tIes atd

W B CT?JCA 5. Th dokvk law afflrts rlr Amcou.,s . tè ,flffihilit et

WHERE.4X The .11)4 hte epaatlwi opportttttt. . AStcI•ictts•,,ith
di.siiitie.t by dist< hot-,iet-.t osd t:kstsitsg pcpt t.>.o.jstJoasip,lull

t <:oSmtn, G i1&, Qd

WI EREA S We et,gta%e the t:oahbw?o,ts asd prom 35 ,lmerica,Lc with
disabilities hse ‘Node I,, t,r ettmmssity:

WHEREAS. the Cii coNtiNues to ttmke thç.at ,seat. .syibmtv in its
pro grants and seviees. facilirie.o aNd public rightS of n: N the athire. and
..ertiaptttiua (1fiL A’ees Aiwy Committee.

rI Efft:.4 S. Os the. 25th .• ‘•tyjf the .4 uh Duat.ui.t Aol
.•ejed;cete <naseives to empoewTing enty th ith,i wuh th

.ioseto,rn isc.tes of eqNal acoec sod essI vp0t

I fl L Itfrl) NE, I ‘IELEl m tee.,! the
Cr is :Wxyo, Of the c:tcyof .sto 4, crCi!y
. O I ! at the of tke .laetk”..s 1th

Disibilines .4n

V W1flE DIEREOE i- .

P*:; S; , Snyc ?jL,_.

HELEE &Ut’IIOER



6/30/2015 Santa Barbara City Council Minutes Page 1 
JUL 21 2015 #2 

 

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 
CITY COUNCIL MINUTES 

 
 

REGULAR MEETING 
June 30, 2015 

COUNCIL CHAMBER, 735 ANACAPA STREET 
 
 
CALL TO ORDER 
 
Mayor Helene Schneider called the meeting to order at 2:00 p.m. (The Ordinance 
Committee met at 12:30 p.m.  The Finance Committee, which ordinarily meets at 12:30 
p.m., did not meet on this date.) 
 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE  
 
Mayor Schneider.  
 
ROLL CALL 
 
Councilmembers present:  Frank Hotchkiss, Cathy Murillo, Bendy White, Mayor 
Schneider. 
Councilmembers absent:  Dale Francisco, Gregg Hart, Randy Rowse. 
Staff present:  City Administrator Paul Casey, City Attorney Ariel Pierre Calonne, 
Deputy City Clerk Susan Tschech. 
 
CHANGES TO THE AGENDA 
 
Item Removed from Agenda 
 
City Administrator Casey recommended that the following item be removed from the 
agenda, to be resubmitted at a later date: 
 
20. Subject:  Memorandum Of Understanding With The Community Action 

Commission For The South Coast Task Force On Youth Gangs (520.04) 

Recommendation:  That Council authorize the City Administrator to execute a 
Memorandum of Understanding with the Community Action Commission related 
to the City's participation in the South Coast Task Force on Youth Gangs. 
 

(Cont’d) 



6/30/2015 Santa Barbara City Council Minutes Page 2 

 
20. (Cont’d) 
 

Motion: 
Councilmembers Hotchkiss/White to continue Item No. 20 to a future date. 

Vote: 
Unanimous voice vote (Absent:  Councilmembers Francisco, Hart, 
Rowse). 
 

Councilmembers Francisco and Hart arrived at the meeting at 2:04 p.m. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
Speakers:  Richard Robinson; Scott Spaulding, Santa Barbara County Association of 
Governments; Phil Walker; Suzanne Peck, County of Santa Barbara Commission for 
Women; Tom Widroe, City Watch. 
 
ITEM REMOVED FROM CONSENT CALENDAR 
 
12. Subject:  Donation From The Santa Barbara Police Foundation For The 

Department Explorer Program (520.04) 

Recommendation:  That Council accept a donation of $2,500 from the Santa 
Barbara Police Foundation for the Department Explorer Program and increase 
appropriations and estimated revenues in the Fiscal Year 2016 Police 
Department Explorer Program by $2,500. 
 
Documents: 

June 30, 2015, report from the Chief of Police. 
 

Speakers: 
Santa Barbara Police Foundation:  Mike McGrew. 
 

Motion: 
Councilmembers Hart/White to accept the donation and approve the 
recommendation. 

Vote: 
Unanimous voice vote (Absent:  Councilmember Rowse). 

 
CONSENT CALENDAR (Item Nos. 1 – 11, 13 – 19, 21 – 25) 
 
The titles of ordinances and resolutions related to Consent Calendar items were read. 
 
Motion: 

Councilmembers Francisco/White to approve the Consent Calendar as 
recommended. 

Vote: 



6/30/2015 Santa Barbara City Council Minutes Page 3 

Unanimous roll call vote (Absent:  Councilmember Rowse). 



6/30/2015 Santa Barbara City Council Minutes Page 4 

1. Subject:  Minutes 

Recommendation:  That Council waive further reading and approve the minutes 
of the adjourned regular meeting of June 15, 2015, and the regular meeting of 
June 16, 2015. 
 
Action:  Approved the recommendation. 

2. Subject:  Adoption Of Ordinance Approving Supervisors Memorandum Of 
Understanding, And Salary Plans For Unrepresented Management (Safety 
and Non-Safety) And City Administrator 

Recommendation:  That Council adopt, by reading of title only: 
A. An Ordinance of the Council of the City of Santa Barbara Amending The 

2012-2015 Memorandum of Understanding between the City of Santa 
Barbara and the Santa Barbara City Supervisory Employees Bargaining 
Unit, Adopted by Ordinance No. 5587 and Previously Amended by 
Ordinance No. 5623, and Extending the Term Through June 30, 2016;  

B. An Ordinance of the Council of the City of Santa Barbara Setting Forth 
and Approving a Salary Plan for Unrepresented Managers and 
Professional Attorneys for Fiscal Year 2016 and Fiscal Year 2017; and  

C. An Ordinance of the Council of the City of Santa Barbara Setting Forth 
and Approving a Salary Plan for the City Administrator for Fiscal Year 
2016 and Fiscal Year 2017. 

 
Action:  Approved the recommendations; Ordinance Nos. 5704 - 5706; 
Agreement No. 24,151.2. 
 

3. Subject:  Introduction Of Ordinance Establishing Speed Limits On Certain 
Portions Of Loma Alta Drive (530.05) 

Recommendation:  That Council introduce and subsequently adopt, by reading of 
title only, An Ordinance of the Council of the City of Santa Barbara Amending 
Chapter 10.60 of the Municipal Code by Amending Section 10.60.015, 
Establishing Prima Facie Speed Limits on Certain Portions of Loma Alta Drive. 
 
Action:  Approved the recommendation (June 30, 2015, report from the Public 
Works Director; proposed ordinance). 

4. Subject:  Adoption Of Resolution Relating To The General Municipal 
Election Of November 3, 2015 (110.03) 

Recommendation:  That Council adopt, by reading of title only, A Resolution of 
the Council of the City of Santa Barbara Calling for the Holding of a Vote-By-Mail 
General Municipal Election to be Held in the City on Tuesday, November 3, 
2015, for the Election of Certain Officers as Required by the Provisions of the 
Charter and That Certain Settlement Agreement Dated March 10, 2015, in 
Banales, et al. v. City Of Santa Barbara. 

(Cont’d) 



6/30/2015 Santa Barbara City Council Minutes Page 5 

4. (Cont’d) 
 
Speakers: 

- Members of the Public:  Robert Burke. 
- Staff:  City Clerk Services Manager Gwen Peirce. 

 
Action:  Approved the recommendation; Resolution No. 15-057 (June 30, 2015, 
report from the Administrative Services Director and City Attorney; proposed 
resolution). 
 

5. Subject:  Salary And Benefit Continuation For City Employees On Active 
Military Duty Leave Of Absence (420.01) 

Recommendation:  That Council adopt, by reading of title only, A Resolution of 
the Council of the City of Santa Barbara Authorizing the Continuance of 
Employee Salary and Benefits During a Military Leave of Absence Effective 
May 18, 2015. 
 
Action:  Approved the recommendation; Resolution No. 15-058 (June 30, 2015, 
report from the Administrative Services Director; proposed resolution). 
 

6. Subject:  May 2015 Investment Report (260.02) 

Recommendation:  That Council accept the May 2015 Investment Report. 
 
Action:  Approved the recommendation (June 30, 2015, report from the Acting 
Assistant City Administrator/Finance Director). 
 

7. Subject:  Grant Agreement With South Coast Community Media Access 
Center (510.04) 

Recommendation:  That Council authorize the Finance Director to execute a 
grant agreement, in a form acceptable to the City Attorney, with the South Coast 
Community Media Access Center for management of the public and educational 
access television channels in an amount of $303,900 plus an amount for public, 
educational and government access (PEG) capital expenditures equal to 50% of 
the actual PEG fees received by the City for Fiscal Year 2016. 
 
Action:  Approved the recommendation; Agreement No. 25,231 (June 30, 2015, 
report from the Acting Assistant City Administrator/Finance Director). 
 

8. Subject:  Assignment Of Lease Agreement No. 23,408 - Ocean Aire 
Electronics (330.04) 

Recommendation:  That Council approve the assignment of Lease Agreement 
No. 23,408 from Doug Chessmore, d.b.a. Ocean Aire Electronics, to Jon Payne, 
for the 339 square-foot retail space located at 125 Harbor Way, Suite #7, at a 
monthly rent of $1,085. 

(Cont’d) 



6/30/2015 Santa Barbara City Council Minutes Page 6 

8. (Cont’d) 
 
Action:  Approved the recommendation; Agreement No. 23,408.1 (June 30, 2015, 
report from the Waterfront Director). 
 

9. Subject:  Renewal Of Agreement With Major League Softball (570.06) 

Recommendation:  That Council authorize the Parks and Recreation Director to 
execute a two-year agreement with Major League Softball, Inc. (MLS), to perform 
adult softball league services at an annual cost of $28,000 in Fiscal Years 2016 
and 2017. 
 
Action:  Approved the recommendation; Agreement No. 25,232 (June 30, 2015, 
report from the Parks and Recreation Director). 
 

10. Subject:  Airline Rates And Charges For Fiscal Year 2016 (560.01) 

Recommendation:  That Council approve and authorize the Airport Director to 
establish Airline rates and charges of $99 per square foot annually for Airline 
Terminal building space, boarding bridge fees of $43 per turn, and landing fees 
of $3.70 per thousand pounds of gross landed weight, effective July 1, 2015, 
through June 30, 2016. 
 
Action:  Approved the recommendation (June 30, 2015, report from the Airport 
Director). 
 

11. Subject:  Consent To Sublease Agreement Between Ampersand Aviation, 
LLC, And Plains All American Pipeline, LP (330.04) 

Recommendation:  That Council approve and authorize the Airport Director to 
execute a Consent to Sublease Agreement between Ampersand Aviation, LLC, a 
California Limited Liability Company, and Plains All American Pipeline, LP, 
whose principal address is 333 Clay Street, Suite 1600, Houston, TX 77002, for 
the use of 30,240 square feet of office space in Building 245 and associated 
parking, at 495 South Fairview Avenue, at the Santa Barbara Airport, effective 
May 29, 2015. 
 
Action:  Approved the recommendation; Agreement No. 25,233 (June 30, 2015, 
report from the Airport Director). 
 

13. Subject:  Contract For Influent Flow Monitoring And Sampling Services At 
The El Estero Wastewater Treatment Plant (540.13) 

Recommendation:  That Council authorize the Public Works Director to execute a 
City Professional Services contract with Utility Systems, Science and Software, 
Inc., in the amount of $129,630 for flow monitoring and sampling services for the 
El Estero Wastewater Treatment Plant, and authorize the Public Works Director 
to approve expenditures of up to $19,444 for extra services that may result from 
necessary changes in the scope of work. 

(Cont’d) 



6/30/2015 Santa Barbara City Council Minutes Page 7 

13. (Cont’d) 
 
Action:  Approved the recommendation; Contract No. 25,234 (June 30, 2015, 
report from the Public Works Director). 
 

14. Subject:  Purchase Order For The California Conservation Corps To Assist 
With The Invasive Plant Removal Program In City Creeks (540.14) 

Recommendation:  That Council: 
A. Find it in the City's best interest to waive the formal bid process per 

Municipal Code Section 4.52.070.L, and authorize the City's General 
Services Manager to issue a Purchase Order to the California 
Conservation Corps, in the amount of $75,000 for Fiscal Years 2015 and 
2016, for labor to assist with the Invasive Plant Removal Program; 

B. Authorize the City's General Services Manager to renew the Purchase 
Order with the California Conservation Corps annually through Fiscal Year 
2018, subject to Council approval of the annual Creeks Restoration and 
Water Quality Improvement Fund budget; and 

C. Authorize the Parks and Recreation Director to enter into a Co-
Sponsorship Agreement with the California Conservation Corps, subject to 
review and approval by the City Attorney as to form and content. 

 
Action:  Approved the recommendations; Agreement No. 25,235 (June 30, 2015, 
report from the Parks and Recreation Director). 
 

15. Subject:  Downtown Santa Barbara Maintenance Agreement For Fiscal Year 
2016 (530.04) 

Recommendation:  That Council authorize the Parks and Recreation Director to 
execute a one-year agreement in the amount of $636,798 with Downtown Santa 
Barbara (DSB) for landscape maintenance, sidewalk cleaning, and general 
maintenance of the 00-1200 blocks of State Street from Victoria Street to Cabrillo 
Boulevard, including the Highway 101 underpass and various cross streets, from 
July 1, 2015, through June 30, 2016. 
 
Action:  Approved the recommendation; Agreement No. 25,236 (June 30, 2015, 
report from the Parks and Recreation Director). 
 

16. Subject:  Request To Amend Affordable Housing Covenant On Property 
Located At 2612 Modoc Road (Sarah House)  (660.04) 

Recommendation:  That Council: 
A. Approve the amendment of the Affordable Housing Covenant on subject 

property to remove the occupancy and rental restrictions on one of the 
property's two-bedroom units; 

 
(Cont’d) 



6/30/2015 Santa Barbara City Council Minutes Page 8 

16. (Cont’d) 
 
B. Approve the use of the unrestricted unit for administrative and private 

meeting space; and  
C. Authorize the Community Development Director to execute, subject to 

approval as to form by the City Attorney, such agreements and related 
City documents as necessary. 

 
Action:  Approved the recommendations (June 30, 2015, report from the 
Community Development Director). 
 

17. Subject:  Contract For Construction Of On-Call Sewer Main Point Repairs -  
Fiscal Year 2016 (540.13) 

Recommendation:  That Council award a contract with Tierra Contracting in their 
low bid amount of $305,488 for construction of the On-Call Sewer Main Point 
Repairs - Fiscal Year 2016, Bid No. 3777, and authorize the Public Works 
Director to execute the contract and approve expenditures up to $61,100 to cover 
any cost increases that may result from contract change orders for extra work 
and differences between estimated bid quantities and actual quantities measured 
for payment. 
 
Action:  Approved the recommendation; Contract No. 25,237 (June 30, 2015, 
report from the Public Works Director). 
 

18. Subject:  Benefit Increase For 1927 Police And Fire Employee Retirement 
Plan (430.08) 

Recommendation:  That Council approve an increase in monthly pension 
benefits paid to the remaining three retirees in the City's 1927 Police and Fire 
Retirement Plan by 10%, which would increase the total monthly benefits paid to 
all retirees by $512, from $5,123 to $5,635. 
 
Action:  Approved the recommendation (June 30, 2015, report from the Acting 
Assistant City Administrator/Finance Director). 
 

19. Subject:  Increase In Construction Change Order Authority For The De La 
Vina At Arrellaga Traffic Signal Project (530.05) 

Recommendation:  That Council: 
A. Authorize an increase in the Public Works Director's Change Order 

Authority to approve expenditures for extra work for the De La Vina At 
Arrellaga Traffic Signal Project, Contract No. 24,993, in the amount of 
$20,803, for a total Project expenditure authority of $112,175;  

 
(Cont’d) 

 



6/30/2015 Santa Barbara City Council Minutes Page 9 

19. (Cont’d) 
 
B. Authorize an appropriation of $46,000 in the Fiscal Year 2015 Streets 

Fund from reserves to fund a transfer to the Streets Grant Fund; and 
C. Authorize an increase in appropriations and estimated revenues by 

$46,000 in the Fiscal Year 2015 Streets Grant Fund to cover the cost of 
the extra work for the De La Vina at Arrellaga Traffic Signal Project, 
funded from a transfer from the Streets Fund. 

 
Action:  Approved the recommendations (June 30, 2015, report from the Public 
Works Director). 
 

21. Subject:  Adoption Of Ordinance Regarding Buellton Library Property 
Lease (570.04) 

Recommendation:  That Council adopt, by reading of title only, An Ordinance of 
the Council of the City of Santa Barbara Authorizing the Library Director to 
Execute a Lease Agreement Between the City of Santa Barbara and the City of 
Buellton for the Buellton Library Property. 
 
Action:  Approved the recommendation; Ordinance No. 5707; Agreement 
No. 25,238. 
 

22. Subject:  Increase Grant Revenues And Appropriations For The Anapamu, 
Cabrillo, De La Guerra, Quinientos, And Gutierrez Street Bridge 
Replacement Projects (Dept. Head: RJB; Other Depts: APC) 

Recommendation:  That Council: 
A. Accept Federal Highway Administration Highway Bridge Program Grant 

funding in the total amount of $225,000 for the Anapamu Street Bridge 
Replacement Project;  

B. Authorize the increase of estimated revenues and appropriations in the 
Fiscal Year 2016 Streets Grant Fund by $225,000 for the Anapamu Street 
Bridge Replacement Project;  

C. Accept Federal Highway Administration Highway Bridge Program Grant 
funding in the total amount of $354,120 for the Cabrillo Street Bridge 
Replacement Project;  

D. Authorize the increase of estimated revenues and appropriations in the 
Fiscal Year 2016 Streets Grant Fund by $354,120 for the Cabrillo Street 
Bridge Replacement Project;  

E. Accept Federal Highway Administration Highway Bridge Program Grant 
funding in the total amount of $66,398 for the De La Guerra Street Bridge 
Replacement Project;  

F. Authorize the increase of estimated revenues and appropriations in the 
Fiscal Year 2016 Streets Grant Fund by $66,398 for the De La Guerra 
Street Bridge Replacement Project;  

(Cont’d) 



6/30/2015 Santa Barbara City Council Minutes Page 10 

22. (Cont’d) 
 
G. Accept Federal Highway Administration Highway Bridge Program Grant 

funding in the total amount of $225,000 for the Quinientos Street Bridge 
Replacement Project;  

H. Authorize the increase of estimated revenues and appropriations in the 
Fiscal Year 2016 Streets Grant Fund by $225,000 for the Quinientos 
Street Bridge Replacement Project;  

I. Authorize an appropriation of $25,000 from Streets Fund Reserves and 
transfer to the Streets Grant Fund to cover a portion of the ongoing City 
share associated with the design phase of the Quinientos Street Bridge 
Replacement Project; and 

J. Authorize an appropriation of $25,000 from Streets Fund Reserves and 
transfer to the Streets Grant Fund to cover a portion of the ongoing City 
share associated with the design phase of the Gutierrez Street Bridge 
Replacement Project. 

K. Authorize an increase to appropriations and estimated revenues of 
$50,000 in the Fiscal Year 2016 Streets Grant Fund for the Quinientos 
Street Bridge Replacement Project ($25,000) and Gutierrez Street Bridge 
Replacement Project ($25,000) funded from a transfer of reserves from 
the Streets Fund. 

 
Speakers: 

Staff:  Principal Engineer Brian D’Amour. 
 

Action:  Approved the recommendations (June 30, 2015, report from the Public 
Works Director). 
 

23. Subject:  Set A Date For Public Hearing Regarding Appeal Of Architectural 
Board Of Review Approval For 1818 Castillo Street (Dept. Head:  GB) 

Recommendation:  That Council: 
A. Set the date of July 21, 2015, for hearing the appeal filed by Brian 

Barnwell, on behalf of adjacent neighbors, of the Architectural Board of 
Review approval of an application for property owned by DB Partners, 
LLC, and located at 1818 Castillo Street, Assessor's Parcel No. 027-012-
023, R-4 Hotel-Motel-Multiple Residence Zone, General Plan Designation: 
Residential (15-27 dwelling units/acre).  The project proposes to demolish 
an existing single-family home, studio apartment, detached garage, and 
two sheds, and construct a three-story, seven-unit residential apartment 
building under the Average Unit Size Density Incentive Program.  The 
12,656 square-foot parcel is designated as Medium High density with a 
maximum average density project proposed at 27 dwelling units/acre 
which allows 945 square feet per unit.  The average unit size for this 
project will be 938 square feet; and 

(Cont’d) 
 



6/30/2015 Santa Barbara City Council Minutes Page 11 

23. (Cont’d) 
 
B. Set the date of July 20, 2015, for a site visit to the property located at 

1818 Castillo Street. 
 
Action:  Approved the recommendations (Appeal letter received June 2, 2015). 

 
NOTICES 

24. The City Clerk has on Thursday, June 25, 2015, posted this agenda in the Office 
of the City Clerk, on the City Hall Public Notice Board on the outside balcony of 
City Hall, and on the Internet. 

25. Cancellation of the regular City Council meeting of July 7, 2015. 
 

This concluded the Consent Calendar. 
 
REPORT FROM THE ORDINANCE COMMITTEE 
 
Ordinance Committee Member Frank Hotchkiss reported that the Committee met to 
review proposed improvements to the management and permitting of news racks.  The 
Committee referred the proposed ordinance making these changes back to staff of the 
City Attorney’s Office and Public Works Department for additional discussion with local 
publishers. 
 
SUCCESSOR AGENCY REPORTS 

26. Subject:  Status Report And Contract Services For The Cabrillo Pavilion 
And Bathhouse Renovation Project (570.07) 

Recommendation:  That the Successor Agency: 
A. Receive a status report on the Cabrillo Pavilion and Bathhouse 

Renovation Project; and  
B. Authorize the Executive Director to execute a contract between the 

Successor Agency and FGI Farnsworth Group, Inc., in the amount of 
$47,300 to provide LEED commissioning services for the above project, 
and authorize the Executive Director to approve extra work, as necessary, 
in an amount not to exceed $4,730. 

 
Documents: 

- June 30, 2015, report from the Parks and Recreation Director. 
- PowerPoint presentation prepared and made by Staff. 

 
Speakers: 

Staff:  Assistant Parks and Recreation Director Jill Zachary. 
 

(Cont’d) 



6/30/2015 Santa Barbara City Council Minutes Page 12 

26. (Cont’d) 
 

Motion: 
Successor Agency members White/Hotchkiss to approve 
recommendation B; Contract No. 25,239. 

Vote: 
Unanimous voice vote (Absent:  Successor Agency member Rowse). 
 

CITY COUNCIL ADMINISTRATIVE AND ATTORNEY REPORTS 

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT 

27. Subject:  Loan To Grace Village Apartments, L.P., For A New Affordable 
Housing Project At 3869 State Street (Grace Village Apartments) (660.04) 

Recommendation:  That Council: 
A. Approve a request from the Housing Authority of the City of Santa Barbara 

(Housing Authority) for a $1,000,000 loan to Grace Village Apartments, 
L.P., to support the development and construction of a new low income 
senior rental project located at 3869 State Street;  

B. Authorize the appropriation of $500,000 from the Socio-Economic 
Mitigation Program (SEMP) fund and $500,000 from the Housing 
Successor Entity fund for the requested loan;  

C. Authorize the appropriation of $500,000 in the Successor Agency Housing 
Fund from reserves to fund a portion of the requested loan;  

D. Authorize the Community Development Director to execute such 
agreements and related documents, subject to approval as to form by the 
City Attorney, as necessary; and 

E. Consider a recommendation from the Finance Committee to transfer 
$528,797 of unrestricted monies in the Revolving Loan Fund, which 
originated from the General Fund, back to the General Fund. 

 
Documents: 

- June 30, 2015, report from the Community Development Director. 
- PowerPoint presentation prepared and made by Staff. 

 
Speakers: 

- Staff:  Project Planner David Rowell, City Administrator Paul Casey. 
- Members of the Public:  Tom Widroe, City Watch. 
- Housing Authority of the City of Santa Barbara:  Deputy Executive Director 

Skip Szymanski. 
 

Motion: 
Councilmembers Francisco/Hotchkiss to approve the recommendations, 
specifying that the transfer of $528,797 to the General Fund 
(recommendation E) be dedicated to General Fund Reserves; Agreement 
No. 25,240. 

Vote: 
Unanimous voice vote (Absent:  Councilmember Rowse). 



6/30/2015 Santa Barbara City Council Minutes Page 13 

PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT 

28. Subject:  Increase In Construction Change Order Authority For The 
Recycled Water Treatment Plant Replacement Project (540.13) 

Recommendation:  That Council: 
A. Approve a transfer of $1,342,271.95 from Water Fund Operating Fund 

Reserves to the Water Capital Fund; 
B. Increase appropriations and estimated revenues by $1,342,271.95 in the 

Water Capital Fund for the Recyled Water Treatment Plant Replacement 
Project; 

C. Authorize an increase in the Public Works Director's Change Order 
Authority to approve expenditures for extra work for the Recycled Water 
Treatment Plant Replacement Project, Contract No. 21400193 with 
Schock Contracting Corporation, in the amount of $879,000, for a total 
Project change order expenditure authority of $1,758,000;  

D. Authorize an increase in the Public Works Director's Change Order 
Authority to approve expenditures for extra work for the Recycled Water 
Treatment Plant Replacement Project, Contract No. 24,826, for 
construction management services with MNS Engineers in the amount of 
$386,326.00, for a total Project change order expenditure authority of 
$456,941.40; and 

E. Authorize an increase in the Public Works Director's Change Order 
Authority to approve expenditures for extra work for the Recycled Water 
Treatment Plant Replacement Project, Contract No. 24,828, for 
environmental and support services with Dudek in the amount of 
$14,945.95, for a total Project change order expenditure authority of 
$20,976.95. 

 
Document: 

June 30, 2015, report from the Public Works Director. 
 

Speakers: 
Staff:  Principal Civil Engineer Linda Sumansky, City Attorney Ariel 
Calonne, Public Works Director Rebecca Bjork. 
 

Motion: 
Councilmembers Murillo/Hart to approve the recommendations. 

Vote: 
Unanimous voice vote (Absent:  Councilmember Rowse). 
 

COUNCILMEMBER COMMITTEE ASSIGNMENT REPORTS 
 
Information: 
 - Councilmember Murillo reported on her attendance at a meeting of the South 

Coast Task Force on Youth Gangs, during which a new initiative called “My 
Brother’s Keeper” was presented. 

(Cont’d) 



6/30/2015 Santa Barbara City Council Minutes Page 14 

Information (Cont’d): 
 - Councilmember White mentioned that new water rates affecting high water users 

will go into effect on July 1, and he asked those users to make efforts to 
conserve. 

 - Mayor Schneider spoke about her attendance at an event to mark the 100th 
anniversary of the Samarkand Retirement Community, which included the 
unveiling of an exhibit tracing the history of the community. 

 
RECESS 
 
The Mayor recessed the meeting at 3:08 p.m. in order for the Council to reconvene in 
closed session for Agenda Item No. 29.  She stated that no reportable action is 
anticipated. 
 
CLOSED SESSIONS 

29. Subject:  Conference With City Attorney - Pending Litigation (160.03) 

Recommendation:  That Council hold a closed session to consider pending 
litigation pursuant to subsection (d)(1) of section 54956.9 of the Government 
Code and take appropriate action as needed.  The pending litigation is Justin 
Williams v. City of Santa Barbara; WCAB Case numbers ADJ8592814, 
ADJ8729223 and ADJ9464749. 
 Scheduling:  Duration, 20 minutes; anytime 
 Report:  None anticipated 
 
Documents: 

June 30, 2015, report from the Acting Assistant City Administrator/Finance 
Director. 
 

Time: 
3:10 p.m. – 3:13 p.m.  Councilmember Rowse was absent. 
 

No report made. 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
Mayor Schneider adjourned the meeting at 3:13 p.m. 
 
 
SANTA BARBARA CITY COUNCIL SANTA BARBARA 
  CITY CLERK'S OFFICE 
 
 
 
  ATTEST:       
HELENE SCHNEIDER  SUSAN TSCHECH, CMC 
MAYOR  DEPUTY CITY CLERK  



Agenda Item No.  3 
File Code No.  160.01 

 

 

 

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 
 
 COUNCIL AGENDA REPORT 

 
 
 

AGENDA DATE: July 21, 2015 
 
TO: Mayor and Councilmembers 
 
FROM: City Attorney’s Office 
 
SUBJECT: Authorization To Amend Agreement For Legal Services With 

Colantuono, Highsmith & Whatley, PC To Cover The Costs Of The 
California Supreme Court Hearing in Jacks v. City of Santa Barbara 

 
 
RECOMMENDATION: That Council:  
 
A. Authorize the City Attorney to amend Legal Services Agreement Number 25,126 

with Colantuono, Highsmith & Whatley, PC to increase the not to exceed amount by 
$62,000 from $45,000 to $107,000 for special counsel services for the City’s petition 
for review in the California Supreme Court on Rolland Jacks, et al., v. City Of Santa 
Barbara SBSC Case No. 1383959; and 

B. Allocate $62,000 from General Fund appropriated reserves to the City Attorney’s 
Office Fiscal Year 2016 budget to cover the cost of the legal services. 

 
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
The California Supreme Court recently granted the City’s petition for review in the Jacks 
case. Our special counsel estimates that the costs of briefing and argument in the 
Supreme Court will be approximately $62,000.  We are requesting Council authorization 
for these expenses.   
 
The funding will come from General Fund appropriated reserves. 
 
 
PREPARED BY: Ariel Pierre Calonne, City Attorney 
 
SUBMITTED BY: Ariel Pierre Calonne, City Attorney 
 
APPROVED BY: City Administrator's Office 
 



Agenda Item No.  4 
File Code No.  520.04 

 

 

 

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 
 
 COUNCIL AGENDA REPORT 

 
 

AGENDA DATE: July 21, 2015 
 
TO: Mayor and Councilmembers 
 
FROM: Patrol Division, Police Department 
 
SUBJECT: Grant Assistance For Training and Enforcement at Alcohol Serving 

Establishments 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  That Council: 
 
A. Adopt by reading of title only, A Resolution of the Council of the City of Santa 

Barbara Authorizing Acceptance of Funding Granted by the Department of 
Alcoholic Beverage Control for the Alcoholic Beverage Control Grant Assistance to 
Local Law Enforcement Agencies Project;  

B. Authorize the Police Chief to execute the grant agreement award; and 
C. Increase appropriations and estimated revenues by $50,000 in the Police 

Department Miscellaneous Grants Fund. 
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
The Department of Alcoholic Beverage Control (ABC) issues grant funding under their 
Alcoholic Beverage Control Grant Assistance to Local Law Enforcement Agencies 
Project.  Grant funds issued to the Police Department will be used to carry on training 
for alcohol servers and vendors by conducting a LEADS class put on by the ABC.  In 
addition, the Police Department will provide information to the community on the 
reporting of alcohol-related offenses through the media and establish procedures for 
better identifying and mitigating law enforcement problems at and near alcohol-vending 
premises.   
 
Furthermore, through the use of this grant money, the Police Department will employ a 
full spectrum of State, County, City and local community resources to conduct 
undercover operations at ABC licensed premises.  This will include periodic special 
alcohol enforcement actions, such as Trap-Door operations and Shoulder-Tap 
programs.  The Police Department will be able to expand on the enforcement of 
California Business and Professions Code violations frequently occurring at alcohol 
vending establishments, which include offenses such as minors purchasing alcohol or 
adults who purchase alcohol for minors.   



Council Agenda Report 
Grant Assistance For Training and Enforcement at Alcohol Serving Establishments 
July 21, 2015 
Page 2 

 

These grant-funded projects will be supervised by Sergeant Brown and implemented by 
the Nightlife Enforcement Team.  An information system will be used, which will support 
a multi-task, multi-agency approach to training, enforcement and mitigation, working 
with a broad range of business and community organizations.  The goals are to promote 
self-policing by alcohol serving establishments, increase community involvement in 
responsible alcohol use, and to reduce the number of alcohol-related incidents involving 
minors linked with ABC licensees.   
 
The Santa Barbara Police Department is nationally recognized as a leader in 
Community Oriented Problem Solving and Community Oriented Policing, and has 
applied these skills to its Nightlife Enforcement Team presently focused on a large and 
concentrated number of ABC licensees in its central business district.   
 
 
PREPARED BY: Lorenzo Duarte, Police Lieutenant 
 
SUBMITTED BY: Camerino Sanchez, Chief of Police 
 
APPROVED BY:  City Administrator's Office 
 



RESOLUTION NO. __________ 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
SANTA BARBARA AUTHORIZING ACCEPTANCE OF 
FUNDING GRANTED BY THE DEPARTMENT OF 
ALCOHOLIC BEVERAGE CONTROL FOR THE 
ALCOHOLIC BEVERAGE CONTROL GRANT ASSISTANCE 
TO LOCAL LAW ENFORCEMENT AGENCIES PROJECT. 

 
WHEREAS, the Santa Barbara Police Department desires to undertake a certain project 
designated Alcoholic Beverage Control Grant Assistance to Local Law Enforcement 
Agencies Project to be funded by  funds made available through the Grant Assistance 
Program to Local Law Enforcement Agencies Project (hereafter referred to as GAP) 
administered by the Department of Alcoholic Beverage Control (hereafter referred to as 
ABC). 
 
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SANTA 
BARBARA THATAS FOLLOWS: 
 
SECTION 1. The Police Chief of the City of Santa Barbara is authorized to submit the 
GAP Project proposal to ABC and is authorized to sign and approve on behalf of the 
City Council of the City of Santa Barbara the grant award agreement, in a form 
approved by the City Attorney, including any extensions of amendments thereof. 
 
SECTION 2. This grant is funded by the ABC GAP project and no matching funds are 
required from the City of Santa Barbara per the funding and regulations of the ABC. 
 
SECTION 3. The City agrees to indemnify, defend, and save harmless the State, its 
officers, agents and employees from any and all claims to any person, firm or 
corporation furnishing work services, materials, or supplies in connection with the 
performance of this contract, and from any and all claims and losses occurring or 
resulting to any person, firm, or corporation who may be injured or damaged by the City 
of Santa Barbara in the performance of this grant. 
 
SECTION 4. This consideration to be paid to the City, as provided by the grant, shall be 
in compensation for the City’s expenses incurred in the performance hereof, including 
travel and per diem. 
 
SECTION 5. The City Council hereby approves and authorizes the City Administrator 
Police Chief to execute the grant agreement award of $50,000 for the GAP Project 
through June 30, 2016. 



Agenda Item No.  5 
 

File Code No.  560.01 
 

 

 

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 
 
 COUNCIL AGENDA REPORT 

 
 
 

AGENDA DATE: July 21, 2015 
 
TO: Mayor and Councilmembers 
 
FROM: Airport Administration, Airport Department 
 
SUBJECT: Contract With InterVISTAS Consulting Inc. For Air Service 
 Development Services 
 
RECOMMENDATION:   
 
That Council authorize the Airport Director to execute a contract with InterVISTAS 
Consulting Inc. for specialized air service development support for the Santa Barbara 
Airport, in an amount not to exceed $56,000. 
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
Background 
 
Since 1979 the Airport has contracted with three firms for specialized air carrier 
development services to assist the Airport in meeting its strategic goals of maintaining 
existing service and attracting new domestic service.   
 
In 2013 Airport staff solicited Statements of Qualifications (SOQ) from experienced firms 
providing air service development consulting services. The proposals were evaluated 
based on the experience and qualifications of the consultant’s team, the approach to the 
project scope of services, the project manager’s experience and references. 
 
As a result of the interviews and reference check, InterVISTAS was selected to continue 
providing air service consulting services for the Department. The project manager, Chris 
Warren, has 17 years of airline related experience in commercial and financial roles, 
including American Airlines, Continental Airlines, and Express Jet Airlines. He works 
closely with airline corporate executives and keeps pace with trends in the airline 
industry. Additionally, InterVISTAS employs 80 people from a wide range of fields, 
including airports, airlines, government, academia, and tourism. 
 
Contract Scope of Services 
 
InterVISTAS will work with the Airport to develop and present an effective, 
comprehensive passenger development program to maintain and improve domestic air 
service, including: 
 



Council Agenda Report 
Contract With InteVISTAS Consulting Inc. For Air Service Development Services 
July 21, 2015 
Page 2 

 

• Evaluating specific passenger routes and services at SBA and recommending 
strategic action to address deficiencies and competitive opportunities to the 
airlines. 

• Providing in-depth analysis of the Santa Barbara market and preparing a detailed 
plan to reach local, target markets to stimulate outbound travel from Santa 
Barbara. 

• Assisting the Airport in scheduling and facilitating meetings at the highest levels 
with domestic air carriers regarding potential new and/or improved air service 
routes, including developing detailed, written proposals and professional 
presentations. 

• Preparing additional market analyses and conducting research, as needed, 
related to airport business and operational issues. 

• Assist the Airport with the preparation of a U.S. Department of Transportation, 
Small Community Air Service Grant to provide an incentive for new air service.  

 
 

BUDGET/FINANCIAL INFORMATION: 
 
This contract is at the direction of the Airport Director and is charged on a time and 
materials basis. Funding for the contract is included in the Airport Department’s Fiscal 
Year 2016 operating budget. 
 
 
PREPARED BY: Hazel Johns, Airport Director 
 
SUBMITTED BY: Hazel Johns, Airport Director 
 
APPROVED BY:  City Administrator's Office 



Agenda Item No.  6 
File Code No.  330.04 

 

 

 

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 
 
 COUNCIL AGENDA REPORT 

 
 
 

AGENDA DATE: July 21, 2015 
 
TO: Mayor and Councilmembers 
 
FROM: Business Services Division, Waterfront Department 
 
SUBJECT: Proposed Lease Agreement With The Santa Barbara Sailing Club 
 
RECOMMENDATION:   
 
That City Council Approve a Five-Year Lease Agreement with the Santa Barbara Sailing 
Club for 8,677 square feet of dry boat storage area in the Santa Barbara Harbor at a 
Monthly Rate of $1,600. 
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
The Santa Barbara Sailing Club has maintained dry boat storage space in the Santa 
Barbara Harbor for many years.  The Club itself was established in 1959 as the Santa 
Barbara Sailing Association and in 1969, was incorporated and officially changed their 
name to the Santa Barbara Sailing Club. The 8,677 square feet of leased storage space 
(see Attachment) can accommodate up to approximately 20 sail boats that range in size 
from ten feet to 27-feet.  
 
The basic terms of the proposed lease agreement are summarized as follows: 

• Term: Five-year term. 
• Base Rent: The lease rate will be $1,600 at lease commencement and will increase 

by 2.5% the first two years or by the Consumer Price Index, whichever is the greater 
of the two numbers.  In the final two years of the lease term the rate will increase by 
3% or by the Consumer Price Index, whichever is the greater of the two numbers. 
The lease structure is as follows:  

 
Initial Rate: $1,600 per month 
April 1, 2016:   $1,640 - a 2.5% increase or by CPI, whichever is greater 
April 1, 2017:  $1,681 - a 2.5% increase or by CPI, whichever is greater 
April 1, 2018: $1,731 - a 3.0% increase or by CPI, whichever is greater 
April 1, 2019: $1,783 - a 3.0% increase or by CPI, whichever is greater 

 
• Site: Lease site shall be an 8,677 square feet of dry boat storage area in the Santa 

Barbara Harbor. 



Council Agenda Report 
Proposed Lease Agreement With The Santa Barbara Sailing Club 
July 21, 2015 
Page 2 

 

• Insurance: Lessee shall maintain a general liability insurance policy in the amount 
of $2,000,000. 

 
All other terms and conditions are similar to the previous lease agreement. For 
example, the proposed agreement includes a clause that will permit the City to relocate 
the dry boat storage area to a comparable location in the harbor, provided that such 
relocation shall be at Landlord’s expense and the new site shall be of similar size and 
configuration necessary for its intended uses. However, staff does not foresee a 
situation that would require relocation of the space. 
 
The Santa Barbara Sailing Club has been prompt with payments and has successfully 
operated at the current dry boat storage yard for many years. The tenant is in good 
standing with the Department and holds many successful community sailing events 
each year. 
 
The Harbor Commission recommended that the City Council approve the lease 
agreement at their May 21, 2015, meeting. A copy of the lease is available for review at 
the Waterfront Administration office and the City Clerk’s Office. 
 
ATTACHMENT:  Santa Barbara Sailing Club Proposed Lease Area 
 
PREPARED BY: Brian J. Bosse, Waterfront Business Manager 
 
SUBMITTED BY: Scott Riedman, Waterfront Director 
 
APPROVED BY:  City Administrator's Office 





Agenda Item No.  7 
File Code No.  570.03 

 

 

 

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 
 
 COUNCIL AGENDA REPORT 

 
 
 

AGENDA DATE: July 21, 2015 
 
TO: Mayor and Councilmembers 
 
FROM: Business Services Division, Waterfront Department 
 
SUBJECT: Representative Services Agreement With Carpi & Clay, Inc. 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
That Council authorize the City Administrator to execute a three-year Representative 
Services Agreement between the City of Santa Barbara and Carpi & Clay Inc., for liaison 
and contact services with the United States Government, at a rate not-to-exceed $1,750 
per month, and in a total amount not-to-exceed $63,000 for Fiscal Years 2016, 2017 and 
2018. 
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
The Waterfront Department retained Carpi & Clay beginning in Fiscal Year 1990 to assist 
in dealing with significant issues regarding federal assistance in the Waterfront, including 
the successful return of the Naval Reserve Center to the City and continued maintenance 
dredging of the Harbor by the U.S. Army Corps of Engineers. Funding for ongoing 
maintenance dredging of the Santa Barbara Harbor continues in large part due to the 
coordination and assistance of Carpi & Clay. The approved funding from U.S. Army Corps 
of Engineers for the coming fiscal year is approximately $2.2M and is essential to keep the 
Harbor fully operational. 
 
Although Waterfront Department staff continues to work directly with federal officials and 
the California Marine Affairs and Navigation Conference, the retention of Carpi & Clay 
provides a more direct and continuous approach to our federal representatives in 
Washington, D.C. and has proven successful since 1990. 
 
A copy of the agreement is available for public review in the City Clerk’s Office. 
 
PREPARED BY: Brian J. Bosse, Waterfront Business Manager 
 
SUBMITTED BY: Scott Riedman, Waterfront Department 
 
APPROVED BY:  City Administrator's Office 
 



Agenda Item No.  8 
File Code No.  580.03 

 

 

 

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 
 
 COUNCIL AGENDA REPORT 

 
 
 

AGENDA DATE: July 21, 2015 
 
TO: Mayor and Councilmembers 
 
FROM: Administration, Housing and Human Services, Community 

Development 
 
SUBJECT: Adoption Of The Rental Housing Mediation Board 

(Former Rental Housing Mediation Task Force) Bylaws 
 
RECOMMENDATION:   
 
That Council adopt, by reading of title only, A Resolution of the Council of the City of Santa 
Barbara Approving the Bylaws of the Rental Housing Mediation Board (Former Rental 
Housing Mediation Task Force). 
 
BACKGROUND: 
 
In 1975, the Rental Housing Mediation Task Force (Task Force) began as a grassroots 
effort to provide a forum for landlords and tenants to resolve rental housing disputes out 
of court.  It was formally established by the City of Santa Barbara Community Relations 
Commission in February 1976.   Financial support was made available through general 
revenue sharing funds appropriated by the City Council to support human and social 
service agencies.  The City also contributed office space and a telephone at the 
Franklin Neighborhood Center. The Task Force was initially staffed only by volunteer 
mediators, but in 1978-79 the City began using its Community Development Block 
Grant administrative funds to pay for two full-time Rental Housing Mediation (Program) 
employees.  Due to a significant reduction in Community Development Block Grant 
administrative funds, since July 2012, the City has provided general funds to support 
Program services to City of Santa Barbara residents. Jurisdictions receiving Program 
and/or Task Force services for their residents contract with the City for these services.  
Additional financial support has been received from City Human Service grants and 
from other sources.   
 
The Program currently functions under the City Community Development Department, 
Administration, Housing and Human Services Division. Program goals and objectives 
are not amended by the proposed bylaws.  
 
 
 



Council Agenda Report 
Adoption Of The Rental Housing Mediation Board (Former Rental Housing Mediation 
Task Force) Bylaws  
 July 21, 2015 
Page 2 

 

 
The Task Force currently functions as one of the City’s volunteer boards with support 
from Program staff.  The Task Force appointed an Ad Hoc Committee to update and 
amend its bylaws.  Upon City Council approval of the amended bylaws, the name of the 
Task Force will be changed to the Rental Housing Mediation Board (Board).  The Board 
will continue to receive Program staff support. Please note that a version of the bylaws 
showing changes made has been placed in the Mayor and Council reading file and is 
available for review at the City Clerk’s office.     
 
 
PREPARED BY: Deirdre Randolph, Community Development Programs 

Supervisor 
 
SUBMITTED BY: George Buell, Community Development Director 
 
APPROVED BY:  City Administrator's Office 
 



1 
 

 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 15 - ___ 
 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SANTA 
BARBARA APPROVING THE BYLAWS OF THE RENTAL 
HOUSING MEDIATION BOARD (FORMER RENTAL 
HOUSING MEDIATION TASK FORCE) 

 
 
WHEREAS, in 1975 there was a grassroots effort to provide a forum for landlords and 
tenants to resolve rental housing disputes out of court; 
 
WHEREAS, the grassroots effort led to the City of Santa Barbara  Community Relations 
Commission to establish the Rental Housing Mediation Task Force (Task Force) in 
February 1976;  
 
WHEREAS, the Task Force was initially staffed by volunteer mediators, but in 1978-79 
the City began using its Community Development Block Grant administrative funds to 
pay for Rental Housing Mediation Task Force (RHMTF) Program staff; 
 
WHEREAS, jurisdictions receiving Rental Housing Mediation services for their residents 
contract with the City for these services;  
 
WHEREAS, the RHMTF Program has received additional support from City Human 
Services funds and from other sources; 
 
WHEREAS, due to a significant reduction in Community Development Block Grant 
administrative funds, since July 2012, the RHMTF program has received City general 
funds to support staff services to City of Santa Barbara residents; 
 
WHEREAS, the RHMTF Program currently functions under the City Community 
Development Department, Administration, Housing and Human Services Division;  
 
WHEREAS, the Rental Housing Mediation Task Force currently functions as one of the 
City Council-appointed volunteer boards with support from RHMTF Program staff; and 
 
WHEREAS, as one effect of this Resolution amending the By Laws, the Task Force has 
proposed to change its name from the Rental Housing Mediation Task Force to the 
Rental Housing Mediation Board. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SANTA 
BARBARA, THAT: 
 
 



2 
 

Section I. Purpose 
 
 The purpose of the Rental Housing Mediation Board is to provide mediation 
services to landlords, tenants, roommates, and neighbors in an effort to resolve 
disputes relating to rental housing. 
 
Section II. Membership 
 
 A. Number of Members 
 
 The Rental Housing Mediation Board (Board) will consist of fifteen (15) member-
mediators (variously referred to as Members or Mediators) appointed by the City 
Council of the City of Santa Barbara.  

 
 B. Board Member Categories: 

 
At the time of appointment, an appointee to the Board shall meet the definition of 

at least one of the three categories below: 
 
Tenant:  A Tenant Mediator must rent or lease his or her residence. A 

    Tenant Mediator may not own residential property. 
 
Homeowner:   A Homeowner Mediator must own his or her residence.  A  

    Homeowner Mediator may not own any other residential  
    property.  

 
Landlord:   A Landlord Mediator must own or manage residential   

    properties for consideration or compensation, whether single 
    or multiple units. 

 
To the greatest extent possible, Board membership will be equally representative 

of the three (3) mediator categories.  However, once appointed, a member is eligible to 
remain on the Board for his or her appointed term, even if the member has a change in 
his or her category.  The majority of members must be residents of the City of Santa 
Barbara. Non-City resident members must reside in a jurisdiction which contracts with 
the Rental Housing Mediation Program for services.  

 
C. Term of Membership 

 
 A term of office for a Mediator is four (4) years.  The terms are staggered so that 
all terms do not expire in any one year.  Members are appointed in accordance with the 
Guidelines for City of Santa Barbara Advisory Groups approved by resolution of the City 
Council. 
 



3 
 

D. Grounds for Removal 
 

 Members of the Board serve at the pleasure of the City Council of the City of 
Santa Barbara. 

 
 The occurrence of two (2) or more unexcused absences from meetings or 
mediation sessions within a period of one (1) calendar year may be reason for the 
Board to recommend that the City Council remove a mediator from the Board. 

 
E. Recommendation for Removal 

 
 A recommendation to the Santa Barbara City Council for the removal of a 
Mediator from the Board must be made by a two-thirds (2/3) majority vote of the Board 
members present at the meeting.  
 
Section III. Officers 
 
 Board officers shall consist of the following: 

 
1. A Chair  
2. A Vice Chair  
3. A Secretary  
 

 A meeting of the Board shall be held between October and December of each 
year for the purpose of electing officers for a one year term. The term of office shall 
commence on January 1, following the election. Interim vacancies may be filled at any 
regular or special meeting of the Board. The removal of an Officer must be approved by 
a two-thirds (2/3) majority vote of the Board members present at the meeting.  

 
Section IV. Duties of Officers 
 
 The Chair of the Board shall perform the following tasks: 
 
  1. Preside at all meetings.  

2. Finalize meeting agendas in consultation with Rental Housing 
Mediation Program staff.  

3. Handle all routine Board matters referred to the Chair by staff. 
However, the Chair shall not take any action that would otherwise 
require a vote of the Board. 

 
 The Chair may establish committees, and appoint Mediators to such committees 
with the approval of the Board. 
 
 The Secretary assists Rental Housing Mediation Program staff in taking the 
minutes of the Board. The Secretary shall assist the Chair as requested.   
 



4 
 

 In the absence or unavailability of the Chair, the Vice Chair shall perform the 
functions of the Chair.  In the absence or unavailability of the Chair and the Vice Chair, 
the Secretary shall perform the functions of the Chair.  If all three officers are absent or 
unavailable, the Board member with the longest tenure of membership shall perform the 
functions of the Chair.  If the longest tenure of membership on the Board is shared by 
more than one member, the member whose last name occurs earliest alphabetically 
shall perform the functions of the Chair. 
 
Section V. Meetings of the Rental Housing Mediation Board 

 
 A. Meeting Schedule 

 
 Regular meetings shall be held on the second Thursday of the month at 5:30 
p.m. (according to a schedule presented by the Board and Staff) in the David Gebhard 
Public Meeting Room located at 630 Garden Street, Santa Barbara, California 93101, 
unless otherwise noticed.  All meetings of the Board shall comply with the Guidelines for 
the City of Santa Barbara Advisory Groups (“Guidelines”) and the Ralph M. Brown Act. 
 
 B. Content of Agendas  

 
 At regular meetings, the Board Mediators may consider all matters pertaining to 
the mediation process and all matters related to the program goals and objectives, as 
stated in Section 1 of these By Laws.  Rental Housing Mediation Program staff shall 
prepare the Board agenda as necessary to achieve the program goals and objectives.  
The Board may, by majority vote at a regular or special meeting of the Board, direct 
staff to place an item within the jurisdiction of the Board on a future agenda.  In addition, 
any two Board members may request that an item be placed on a Board agenda by 
submitting a written request to the Secretary of the Board. The written request must, at 
a minimum, contain all of the following: 
 
  1. A substantive outline or summary of the information that will be  
   presented to the Board; and 
  2.  A concise statement of the specific action the Board will be asked  
   to take on the item; and 
  3.  A statement of the reasons why the requesting parties believe it is  
   appropriate and within the jurisdiction of the Board to consider this  
   subject matter and to take the requested action.   
 
 In order to improve mediation techniques and performance of Board Mediators, a 
prime order of business at each regular meeting shall be a discussion of recent 
mediations. Each Mediator involved with the mediation may report on the mediation and 
respond to questions by the Board. 
 
  



5 
 

C. Quorum and Voting 
 
 A quorum shall consist of a simple majority of all appointed Board Members 
(one-half plus one).   A quorum must be established and maintained throughout the 
meeting in order to transact business.  Unless otherwise provided for in these Bylaws, 
any action requiring a vote of the Board requires a simple majority (one-half plus one) of 
the Members present at the meeting to pass. 
 
SECTION VI.  Powers and Duties of the Rental Housing Mediation Board 
 

A. Mediate Landlord/Tenant residential housing disputes. 
 

B. Develop and implement methods and techniques to improve mediation 
skills of all Mediators.  

 
C. Promote the services of the Board.  
 
D. Review and discuss the Caseload of the Board.  
 
E. Provide advice and recommendations to Rental Housing Mediation 

Program staff regarding the overall operation of the Board and program 
goals and objectives as determined by the City Council of the City of 
Santa Barbara. 

 
F. Review and provide advice and recommendations to the Rental Housing 

Mediation Program staff on the gathering and publicizing of statistics. 
Review the Rental Housing Mediation Program statistical reports 
quarterly.  

 
G. Provide training for all Board Mediators in open session while being as 

sensitive as possible to the confidentiality of the mediation participants. 
 
H. Make recommendations to the City Council on how the City may best 

alleviate landlord/tenant tensions.  
 
SECTION VII . Amendments to By-Laws 
 
 The Board may recommend amendments to these By Laws to the City Council.  
Recommendations for amendments to these By Laws shall be made in the following 
manner: 
 
 A. A proposed amendment may be placed on an agenda of the Board for 
consideration.  After hearing a presentation regarding the proposed amendment and 
discussion of the proposed amendment, the Board shall vote whether to consider the 
proposed amendment for recommendation to the City Council. 
 



6 
 

 B. If the Board votes to consider the amendment, the item shall be placed on 
the agenda of the next meeting of the Board which is at least 30 days after the meeting 
at which the Board voted in favor of consideration of the amendment. 
 
 C. At the next meeting of the Board which is at least 30 days after the 
meeting at which the Board voted in favor of considering a recommendation, the Board 
shall vote whether to forward a recommendation to the City Council regarding the 
proposed amendment.  
 
 D. Each recommendation to the City Council for a proposed amendment to 
these By Laws shall be approved by a majority of the Board.  Each recommendation for 
a proposed amendment to these By Laws must be submitted to the Santa Barbara City 
Council for final approval.  
 
 
 



Agenda Item No.  9 
File Code No.  660.04 

 

 

 

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 
 
 COUNCIL AGENDA REPORT 

 
 
 

AGENDA DATE: July 21, 2015 
 
TO: Mayor and Councilmembers   
 
FROM: Administration, Housing & Human Services Division,  
 Community Development Department 
 
SUBJECT: City Documents Related To Casa Esperanza Homeless Center/Path 

Statutory Merger  
 
 
RECOMMENDATIONS:  That Council:    
 
A. Approve the assignment of City Agreements 25,144; 25,145; 25,194 and City 

purchase order 387931, to PATH (People Assisting the Homeless);  
 
B. Approve amending and restating the 1999 Restricted Use Covenant with an 

extended term of an additional 16 years; and  
 
C. Authorize the Community Development Director to execute such agreements and 

related documents, subject to approval as to form by the City Attorney, as 
necessary.  

 
BACKGROUND:  
 
On April 28, 2015, Council approved, in concept, the assignment of City Agreement Nos. 
24,758, 24757, 24,952, and City Purchase Order No. 387931 pending the finalization of 
the statutory merger of Casa Esperanza Homeless Center (Casa) and PATH (People 
Assisting the Homeless).  The merger was finalized on July 1, 2015.   Two of the City 
Agreements discussed in April expired June 30, 2015 and all funds have been expended 
under them.  The current Agreements recommended to be assigned are discussed below.   
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
PATH (doing business as PATH Santa Barbara) will provide the same services and 
programs now offered by Casa Esperanza. PATH will support PATH Santa Barbara’s 
grant writing and development activities; however PATH expects PATH Santa Barbara to 
remain self-funding.  All public and private money raised from Santa Barbara sources will 
be used exclusively for Santa Barbara programs.  Staff will take steps to ensure that these 
commitments are legally documented in the City agreements. 



Council Agenda Report 
City Documents Related To Casa Esperanza Homeless Center/PATH Statutory Merger 
July 21, 2015 
Page 2 

 

 
The City currently has one purchase order and three agreements with Casa.  
 

• $10,000 purchase order #387931 - Police Beds allowed by Conditional Use Permit 
($2,941 Balance as of June 30, 2015) 

• $45,994 Agreement #25,144 - Fiscal Year 2016 Human Services Grant (Effective 
July 1, 2015) 

• $39,006 Agreement #25,145 - Fiscal Year 2016 Community Development Block 
Grant (Effective July 1, 2015) 

• $135,000 Agreement #25,194 - Home Investment Partnership Program Tenant-
Based Rental Assistance (Funding approved by Council on May 12, 2015; 
Agreement not yet fully executed)  

 
In addition to the City grant agreements, Casa has three recorded documents that involve 
the City: 
 

• “Restricted Use Covenant Imposed on Real Property for Operation of a Homeless 
Shelter and Related Services” (Recorded 8/17/99 as 1999-0064812) - This 
document will be amended and restated to incorporate current use restrictions and 
to reset the 60-year term. Upon Council action today, the document will be fully 
executed and recorded.  

 
• “Covenants, Conditions, and Restrictions” (Recorded on 12/20/99 as 1999-

0098691) - This document will remain in effect and runs with the land.  No Council 
action is required. 

 
• “Off-Site Parking License” (5/26/2013 as 2013-0032925) - This document will 

remain in effect and runs with the land.  No Council action is required. 
 

BUDGET/FINANCIAL INFORMATION: 
 
The City’s assignment of Casa’s agreements to PATH will have no financial impact.   
 
 
PREPARED BY: Deirdre Randolph, Community Development Programs Supervisor 

/SG 
 
SUBMITTED BY: George Buell, Community Development Director  
 
APPROVED BY: City Administrator's Office 
 



Agenda Item No.  10 
File Code No.  560.09 

 

 

 

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 
 
 COUNCIL AGENDA REPORT 

 
 
 

AGENDA DATE: July 21, 2015 
 
TO: Mayor and Councilmembers 
 
FROM: Facilities Planning & Development Division, Airport Department 
 
SUBJECT: Airport Master Plan Contract Amendment For Traffic Analysis 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  
 
That Council approve and authorize the Airport Director to execute an Amendment to 
Contract 23,903 with Coffman Associates for preparation of additional traffic impact 
analysis for the Airport Master Plan in an amount not to exceed $28,000. 
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
In order to understand the environmental consequences of the adoption of the Airport 
Master Plan, City Council must review and certify an environmental impact analysis 
prepared pursuant to the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA).  Staff is 
currently preparing a complete Draft Environmental Impact Report (EIR) to assess the 
environmental consequences of Master Plan implementation.   
 
In consultation with City of Goleta staff, it became apparent that additional data 
collection and modeling would be necessary to reach a conclusion about the future 
traffic condition at intersections in the vicinity of the Santa Barbara Airport.  This 
contract amendment will fund this analysis and recommendations to address any 
forecasted traffic impacts.  
 
BUDGET/FINANCIAL INFORMATION: 
 
Funds are available in the Airport Capital Fund for Airport Master Plan Environmental 
Review. 
 
SUSTAINABILITY IMPACT:   
 
The Airport Master Plan will guide land use at the Santa Barbara Airport consistent with 
its guiding principles and Plan Santa Barbara.  The review and disclosure of potential 
environmental impacts from Airport Master Plan implementation will enable Council to 
incorporate mitigation measures to avoid or minimize adverse affects. 
 



Council Agenda Report 
Airport Master Plan Contract Amendment For Traffic Analysis 
July 21, 2015 
Page 2 

 

 
PREPARED BY: Andrew Bermond, AICP, Project Planner 
 
SUBMITTED BY: Hazel Johns, Airport Director 
 
APPROVED BY:  City Administrator's Office 
 



Agenda Item No.  11 
File Code No.  520.02 

 

 

 

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 
 
 COUNCIL AGENDA REPORT 

 
 
 

AGENDA DATE: July 21, 2015 
 
TO: Mayor and Councilmembers 
 
FROM: Training & Recruitment Division, Fire Department 
 
SUBJECT: Sole Source Purchase Order For Emergency Medical Dispatch 

System 
 
RECOMMENDATION:   
 
That Council find it in the City’s best interest to waive the formal bid procedure as 
authorized by Santa Barbara Municipal Code Section 4.52.070 (K) and authorize the 
City General Services Manager to issue a purchase order to Priority Medical 
Corporation in an amount not to exceed $62,400 to purchase and install Priority 
Dispatch Emergency Medical Dispatch software for the City Police Department 
Combined Communication Center. 
 
 
DISCUSSION:  
 
In August of 1997, the Santa Barbara Police Department Combined Communication 
Center (CCC) began providing emergency medical dispatch assistance to callers in the 
City.  Since 1997, the dispatchers have been providing this assistance using a system 
of a manual flip-file cardsets that are subjective and time-consuming to use.  It is a 
system rapidly approaching obsolescence due to the increasingly complex nature of 
medical regulatory reporting and monitoring requirements.  
 
The Emergency Medical Dispatch software will provide faster query of callers, more 
timely dispatch of units and more expeditious review and documentation of the overall 
incident.  This vendor provides the most comprehensive software program that is the 
industry standard for medical dispatch. 
 
Sole source provisions are requested due to the fact that Santa Barbara County 
Dispatch utilizes this software and the oversight body (Santa Barbara County 
Emergency Medical Services Agency) encourages all dispatch centers under its charge 
to use the same software for ease of review and reporting.  Staff recommends waiving 
the formal bid procedure to purchase Priority Medical ProQA software. 
 
 



Council Agenda Report 
Sole Source Purchase Order For Emergency Medical Dispatch System 
July 21, 2015 
Page 2 

 

 
 
 
BUDGET/FINANCIAL INFORMATION: 
 
The estimated project cost for this EMD software is $62,400. These funds have been 
approved with the adoption of the Fiscal Year 2016 Operating and Capital Budget and 
are appropriated in the General Fund’s Capital Outlay Fund. 
 
 
 
PREPARED BY: Chris Mailes, Battalion Chief 
 
SUBMITTED BY: Patrick McElroy, Fire Chief 
 
APPROVED BY:  City Administrator's Office 
 



Agenda Item No.  12 
 

File Code No. 560.04 
 

 

 

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 
 

COUNCIL AGENDA REPORT 
 
 

 
AGENDA DATE: July 21, 2015 
 
TO: Mayor and Councilmembers 
 
FROM: Engineering Division, Public Works Department 
 
SUBJECT: Contract For Construction Of North General Aviation Ramp 

Pavement Panel Replacement Project 
 
RECOMMENDATION: That Council:  
 
A. Award a contract with Lash Construction, Inc., in their low bid amount of 

$357,925 for construction of the North General Aviation Ramp Pavement Panel 
Replacement Project, Bid No. 3790; and authorize the Public Works Director to 
execute the contract and approve expenditures up to $35,792 to cover any cost 
increases that may result from contract change orders for extra work and 
differences between estimated bid quantities and actual quantities measured for 
payment; and 

B. Authorize the Public Works Director to execute a contract with Kimley Horn in the 
amount of $54,585 for construction support services, and approve expenditures 
of up to $5,458 for extra services of Kimley Horn that may result from necessary 
changes in the scope of work. 

 
DISCUSSION: 
 
PROJECT DESCRIPTION 
 
The work consists of the rehabilitation treatments for the aircraft parking areas at the 
Santa Barbara Airport that are in poor condition. The project area is the North General 
Aviation Ramp. The ramp is the original ramp from the Air Corps Marine Base and was 
constructed in the early 1940’s. The ramp is used for parking general aviation aircraft in 
the Signature Aviation leasehold. 
 



Council Agenda Report 
Contract For Construction Of North General Aviation Ramp Pavement Panel Replacement  
July 21, 2015 
Page 2 
 

 

 
CONTRACT BIDS 
 
A total of nine bids were received for the subject work, ranging as follows: 
 

BIDDER BID AMOUNT 
  
1. Lash Construction, Inc. 

Santa Barbara 
$325,925.00 

2. Tomar Construction 
Santa Paula 

$338,000.00 

3. Cutting Edge Construction 
Oro Grande 

$343,960.00 

4. Granite Construction 
Santa Barbara 

$400,236.00 

5. Whitaker Construction 
Paso Robles 

$411,898.00 

6. Cal Portland 
Santa Maria 

$469,046.00 

7. Myers & Sons Construction  
Sacramento 

$488,145.00 

8. RC Becker & Son 
Santa Clarita 

$514,921.22 

9. Brough Construction  
Arroyo Grande 

$668,995.00 

 
The low bid of $325,925, submitted by Lash Construction, is an acceptable bid that is 
responsive to and meets the requirements of the bid specifications. Note: This bid 
contained an additive alternate for Concrete Panel Replacement. The Airport has 
budget to award four concrete panels at $8,000 each; thus, the award amount is the low 
bid of $325,925, plus $32,000, for a total of $357,925.  
 
The change order funding recommendation of $35,792, or ten percent, is typical for this 
type of work and size of project. 
 
CONSTRUCTION PHASE CONTRACT SERVICES 
 
Staff recommends that Council authorize the Public Works Director to execute a 
contract with Kimley Horn in the amount of $60,043 for construction management 
services. Kimley Horn was selected through a competitive Request For Qualifications 
process for this project. 
 
 
 
 
 



Council Agenda Report 
Contract For Construction Of North General Aviation Ramp Pavement Panel Replacement  
July 21, 2015 
Page 3 
 

 

FUNDING  
 
This Project is funded by an Airport Improvement Program Federal Aviation 
Administration grant, with a local sponsor match of 9.34 percent, which is funded from 
the Airport Department’s Operating Fund. There are sufficient appropriated funds in the 
Airport Department’s Operating budget to cover the cost of this Project. 
 
The following summarizes the expenditures recommended in this report: 
 

CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT FUNDING SUMMARY 
 

 Basic Contract Change Funds Total 
Lash Construction $357,925.00 $35,792.00 $393,717.00 
Kimley Horn $54,585.00 $5,458.00 $60,043.00 

TOTAL RECOMMENDED AUTHORIZATION $453,760.00 
 
The following summarizes all Project design costs, construction contract funding, and 
other Project costs: 
 

ESTIMATED TOTAL PROJECT COST 
*Cents have been rounded to the nearest dollar in this table.   

 

Design (by Contract) $35,000 
 Subtotal $35,000 

Construction Contract   $357,925 
Construction Change Order Allowance 35,792 

Subtotal $393,717
 Construction Management/Inspection (by Contract) $60,043 

 Subtotal $60,043 
TOTAL PROJECT COST $488,760 

 
 
PREPARED BY: Owen Thomas, Supervising Engineer/LR/sk 
 
SUBMITTED BY: Rebecca J. Bjork, Public Works Director 
 
APPROVED BY: City Administrator’s Office 
 



Agenda Item No.  13 
 

File Code No. 560.04 
 

 

 

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 
 

COUNCIL AGENDA REPORT 
 
 

 
AGENDA DATE: July 21, 2015 
 
TO: Mayor and Councilmembers 
 
FROM: Engineering Division, Public Works Department 
 
SUBJECT: Contract For Construction Of Airport Lighting And Safety Project 
 
RECOMMENDATION: That Council:  
 
A. Award a contract with Cindy Bales Engineering in their low bid amount of 

$2,143,410 for construction of the Airport Lighting and Safety Project, Bid No. 
3763; and authorize the Public Works Director to execute the contract and 
approve expenditures up to $214,341 to cover any cost increases that may result 
from contract change orders for extra work and differences between estimated 
bid quantities and actual quantities measured for payment;  

B. Authorize the Public Works Director to execute a contract with Mead & Hunt in 
the amount of $296,800 for construction support services, and approve 
expenditures of up to $29,680 for extra services of Mead & Hunt that may result 
from necessary changes in the scope of work; and 

C. Authorize the General Services Manager to issue a purchase order to ADB 
Airfield Solutions in the amount of $10,076.73, and authorize the General 
Services Manager to approve expenditures of up to $2,500 for extra services of 
ADB Airfield Solutions that may result from necessary changes in the scope of 
work. 

 
DISCUSSION: 
 
PROJECT DESCRIPTION 
 
The contract for construction of the Airport Lighting and Safety Project (Project) consists 
of rehabilitating the airfield electrical system, which has aging components and is in 
need of safety improvements. All of the cables for the runway and taxiway edge lights, 
and guidance signs need to be replaced. Additionally, transformers for each edge light 
and sign need to be replaced. The Project also includes installation of new runway guard 
lights at Runways 15R and 15L. Runway guard lights are flashing amber lights that are 
conspicuously located at runway holding locations and are a reminder for pilots and 
maintenance workers that they are at a runway intersection. These runway guard lights 
will help prevent unauthorized entry onto a runway. The cable and transformer 



Council Agenda Report 
Contract For Construction Of Airport Lighting And Safety Project  
July 21, 2015 
Page 2 
 

 

replacement will increase the reliability of the electrical system and save energy. The 
Project also includes replacement of airfield markings and replacement of six-foot chain 
link fence with eight-foot security fence. 
 
CONTRACT BIDS 
 
A total of six bids were received for the subject work, ranging as follows: 
 

BIDDER BID AMOUNT 
  
1. Cindy Bales Engineering 

Big Bear City 
$2,143,410 

2. Royal Electric 
Sacramento 

$2,336,301 

3. Lee Wilson Electric 
Arroyo Grande 

$2,406,631 

4. Taft Electric Company 
 Buellton 

$2,479,348 
 

5. Cutting Edge Concrete Services 
 Oro Grande 

$2,756,755 
 

6. High Light Electric 
 Riverside 

Bid Non 
Responsive 

 
The low bid of $2,143,410, submitted by Cindy Bales Engineering, is an acceptable bid 
that is responsive to and meets the requirements of the bid specifications.  
 
The change order funding recommendation of $214,341, or ten percent, is typical for 
this type of work and size of project. 
 
CONSTRUCTION PHASE CONTRACT SERVICES 
 
Staff recommends that Council authorize the Public Works Director to execute a 
contract with Mead & Hunt in the amount of $296,800 for construction management 
services. Mead & Hunt was selected through a competitive Request for Qualifications 
process for this Project. 
 
ADB Airfield Solutions is required to provide Airfield Lighting Control and Monitoring 
System changes to the existing Santa Barbara Airport Airfield Lighting Control System 
as part of this project. Staff recommends that the General Services Manager issue a 
purchase order in amount of $10,076.73 for this work. 
 
FUNDING  
 
This Project is funded by an Airport Improvement Program Federal Aviation 
Administration grant, with a local sponsor match of 9.34 percent, which is funded from 



Council Agenda Report 
Contract For Construction Of Airport Lighting And Safety Project  
July 21, 2015 
Page 3 
 

 

the Airport Department’s Operating Fund. There are sufficient appropriated funds in the 
Airport Department’s Operating budget to cover the matching portion of this Project. 
 
The following summarizes the expenditures recommended in this report: 
 

CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT FUNDING SUMMARY 
 

 Basic Contract Change Funds Total 
Cindy Bales 
Engineering $2,143,410.00 $214,341.00 $2,357,751.00 

Mead & Hunt $296,800.00 $29,680.00 $326,480.00 
ADB $10,076.73 $2,500.00 $12,576.73 

TOTAL RECOMMENDED AUTHORIZATION $2,696,807.73 
 
The following summarizes all Project design costs, construction contract funding, and 
other Project costs: 
 

ESTIMATED TOTAL PROJECT COST 
*Cents have been rounded to the nearest dollar in this table.   

 

Design (by Contract) $163,500 
City Staff Costs $78,835 

Subtotal $242,335 
Construction Contract   $2,143,410 
Construction Change Order Allowance $214,341 
Construction Contract ADB $10,077

 Construction Change Order Allowance ADB $2,500
 Subtotal $2,370,328
 City Staff Costs (Estimate) $105,000 

Construction Management/Inspection (by Contract) $326,480 
Subtotal $431,480 

TOTAL PROJECT COST $3,044,143 
 
 
PREPARED BY: Owen Thomas, Supervising Engineer/LR/sk 
 
SUBMITTED BY: Rebecca J. Bjork, Public Works Director 
 
APPROVED BY: City Administrator’s Office 
 



Agenda Item No.  14 
 

File Code No.  540.13 
 

 

 

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 
 

COUNCIL AGENDA REPORT 
 
 

 
AGENDA DATE: July 21, 2015 
 
TO: Mayor and Councilmembers 
 
FROM: Engineering Division, Public Works Department 
 
SUBJECT: Sole Source Agreement For Sanitary Sewer Chemical Root Control 

Services 
 
RECOMMENDATION:   
 
That Council authorize the Public Works Director to execute a Sole Source Maintenance 
Agreement with Duke’s Root Control in the amount $128,577.16 for sanitary sewer 
chemical root cleaning services, and authorize the Public Works Director to approve 
expenditures of up to $12,857.72 for extra services that may result from necessary 
changes in the scope of work. 
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
BACKGROUND 
 
The City of Santa Barbara owns and operates a 257-mile municipal wastewater 
collection system. Within this system, root intrusion from trees occasionally blocks 
sewer flows and causes sanitary sewer overflows (SSO). From 2008 through 2010, the 
City averaged approximately 40 SSOs per year, with the predominant cause being root 
intrusion. Since then, the number of SSOs has been decreasing; however, efforts to 
reduce SSOs continue to be a priority.  
 
To better control root intrusion, the City initiated a pilot project in 2014, where nationally 
recognized and approved chemical herbicide products specifically designed for sanitary 
sewer mains were applied to City sewer mains with a history of root intrusion. Staff 
selected two different chemical herbicide products via a Request for Proposal process, 
thereby allowing staff to evaluate the effectiveness of each product in various locations 
throughout the City. 
   
Staff selected Duke’s Root Control (Duke’s) and Pacific Sewer Maintenance (PSM) to 
apply their different products to approximately one mile of pipe throughout the City and 
assessed the potential negative effect of the chemical herbicide to nearby trees. After a 
three-month review period, no negative effects were found; therefore, Duke’s and PSM 
applied their products to approximately 13 miles of sanitary sewer mains. 



Council Agenda Report 
Sole Source Agreement For Sanitary Sewer Chemical Root Control Services  
July 21, 2015  
Page 2 

 

 
Staff has evaluated the effectiveness of the two different products and has determined 
that, while both products were successful in controlling root intrusion, Duke’s product 
was more favorable because of the ease of scheduling the work and product warranty. 
Duke’s product does not require pre-cleaning prior to treatment, whereas PSM’s product 
requires treatment to take place within a six-week to three-month cleaning window. In 
addition, PSM’s product warranty is voided if a sewer main is hydro-jetted after the 
product is applied, whereas, Duke’s product does not have such a stipulation.   
 
CURRENT PROJECT DESCRIPTION 
 
The project consists of Duke’s applying chemical herbicide to approximately 20 miles of 
predominately six-inch and eight-inch diameter sewer mains with a history of root intrusion 
in various locations throughout the City.   
 
Staff recommends a sole source maintenance agreement with Duke’s because of their 
ease of scheduling, no strict pre-cleaning periods, and favorable warranty. Duke’s 
provided competitive pricing similar to last year, and were proven to be successful and 
efficient in the 2014 pilot project. 
 
BUDGET/FINANCIAL INFORMATION: 
 
This project is funded by the Wastewater Fund, and there are sufficient appropriated 
funds in the Wastewater Fund to cover the cost of this project. The following 
summarizes project costs:   
 

ESTIMATED TOTAL PROJECT COST 
Duke’s Agreement (including extra services)  $141,434.88 
Project Management (by City Staff) $20,000.00 

TOTAL PROJECT COST $161,434.88 
 
 
At its meeting on July 14, 2015, the Water Commission voted in support of staff 
recommendations. 
 
PREPARED BY: Linda Sumansky, Principal Civil Engineer/LA/KT/mh 
 
SUBMITTED BY: Rebecca J. Bjork, Public Works Director 
 
APPROVED BY: City Administrator’s Office 
 
 



Agenda Item No.  15 
File Code No.  160.01 

 

 

 

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 
 
 COUNCIL AGENDA REPORT 

 
 
 

AGENDA DATE: July 21, 2015 
 
TO: Mayor and Councilmembers 
 
FROM: City Attorney’s Office 
 
SUBJECT: Authorization For Contingency Fee Agreement With Baron & Budd, 

PC Regarding Legal Services Relating To The Refugio Oil Spill 
 
RECOMMENDATION:   
 
That Council authorize the City Attorney to execute a contingency fee agreement with 
Baron & Budd, PC for legal services relating to the May 19, 2015 Refugio oil spill and a 
contingency fee amounting to 20% of any gross recovery. 
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
The City has experienced as yet unquantified damages as a result of the May 19, 2015 
Refugio oil spill.  We recommend authorizing a contingency fee agreement with Baron & 
Budd, PC in order to pursue recovery of those damages. 
 
Baron & Budd is a national plaintiffs law firm with substantial experience dealing with oil 
spill disaster recovery.  Scott Summy will serve as co-counsel with the City Attorney’s 
Office.  Mr. Summy is a shareholder of Baron & Budd and leads the firm’s 
environmental litigation group.  He has been active in numerous high profile cases 
including the Deepwater Horizon/BP spill.  Mr. Summy previously represented the City 
in connection with MTBE contamination issues. 
 
PREPARED BY: Ariel Pierre Calonne, City Attorney 
 
SUBMITTED BY: Ariel Pierre Calonne, City Attorney 
 
APPROVED BY: City Administrator's Office 
 



Agenda Item No.  16 
 

File Code No.  180.02 
 

 

 

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 
 
 COUNCIL AGENDA REPORT 

 
 

AGENDA DATE:  July 21, 2015 
 
TO:    Mayor and Councilmembers 
 
FROM:   City Administrator’s Office 
 
SUBJECT:  Community Promotion Contract With Summer Solstice Celebration 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
That Council authorize the City Administrator to execute an annual community promotion 
contract with Summer Solstice Celebration, Inc. in the amount of $66,000 to support year-
round administrative expenses for the community event.  
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
The Fiscal Year 2016 budget adopted by Council on June 23, 2015, includes $66,000 
under Community Promotions for Summer Solstice Celebration, Inc. to plan next year’s 
public arts workshop, annual parade, and festival.  This reflects a 3% increase in funding 
from the prior year. This contract will help support year-round administrative expenses for 
the organization.  The term of the contract covers the period from August 1, 2015, to July 
31, 2016.  
 
The organization plans the annual Summer Solstice parade along State Street with a 
creative display of floats, giant puppets, whimsical costumes and masks, involving over 
1,000 parade participants. In addition to the parade, the festivities continue over the 
weekend in Alameda Park with live music, food, arts and crafts. The next Summer 
Solstice event is scheduled from June 17 to 19, 2016.   
 
The economic impact from arts and cultural events in Santa Barbara is significant. 
Cultural arts programs and events provide a major boost to the local economy through 
sponsorships, services, supplies, and employee salaries. Recognizing cultural arts as a 
vital component of the community’s economic vitality and the importance of providing 
free entertainment to the community, the City provides over $2.6 million for events, 
festivals, and arts and community promotion organizations. 
 
The contract is available for review in the City Clerk’s Office at City Hall at 735 Anacapa 
Street. 
 
PREPARED BY: Nina Johnson, Assistant to the City Administrator  
SUBMITTED BY: Paul Casey, City Administrator  
APPROVED BY: City Administrator's Office 



Agenda Item No.  17 
 

File Code No.  230.02 
 

 

 

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 
 
 COUNCIL AGENDA REPORT 

 
 
 

AGENDA DATE:  July 21, 2015 
 
TO:    Mayor and Councilmembers 
 
FROM:   Administration Division, Finance Department 
 
SUBJECT:  Community Promotion Contract With Visit Santa Barbara  
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
That Council authorize the City Administrator to execute an annual community promotion 
contract with Visit Santa Barbara to provide marketing services that promote Santa 
Barbara as a tourism destination, in an amount of $1,380,000. 
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
The Mayor and Council’s Office Arts and Community Promotion budget includes 
$1,380,000 for Visit Santa Barbara (formerly, Conference and Visitor’s Bureau and Film 
Commission) to promote Santa Barbara as a tourist destination and location for film 
production. This contract will help support year-round administrative expenses for Visit 
Santa Barbara, including salaries and benefits, advertising, consumer and trade 
information services, public relations, and sales. The term of the contract covers the period 
of July 1, 2015 through June 30, 2016.  
 
The primary goals of the marketing services include expanding Santa Barbara’s position 
as a major tourist destination and growing visitation to increase overnight stays, length 
of travel, mid-week stays, and travel during off-peak months. Through strategic 
partnerships and promotions, Visit Santa Barbara engages prospective visitors.   
 
To enhance tourism and support the cultural arts community, the City provides over 
$2.6 million for events, festivals, and arts and community promotion organizations. 
 
The contract is available for review in the City Clerk’s Office at City Hall at 735 Anacapa 
Street.  
 
PREPARED BY: Nina Johnson, Assistant to the City Administrator 
 
SUBMITTED BY: Paul Casey, City Administrator  
 
APPROVED BY: City Administrator's Office
 



Agenda Item No.  21 
 

File Code No.  540.10 
 

 

 

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 
 

COUNCIL AGENDA REPORT 
 
 

 
AGENDA DATE: July 21, 2015 
 
TO: Mayor and Councilmembers 
 
FROM: Engineering Division, Public Works Department 
 
SUBJECT: Reactivation Of The Charles E. Meyer Desalination Facility 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  That Council: 
 
A. Introduce and subsequently adopt, by reading of title only, An Ordinance of the 

Council of the City of Santa Barbara Authorizing the Approval and Execution by 
the City of an Installment Sale Agreement in Connection with the Desalination 
Plant Reactivation Project Drinking Water State Revolving Fund Project No. 
4210010-005C; 

B. Introduce and subsequently adopt, by reading of title only, An Ordinance of the 
Council of the City of Santa Barbara Authorizing the Approval, subject to receipt 
of SRF Loan For Project No. 4210010-005C, and Execution by the Public Works 
Director of a Contract to Design, Build, and Operate the Charles E. Meyer 
Desalination Facility with IDE Americas, Inc., in the amount of $43,437,234 and 
approve expenditures up to $1,864,420 to cover any cost increases that may 
result from contract change orders for extra work and differences between 
estimated bid quantities and actual quantities measured for payment;  

C. Introduce and subsequently adopt, by reading of title only, An Ordinance of the 
Council of the City of Santa Barbara Authorizing the Acceptance and Execution 
by the Public Works Director of a Lease For a Term of 25 Years with the State Of 
California State Lands Commission for the Continued Use and Maintenance of 
One 48-inch Diameter Sewer Outfall Pipeline and Maintenance of One 42-inch 
Diameter Non-operational Outfall Pipeline and Associated Facilities as Further 
Described on Exhibit “A” Attached Thereto; 

D. Authorize the Public Works Director to pay the $500,000 for work on a project to 
restore the upper Devereaux Slough in accordance with National Pollutant 
Discharge Elimination System permit special conditions; 

E. Approve a purchase order in the amount of $60,000 to Acciona Agua as stipend 
for submitting a proposal in response to the Request for Proposals for the  
Recommissioning Of The Charles E. Meyer Desalination Facility; 
 
 



Council Agenda Report 
Reactivation Of The Charles E. Meyer Desalination Facility  
July 21, 2015 
Page 2 

 

F. Authorize the City Attorney to execute an Amendment to Legal Services Agreement 
No. 24,935 with Lathan & Watkins LLP to increase the “Do Not Exceed Limit” from 
$200,000 to $220,000 for legal support related to the local Coastal Development 
Permit; 

G. Authorize the City Attorney to execute a Third Amendment to Legal Services 
Agreement No.24,835 with Hanson Bridgett LLP to increase the “Do Not Exceed 
Limit” from $150,000 to $175,000 for legal services related to negotiating and 
drafting the DBO contract; and 

H. Increase estimated revenues and appropriations in the Water State Revolving 
Fund Loan Fund in the amount of $8,000,000 for the Charles E. Meyer 
Desalination Facility for a total amount of $55,000,000.  
 

DISCUSSION: 
 
On June 16, 2015, Council authorized a professional services contract with IDE 
Americas, Inc., (IDE) in the amount of $1,320,000 to begin the design phase for the 
Design, Build, and Operate (D/B/O) contract for the Charles E. Meyer Desalination 
Facility (Desal Facility) to keep the reactivation of the Desal Facility on schedule for 
completion in fall 2016 and ensure the community is prepared for future drought 
conditions.   
 
Project Status Update 
 
With the acceptance of the State Revolving Fund (SRF) loan, the City can award the full 
D/B/O contract with IDE. The cost of the project, as submitted by IDE, was $44,757,234.  
The approval of the contract for $43,437,234 realizes the $1,320,000 awarded on June 
16, 2015, to begin the design phase for the project. The change order authority is five 
percent of the construction cost submitted by IDE, or $1,864,420, which is appropriate 
for this type of project. 
 
The SRF loan has a repayment term of 20 years. One requirement of the loan is that 
the City must demonstrate that it has real property rights in all locations occupied by 
project facilities and, if those rights are not owned in fee, must have a term at least as 
long as the term of the loan. The City had an existing lease with the State of California 
State Lands Commission (SLC) for the use of the 48-inch outfall pipeline for the El 
Estero Wastewater Plant and the 42-inch diameter non-operational outfall pipeline that 
was associated with the original wastewater plant with 9 years remaining on the term. 
The Desal Facility will be using the 48-inch outfall in conjunction with the El Estero plant 
for brine disposal. Due to the requirement of the SRF loan with a 20-year term, the SLC 
has terminated the current lease and approved a new lease with a term of 25 years.  A 
special condition has been added requiring that by June 2020, the City mustsubmit a 
plan to the SLC for removal or other disposition of the non-operational 42-inch pipeline. 
 
The City will also be spending $500,000 to contribute to a project to restore the upper 
Devereaux Slough to fulfill requirements placed on the project by the Regional Water 
Quality Control Board, per the National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System permit. 



Council Agenda Report 
Reactivation Of The Charles E. Meyer Desalination Facility  
July 21, 2015 
Page 3 

 

 
As part of the Request for Proposal process, the City offered a stipend of $60,000 to the 
proposers to help defray the costs of submitting the proposals for the reactivating of the 
Desal Facility to the firms who were not the successful bidders. This is typical for a 
large, time intensive project.  
 
The law firm of Hanson Bridget LLP has provided legal assistance with negotiating and 
drafting the DBO contract.  The firm has extensive experience in public entity 
contracting for complex public infrastructure projects including design, build, and 
operate type procurement projects.    Extensive negotiation and drafting of the DBO 
contract occurred in May and June and was necessary to finalize the contract. The 
additional $25,000 is necessary to cover costs incurred in this final effort to complete 
the contract and as may be necessary to cover any final issues that may arise.    
 
Finally, one of the last permit requirements prior to reactivation is the local Coastal 
Development Permit. In 1991, the City approved a coastal development permit (CDP) 
allowing the Desalination Facility to operate as a 5-year temporary facility, and in 1995, 
the City approved a CDP allowing the Desalination Facility to be converted to a 
permanent facility.  Although the Desalination Facility has been in long-term stand-by 
mode since 1997, the City has continued to conduct routine maintenance activities, 
preserving the facility for reactivation if necessitated by drought or other water supply 
shortage conditions. Now, the Public Works Department proposes to reactivate the 
Desalination Facility consistent with the Planning Commission’s prior CDP approvals 
and approved plans for the facility. The revisions to the facility are proposed to be 
reviewed through a substantial conformance request to be submitted by the Public 
Works Department.  
 
Due to the unique and complex nature of the Coastal Development Permit regulatory 
process and substantial conformance determination, specialized legal assistance is 
recommended. Latham & Watkins LLP is extremely experienced and knowledgeable 
with all aspects of coastal development review. The original legal services contract 
contained a “not to exceed limit” of $200,000 which may be reached prior to securing all 
necessary coastal permits for the reactivation. It is recommended that the “not to 
exceed limit” be increased by an additional $20,000 to allow additional work if needed.  
   
FUNDING:  
 
The City has received the Installment Sale Agreement for a SRF loan to execute in the 
amount of $55 million from the State Water Resources Control Board Division of 
Drinking Water. The terms of the loan are 1.663 percent interest for 20 years, which is a 
debt service of approximately $3.2 millon per year.  Because the agreement is for a 20-
year period, the acceptance of the loan must be by Ordinance.  Costs making up the 
loan amount are as follows: 



Council Agenda Report 
Reactivating Of The Charles E. Meyer Desalination Facility  
July 14, 2015 
Page 4 
 

 

Estimated Project Costs 
 

 Reactivation Costs 

IDE D/B/O Contract  
    Design/Engineering/Planning $7,468,832 

    Construction Costs $37,288,402 

    Extra Services $1,864,420 

Design/Engineering/Planning – City and others $1,710,296 

Engineering/Admin during Construction - Carollo $2,235,884  

Engineering/Admin during Construction - City $255,739 

Legal and Other Costs $821,744 
NPDES Permitting Fees – Intake and Potable Reuse Study 
and contribution 

$3,221,651 

Contingency $133,032 

TOTAL COSTS 
 

$55,000,000  
 

 
BUDGET/FINANCIAL INFORMATION: 
 
Project costs for the Desal Facility will be tracked in the Water SRF Loan Fund. The 
budgeted amount for Fiscal Year 2016 was $47 million. With the acceptance of the loan, 
the amount will be increased by $8 million, for a total of $55 million in appropriations. 
 
PREPARED BY:  Pat Kelly, Assistant Public Works Director/CityEngineer/LS/kts 
 
SUBMITTED BY: Rebecca J. Bjork, Public Works Director  
 
APPROVED BY: City Administrator’s Office 
 



1 
 

ORDINANCE NO. ____ 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
SANTA BARBARA AUTHORIZING THE APPROVAL AND 
EXECUTION BY THE CITY OF AN INSTALLMENT SALE 
AGREEMENT IN CONNECTION WITH THE 
DESALINATION PLANT REACTIVATION PROJECT 
DRINKING WATER STATE REVOLVING FUND PROJECT 
NO. 4210010-005C  
 

WHEREAS, in order to finance the Desalination Reactivation Project, the City will 
sell the Project to the State Water Board and then purchase the Project from the State 
Water Board pursuant to an Installment Sale Agreement (the “Installment Sale 
Agreement”); 

WHEREAS, the State Water Board will provide the funds necessary to construct 
the Desalination Reactivation Project through the financing provided in the Installment 
Sale Agreement which funds, together with interest accruing thereon, will be repaid by 
the City in equal annual installments from the Water Fund Net System Revenues for 20 
years beginning one year after completion of construction. 

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City (the “City Council”) has been presented 
with the form of the Installment Sale Agreement, and the City Council has examined 
and approved such document and desires to authorize and direct the execution of such 
document; 

THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SANTA BARBARA DOES ORDAIN AS 
FOLLOWS: 

Section 1.  All of the recitals herein contained are true and correct and the City Council 
so finds. 

Section 2.  The form of Installment Sale Agreement, on file with the City Clerk, is hereby 
approved, and the City Administrator of the City and the Finance Director of the City, 
and any such other officer of the City as such City Administrator or Finance Director 
may designate (the “Authorized Officers”), are each hereby authorized and directed, for 
and in the name and on behalf of the City, to execute and deliver the Installment Sale 
Agreement in substantially said form with such changes therein as the Authorized 
Officer executing the same may require or approve, such approval to be conclusively 
evidenced by the execution and delivery thereof; provided, however, that the aggregate 
amount of the Installment Payments shall not exceed $55,000,000, the final Installment 
Payment shall be payable no later than ____________and the true interest cost of the 
interest on the Installment Payments shall not exceed 1.663% per annum. 

Section 3.  The Authorized Officers are hereby authorized and directed, jointly and 
severally, to do any and all things which they may deem necessary or advisable in order 
to consummate the transactions herein authorized and otherwise to carry out, give 



2 
 

effect to and comply with the terms and intent of this Ordinance. All actions heretofore 
taken by the officers, employees and agents of the City with respect to the transactions 
set forth above are hereby approved, confirmed and ratified. 

Section 4.  The Mayor shall sign and the City Clerk shall attest to the passage of this 
Ordinance.  The City Council hereby orders that, in lieu of the publication of this 
Ordinance once in the official newspaper of the City within 15 days after its adoption, 
this Ordinance shall be published by title only once in the official newspaper of the City 
within 15 days after its adoption, provided that the full text shall be available to the 
public at the City Clerk’s Office, and such publication by title only shall so state.  This 
Ordinance shall become effective 30 days from and after the date of its adoption. 



 
ORDINANCE NO. _____ 

 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
SANTA BARBARA AUTHORIZING THE APPROVAL, 
SUBJECT TO RECEIPT OF SRF LOAN FOR PROJECT 
NO. 4210010-005C, AND EXECUTION BY THE PUBLIC 
WORKS DIRECTOR OF A CONTRACT TO DESIGN, 
BUILD, AND OPERATE THE CHARLES E. MEYER 
DESALINATION FACILITY WITH IDE AMERICAS, INC., IN 
THE AMOUNT OF $43,437,234 AND APPROVE 
EXPENDITURES UP TO $1,864,420 TO COVER ANY 
COST INCREASES THAT MAY RESULT FROM 
CONTRACT CHANGE ORDERS FOR EXTRA WORK AND 
DIFFERENCES BETWEEN ESTIMATED BID QUANTITIES 
AND ACTUAL QUANTITIES MEASURED FOR PAYMENT 

 
 
WHEREAS, Santa Barbara Ordinance No. 5676 authorizes procurement through 

a design, build, operate method in appropriate circumstances; and  
 
WHEREAS, on September 23, 2014, the City Council of the City of Santa 

Barbara adopted Resolution No. 14-067 finding that the design, build, operate 
procurement method should be utilized to reactivate and operate the Charles Meyer 
Desalination Facility (“Desalination Facility”);  

 
WHEREAS, in September 2014, the City entered into a pre-qualification process 

for selection of potential contractors to prepare proposals for a design, build, operate 
contract for the reactivation of the Desalination Facility; 

 
WHEREAS, in November 2014, the City issued an RFP to all pre-qualified 

proposers for the Desalination Facility and two proposals were submitted; 
 
WHEREAS, on April 3, 2105, after evaluation of both proposals, the City 

determinate that the proposal submitted by IDE Americas, Inc. a Delaware corporation 
(“IDE”), was the highest ranked proposal, and entered into contract negotiations with 
IDE;  

 
WHEREAS, in order to initiate design phase work during contract negotiations for 

a design, build, operate contract, the City and IDE entered into Agreement No. 25, 221 
on June 16, 2015, which agreement will terminate on the effective date of the Design, 
Build, Operate Contract (“DBO Contract”) and this Ordinance; and  

 
WHEREAS, Section 521 of the Charter of the City of Santa Barbara requires that 

all contracts that bind the City for a term longer than five (5) years must be approved by 
ordinance adopted by the City Council of the City of Santa Barbara. 



 
THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SANTA BARBARA DOES ORDAIN AS 
FOLLOWS: 
 
Section 1. All of the recitals herein contained are true and correct and the City Council 
so finds. 
 
Section 2. In accordance with the provisions of Section 521 of the Charter of the City 
of Santa Barbara, that certain DBO Contract by and between IDE Americas, Inc. and 
the City of Santa Barbara, is hereby approved. 
 
 
Section 3. The form of the DBO Contract, on file with the City Clerk, is hereby approved, 
and the Public Works Director of the City is hereby authorized and directed, for and in 
the name and on behalf of the City, to execute the DBO Contract with IDE Americas, 
Inc. in substantially said form with such changes therein as the Public Works Director 
may require or approve, such approval to be conclusively evidenced by the execution 
and delivery thereof; provided, however, that the amount of the DBO Contract shall not 
exceed $44,757,234, with a total extra services amount of $1,864,420. 
 
Section 4.  On the effective date hereof, Agreement No. 25,221 shall terminate and be 
of no further force or effect.   
 
 
 















Agenda Item No.  22 
 

File Code No.  150.04 
 

 

 

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 
 
 COUNCIL AGENDA REPORT 

 
 
 

AGENDA DATE: July 21, 2015 
 
TO: Mayor and Councilmembers 
 
FROM: Planning Division, Community Development Department  
 
SUBJECT: Response To 2014-2015 Santa Barbara County Grand Jury Report 

on Zoning Information Reports 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  That Council:  
 
A. Receive the Santa Barbara County Grand Jury Report on Zoning Information 

Reports; and 
B. Authorize the Mayor to send a letter forwarding the City’s response to the Grand 

Jury Report. 
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
On May 11, 2015, City Council received a letter and report from the 2014-15 County of 
Santa Barbara Grand Jury entitled, “City of Santa Barbara Zoning Information Reports – 
Inconsistent and Unreliable” (Attachment 1). Per the California Penal Code, Council is 
required to respond to the findings and recommendations of the Grand Jury Report within 
90 days of receipt. The City’s response will be posted on the Grand Jury website and it 
may be included in the Grand Jury’s official published response report. 
 
Staff has drafted a letter and proposed responses to the findings and recommendations 
presented in the County of Santa Barbara Grand Jury report (Attachment 2). Over the past 
18 months, many of the issues presented in the Grand Jury report have been discussed 
in public hearings before the City of Santa Barbara’s Planning Commission and City 
Council.   
 
Background 
 
Section 28.87.220 of the Santa Barbara Municipal Code requires sellers of residential 
property (except condominium units) to obtain a Zoning Information Report (ZIR) from 
the City and to provide a copy of the ZIR to the prospective buyer at least three (3) days 
before the close of escrow. The ZIR provides important information to buyers and 
sellers of residential property in the City, such as the zoning and permitted use of the 



Council Agenda Report 
Response To 2014-2015 Santa Barbara County Grand Jury Report Entitled:  “City Of 
Santa Barbara Zoning Information Reports – Inconsistent And Unreliable” 
July 21, 2015 
Page 2 

 

property, past City permits and approvals, any special restrictions on the property, any 
known nonconformities, the results of the physical inspection, and potential zoning or 
building code violations. ZIRs also provide an important community benefit by helping to 
maintain neighborhoods and the City’s housing stock by ensuring new construction 
meets codified health, safety and general welfare requirements.   
 
Staff has been working with the Santa Barbara Association of Realtors (SBAOR) for 
several years to address issues that arise during the ZIR process. A primary area of 
concern to both SBAOR and staff relates to discrepancies between a prior ZIR and a 
current ZIR that has been prepared for the same property.  
 
On August 13, 2013, City Council discussed the requirement for ZIRs and potential 
amendments to the Zoning Ordinance regarding the processing of ZIRs.  Overall, 
Council supported the requirement for ZIRs but expressed concerns regarding the 
timeliness, accuracy, and accountability of ZIRs. Council directed staff to explore a 
process for resolving these issues. 
 
In September and October of 2013, the Planning Commission held public hearings to 
receive input from staff and the public on issues that arise during the ZIR preparation 
process.  Many of the issues raised in the Grand Jury Report were discussed at these 
hearings. At the conclusion of those hearings, the Planning Commission supported the 
mandatory requirement for ZIRs and recommended that a working group be formed to 
assist the Planning Commission in formulating recommendations to the City Council on 
improvements to the ZIR process.  
 
In January 2014, a ZIR Working Group was formed (comprised of two SBAOR staff 
members, three realtors, three City Planning Commissioners, two City Planning staff 
members, two City Building and Safety staff members, and an Assistant City Attorney) 
to discuss issues and recommend improvements to the ZIR process. The topics for the 
Working Group discussions included: timeliness, consistency, and reliability of reports; 
issues regarding staff’s approach to solving problems; and the manner in which ZIRs 
identify violations. The ZIR Working Group met nine times over a ten month period and 
developed recommendations to improve, clarify, and streamline the ZIR process 
including: 
 

• Confirming staff’s designation of major and minor violations for the purposes of 
referring violations identified in a ZIR for enforcement (Implemented). 

• Confirming that the current ten-day appeal period to challenge violations noted in 
a ZIR is appropriate (Implemented). 

• Agreeing that delayed enforcement is appropriate if a prior ZIR did not clearly or 
correctly identify a violation and the violation does not pose an immediate risk to 
health and safety or involve an illegal dwelling unit or the loss of required parking 
spaces (Implemented). 



Council Agenda Report 
Response To 2014-2015 Santa Barbara County Grand Jury Report Entitled:  “City Of 
Santa Barbara Zoning Information Reports – Inconsistent And Unreliable” 
July 21, 2015 
Page 3 

 

• Revising the ZIR template to make it more useful and understandable (In-
progress).  

• Reviewing and refining the types of improvements eligible for Minor Zoning 
Exceptions (In-progress). 

• Suggesting other process improvements including (All in-progress): 
o Updating and standardizing procedures for preparing ZIRs and identifying 

violations (which violations are noted in the report; which violations are 
outside the scope of the report and therefore not noted in the report; which 
violations are “minor” and do not require immediate abatement; and which 
violations are “major” and are referred to enforcement for immediate 
abatement). 

o Creating a checklist of items zoning inspectors look for during a site 
inspection 

o Creating a Frequently Asked Questions sheet 
o Creating a handout that explains how to address violation(s) identified in a 

ZIR 
o Exploring a process to retain site inspection photos  

 
At a public hearing in November 2014, the Planning Commission continued to support 
the mandatory requirement for ZIRs and concurred with the recommendations of the 
ZIR Working Group.  The Planning Commission recommended that City Council initiate 
a Zoning Ordinance Amendment to establish the Minor Zoning Exception process and 
directed staff to implement the other procedural changes recommended by the ZIR 
Working Group. 
 
At a public hearing in February 2015, the City Council continued to support the 
mandatory requirement for ZIRs, initiated a Zoning Ordinance Amendment to establish 
the Minor Zoning Exception process, and directed staff to implement the 
recommendations of the ZIR Working Group and Planning Commission for 
improvements to the ZIR preparation process (Attachment 3). 
 
CONCLUSION: 
 
Overall, since August 2013, staff has made significant progress toward implementing 
recommended improvements to the ZIR process. Many of these improvements were 
initiated after the Grand Jury began their investigation and thus, were not noted in the 
Report. Therefore, many of staff’s suggested responses to the Grand Jury’s 
recommendations are noted as unwarranted or include an explanation of improvement 
efforts already underway.  
 
 
 
 



Council Agenda Report 
Response To 2014-2015 Santa Barbara County Grand Jury Report Entitled:  “City Of 
Santa Barbara Zoning Information Reports – Inconsistent And Unreliable” 
July 21, 2015 
Page 4 

 

Additional improvements, such as creating the recommended Minor Zoning Exception 
process, will further increase the ability for staff to remedy issues discovered during the 
ZIR preparation process.  Staff is also continuing our efforts to: 1) collaborate with 
property owners when errors or discrepancies between ZIRs are discovered; 2) 
increase early consultation with Building and Safety staff during the ZIR preparation 
process to identify information necessary to permit and abate violations; 3) increase 
involvement of the ZIR inspectors in the discretionary review and building permit plan 
check processes, and; 4) expedite the discretionary review process and waive planning 
fees in cases of discrepancies between ZIRs. 

 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 1. 2014-2015 Santa Barbara County Grand Jury Report 

Entitled:  “City of Santa Barbara Zoning Information Reports 
– Inconsistent and Unreliable” 

 2. Draft City Response  
 3. Council Agenda Report, dated February 10, 2015 
 
PREPARED BY: Susan Reardon, Senior Planner 
 
SUBMITTED BY: George Buell, Community Development Director  
 
APPROVED BY:  City Administrator's Office 
 



MAILiNG ADDRESS TEL: K805) 568-2291
URANfl JURY ROOM FAX: (805) 568-3301

cOuNrr COURTHOUSE email: sbcgj@shcgjorg
SANTA BARBARA. cA Slip:!! www.sbcgjnrg

q3 IO I
GRAND JURY

SANTA BARBARA COUNTY

RECEIVED
City ol Santa Barbara
CiI Counsi
ThS At aca a Street

Santa Racara CA 9310
ary .awn,0p

—A

Dear Cojncil Vembes

i behalf of *e 2014-15 Santa 3arbara Couptv Grano :y. I an erciosing cOpy of our repoq

‘ited City of Sonta Bathom lonina Infomwtion Report — Incons4stent cad UnrelioWe f, your

review ana response.

The Graid Jury. County CounseL and the Oresdirs adge. Arth: Garcia. —ave apoayec :qk
recort. The pert nen: sections DI tie Califo’a Pea Code -ecuire t—e 0 low s

you ae receiv g ts ,— wo wcrk og cays pro to :5 re ease :0 te

vo ra rotdsdDse this report war to ts cubic re ease ca:vorr a PeaI Code
on 933 C61f1.

— You -n.s: escor- :o ear! eevant :irdin arid RecniTencatio’ ri this re:crt
— VOL flSt suoqiitvo..r -orginal espase to re,di—g dge Arthur Garc a.

VOL PSt a so submit p_:n:ed ciny to th erureu iniparI2d Granc ry.
if cu 3e r e.e-rte: ccurt officer or agercy tsa, t’e espo::se
Time is not later than 60 days from the date of receipt Qf Din report.

- If yoLi are the governing body of a public agency subjeci ‘0 1 he reviewing

authority of the Grand Jury, the response time is not Later than 90 days o receipt
of our report.

Your response will be posted on the Grand Jury website and may be included En our official
published response report- Please send your response to:

ATTACHMENT 1



The Honorable Arthur Garcia and Santa Barbara County Grand Jury
Santa Maria Juvenile Court 1100 Anacapa Street
4263 California Blvd Santa Barbara, CA 93101
Santa Maria, CA 93455

Respectfully yours,

Sandi Miller
Foreman
201415 Santa Barbara County Grand Jury



CITY OF SANTA BARBARA ZONING INFORMATION REPORTS
Inconsistent and Unreliable

SUMMARY

Ihe 20 ‘4-15 Santa Barbara County Grand Juiy (Jury) received a number of reqtiests to
investigate the accul-acy and reliability of the Zoning Information Report (LW) and the impacts it
has on bulb sellers anti buyers of residences in the City of Santa Barbara (City). 01 (he 482
Cali ruia municipa] ides, approximately 20 require this type of report Carpinteria is the only
other city in Santn Barbara Count that requires this type ol 1-eport.

According to the City. LI Rs provide iniporlan t information to both the sellers and buyers
residential property by identi l*ing:

• zoning and permitted uses of the properly
• past City perini s and appn wa]
• any p0 lenti a] vi )l ad on 5 0 [City ordinances

• existing improvements on the site as documented in Ci Ly liles and archive plans
The Izey phrase here isas documented in City files and archive plans’’ II the City has no record
of a permit or approval of existing irnprovemenls the hui-den of pi-oof falls on the current
propertY owner.

he C oiiuii UTI i ly Dcv e opin en t Department (CD D), which issues ZI Rs, identities only the
hollowing as major violations:

1. illegal dwelling units
2, illegal conversion in habitable space
3 loss rmIparking space
4 impi-ovements within 50 feet of the coastal bluff
5. violations that pose an immediate fire or Ii k saty risk

When In aT or viol ati{ m 5 are i den ti lied. he report is given an enfo re emetit ease it amber and the
seller is given a nmnber to call in the Building and Safety Division. An assigned eHorcement
ofli cer will work with the seller to remedy the viol ati oil(s) -

No matter WI] en tIme y occtLlTe d. ni in or violations (Appendix A), can have serious i nan ci al
Consequences ftmr e seller, even if the seller did not cenmiit or know of the alleged violation -

While minor violations are not referred to en fo reem emit, the s tmh sequent buyer is required to
orre et these, before or si int’l tan enus ly when app I yi Ii g kir a building permit for finite

improvements.

The sell Cr 5 required, no later than five (5) days of entering into an ‘‘agreement oF sale’’ to apply
for a ZIR. As a result, the ZIR oflen conies near the end of escm-ow. Unexpected violations can

21)14-] S Santa Baxbara County Grand Jury



CITY OF SANTA BARBARA ZONING INFORMATION REPORTS

throw the entire hat Isac on ir o i c opard> and mary ye the h Liver a basis for renenotiaring the
price.

BACKGROUND

•Fhe hisicincal ‘inent ‘rhe 7utiit’ liifortmitioii Report, when it was adopted in 1974. was to stop
the proIiIraLi’’n of i[egu[ and unperriiitted rental LiriLts in garages and rooms being split in the
larger\7jcto nun homes ii the dow, ac wit area At a r Ii me lb a City had a lack 0P housing units
and the Ca jest way- to add c nero r I ii id at in any (sell em, buyers a]d developers) was to
increase the room count ‘vithir, the tar,tprillL e\I.t,rIg homes. garages. and outbuildings. rlic
result s ovcrerowcli ng, lac I. adequate parL i n, arid nindoi houses which depressed the
al tic nt adj ace ii p ‘per Lies Tb re I re IC we in tb I t’gets for inspectors were garage
efln\e1S,’Is and interior robin phits. In lie beginning, Zll{s were optional. Later they became
mandator’

t•Lthin a fe’v years. the expaniarI 51 illcaI dt’ch!ing nulLs lied been put in check, and neighbors
became the most etlicietit iLisLruInrLII nr lepUrLlng ihleil conversions. Currently, vigilant
neigLthocs pcrE,rrn a ocd serVIce Iir the cclrnn,rLnic> when they report illegal units and parking
problems vitliirr their ticighl’’ .rEiun,d.

At their inception, 71R’ c,vcuccl ouLl illegal urtirs and parkirw. they did not irieltude minor
‘iiIution:u. Thi’ praclice re.s’ultcd ill Sonte property o’vaers belieyiz’ Lilat ‘ince a ,iior 7W
hu’necl no viu,iations and they L9d [ILide no rtioditieat,oris. lie circuit repurL t’oLLId coultintue to

no violanions. today’s ZIKs have norrliurd iota cu’unhiui:utitin he Ci, zoning laws.
pertnits mid btuilding code kiday LrI.NpecLI’.II> ideiitiiy :01(1 doctinient major and minor
violations a prccrviuw the jIcalLb and ‘aI()’ O dic coniintunitv. Ilowever. CDD suit’ catuld

d:riiax..c. _tI ,‘-i:Iie-: I:ea_d: at’: sa:av’’

tie :norcvce :evl-.:i,cv lu: m_rrc at a’ .‘c ,Ccr .e 1Y) rued ra :5 ejIrer,:

S:,ce: .-<a:-i in Irte ‘Xe the .‘.r.,,Ir. a rerriw:r.ye:r.niicr. .r:I:a;Cc CK

Tcc-,,rue> axi cefl_a ;.j,, ,‘r w: ,d:ve; keorids 2cr:ri:r :‘:r En: r, :exb.. ecF s_s
,izs a:: ,I;rneoIns wale acre .a;iv rtaablr. H-tu-,e. (‘b’ ‘c’r,c

:ait aver sevent ‘ears. CS :Vr1a::::ri’ pru:.cr1rezuTa% .‘.e been fl:sI eJ eqrc rn,:ri
ud rd rciurr.ad. or ci’vh i :e,er,a,:I> ,uir_iei “jLi’g erris cs 2K 9”,.
iss,,e pHi ‘r :,‘ f-c cre:. ,‘r ‘1 bc Cr,r,

t’e2r1:s are .no:,i: :1:5,:. (u Starr c%.Ine% i’r:T.n n’er:% Ce ‘a rtlnixe:. Mary
wj:flcc,c, -id ‘w hr. ‘:a: ‘:€ rH’ .E:e re hi ‘ed t::d r:_cs are r9o3 S—af—’sue,
:is (,r) ha’1er ji JIcre%-’ r.ne . II:c barker :o.c us Fe :c rare :.ce:irnerIuna, Ft’!

ar,’,ner vr,)r—:’ ‘- :I: tie of :‘s-e:ie.-I. I his s prcict_ary Zistar—E, ac
Ct’c:jnejts crc ‘zen a:iss,r.c b:i: be .‘r’pr ,‘:ju h can-i,: be ‘cete;E. :he ir_occrr
Ex,rc;vr,cz wo:,IC v (Icc \I:I: •.

I ,-15 Santa l3aihara Conan Grand Jar>



CITY OF SANTA BARBARA ZONING INFORMATION REPORTS

A n urn hei- oF iii tervi e wee, told lie Jun r he CD D takes an ad . ersari al U Si lion Lo these alleged
vi >1 ati on which the hoc noo IC F’s [VS It especially i the ‘•i ol aLi C )fl 0CC tLlTed (lee ades and many
ow]] cr5 ago. Accord ii to C Li Li Ca if. c. or L}IC last lb ir years (201 0—2013) on average, 82
percent of ZIRs had some son t. iolatiori. This’ seenied like an unrealistically high nurnbcr to
the Jury. 1 lowever. when the I LLr a.4cd I or all ZIRs Ihr the month of July 2014. of the 52
reports itce ived. 16 had no I a L [0 fl. . r S pe ret ii L, It is hi ard to believe that over thrcc—qurors of
homes sold ii the C V uI S a liLa R aF’hai’a have :o iing and/or hu i’d ing violations that require
correction acid lees.

NI un huniecpwners and real
clear, the next 7tR “n the
Fl ann ing Iecuiiciac’ IL ‘ri
NeporrLtlg t.D the PIarmitI2
d Lscrcpanc cs. the CD U rcpl
the start LS no Iiinsr tlie,’e”
mode by the Cifi: arc

tnl,,,riatii’n On the properrv.
‘lOpe)’ iii, .‘k, thoro IL ‘i P40 U’.7fr

estate agents provided evtjencc that a’though One ZIR is deemed
sari [C pro pe rn ci a%: cite vi In or] 5, especially when a tl ifferent
Ill inspects the p[upcrh. The CDD is unapologetic about this.
c,in,rii,’spn rtgardi,ig who should be responsible for those

F-h F do “o [ let TIC ICC U Li ‘tab iii Lv in the here and flow, when
Fr, u her wo , It ,*ie n3Ie ‘toi is a,, /onier with the (,‘lsv, in i,vtakes

lb ii,i or the en, “C p’s Ii, ‘mci, ,,vner. I I we have no

re we ace a 1,1 nitab C’:’’’ Iii icr words ‘ csn the proper
•‘erbv.,r,,,dn/ 11w ,‘lL’ru’ p4211%’! tYiOk’e ,hic who/c. The CDD

thu eniphiasized that ifsoct,ctL’ir’g is overloinkec. it dues nut FiICLFi IL S approved)

The ReaL Lstatc I raci&r UiscIu%Lir Statement iTDS-l I] has been reqtcired tar all i’csidentia
ho Inc sacs in e S late i r cc I 7 ‘u/s/I peal,’ (,it’d Cod’ ,S’t’er/o,, ii I. L’ very k”i nil pr, phI en]
or •Jc&ct i required to he discklscil l,v the seller cr1 this font’. Uecat[se of this. i,ilniiatiin (Ill a

ilk hia become reck,,idanl in flatLy eases as t9r as health :eid safe’’ iSsuc, are cp,nctrned,

Mat,’ buyers request home inispccr’.IIIN. cu,iducted h” l’ccn’cJ prutessiorials “‘ho arc far more
qi;al.ied :.v. a P1 i. ‘w >r F ‘oh Jeer1’ :,,y, eqi:”ale:ti r,’rET:oc,ri:r1:’ii,s,

p d t’’:e;eree t.—, o;.le Xcvi X’ rCiaircc : :w,cJsc a:d .‘:‘.es,’ Se
B,: “‘,e ( D) ut!: relee tare :ir IIr,,:v’,’, rLd’L.’:,e:e’x’: tr:u’u’lr V

Is ‘L r:erahzc ZLRs, ‘lx’ u’ tnnlJ:,.’.,:r’:e e’a trw, being rerxre’

METHODOLOGY

Jhe J-j:’ zlcr.’.’cd :.::;::I;:i _zc’’p--er: El :ar.rer u: : cciii esu,te ce::is and erc-,:ors
rel:Kaw:Krs... r:Es’a:: ‘cc-If r’r%fl,.r: ar.E i.’er rca] estue a2’,tr,v—r:’_a:ej,ra:ossi,r!Z— P-c
Jun c?1e ‘‘hi ax. i-iIerie’et ncscl_;_es nan other i:uI:::pa.:tic. I: “e’eve. Zs.
n’x:..’ az ‘we ‘at:i: bce:’ rc.’prc::,,:t ZIRh aIrc ‘nj .:“‘,Its .r rrorUse.al:ge5
L-e ,I;rv a]sc alrncec ‘K •.ar::i::i t ‘rut it “jr ‘r,ce:’re ëes i.eJ ‘ .ic recennendarors af chic
‘‘‘‘ G:e:i, s “C.: as I: c,Nse_,er: I’:t’ C,_’w’ \lee:r’:.’

......S...... rc._,_,’ i-’’ t_,’..’’,’’— ‘.c;errc’,cr 1/,
‘;i:J (‘‘‘‘ ‘.a’:--’c i,’.:t’

5 j:a 3:,rbam C.;ualv t:rar. j,jy.



CITY OF SANTA BARBARA ZONING INFORMATION REPORTS

OBSERVATIONS

Following a (_ity Cornicil Tileeting Ui December 2013 when the Santa UarbMa Board of Rca] Lors

argtid thor Z I Ks were being abused by the CDD. an ad ‘nc Workirtg Group ritado LI[} n Lhree
plarutiitg con,Lniscioners two p]anning staff, three reaL estate brokers arid Lt’u real e,iaLe L1lf

ns- ranncd to research Lhe problem. The Workinc Group decided (.1 OCLIc ,!rt three ‘‘lain topics:

• .kc[rnir,istrative Zoning Approvals
• Adrr,irdsrarivc :\ppcals
• EoL1,I:,L (‘I,a,,2e5 Ic be ?IR Forni

‘a—c :T:rc --.e ..‘:i trec—— lie cxx -rae r:r.cj:i l:K tJJs :L:riee vi

ri. ns .r. er ure :l-e --—ratrl Drc-oess. ‘Lea crca:cs scHr:s s<rcpir :.v V W WI?
‘he re’ -. Sin : the i:v _-ne d zcDa:lces xtwd ibC-e5 a% :• : c io.-::p Dl’

.ri% ri Inc ari>s:s. -c nvav :Hc dTV • e--- -i Tie 12L)_) sr;
::r Iccay s ZRs stew 5_I:’ r-e-r-ec-r: d:ccrera-i. — cii ‘cm: -:jiaber c: CJ<
i finn rIr I ThUG 2 j5 ta-rec _L-E,g ce te;:e cxc C:’ clap. .vce U rc k ‘ I

‘us ta:-u le Ci: —.- _._:__: ,‘ cr— rcs5 :5 rrc,,!;:r i. :1.; 01 fr,
h r: n:rrr-?-vc rdoc,

ec—2 ft:r a n::nxvr cf xa:rca:lcrs. sea. C ta: nr. “C- - U CC: 1% .ZC:. :1:. n: S -I:: arc!
P Ic ss cliii s who experiene ed the 10110w iTig ecre K 7., Tn a ]iifjrix lati oil Rope rt
Ii screllalic jes:

• A :L,C hL:: crra - :V: \.j tIer.J:ed ecrccm ana b:b ]r;vc i:. Tie ( Zr

rJcrc-: dcr.’l:,iei TL e-r.ec’vuei c were ab.e te eh:a.i: re raI p i.

cn,ra c.’i—:rae.c,- i,e i:einc the 3.s.t::ed reo:::s.
• Oi, icneawereocvoj eri ZIR fle W \ Ca: I.e :)rCrI V. ha: .I.r:,s:e

tur:c v :- ___errew 71R.i:ed r::n:r e v.c.arie::5 ix.: .tecxcJ K.,ue —Ic

H. i-i w k -uTh: c-c Ire-u fence ±a: frr r,:an’ vcar aI . r.rTe,- Cr ±CrC’
H.., “let akec ‘n- te aai o rove :l:c net. :11 rie:t,gcr tuie :cr r
:.ealri: a:id cretv j:vj_:- —

Vei a—eu I-r ceri’cr,c:. he Ta.a:._ red :In Jtrvt.r’
:1:1: k:,c: s:-s :-e e—Ke _a’ nr-:de Sr new ct d c::ev ci rW ,2.c . H,
-..I-,-e, ::er .. - re—-,-e tnrr-cr.i.

• \nclhcr solior irtid the Jun [he /IE on his pro],env ijidicarod a nod-: had been huill
without j,orruils_ ccr, though lie deck wls pIiers oji hare gg’urjd. ] he thy addcd an
anicnd,neni that said it would not enforce the vjojal,on. hut tI,c a]so would not remue it
IrlAil the ilk. The seller paid an attorney 7] 7to ct Ihe iiinrtle, cleared up.

• \not]icr I,ucr pat-chased a house in 2011. and 11w ZIR was cicr. When it rcucnn] WeliL
back c,n, (ho market. the hR indicated a deck dial bad xci] tijeru lay 21) can: Was illegal.
and lit Own Ct nit’s t oh Win a permit to cithicr rento v c I tir rchui Id the deck 1, wet, Id not
be pennied in its present state. Estimates for this came Lu S7c.(l(I0. As ti restril. the final
price to the buyer was reduced by $50,00( When dealing wit]] the nc&: buyer. the (Its
changed its mi rid and all wed the deck to remain ‘malt rird. Ii oiler I I no recourse as
the property Lraliser bad been completed -

1 2014-15 Santa Barbara County (hand Jui-v



CITY OF SANTA BARBARA ZONING INFORMATION REPORTS

A seller was iritóiilied [lv (DI) scaif, “there is evidence that you have moved a door
and thidow.’’ I Fe Sc! [Cr hired two contractors to confirm tIns had not happened- Stiff
did not otTer a oy CVI a Ce LI irLL i lu td - The Upshot Was CDD C ssenti ally said ‘n ever
mind.” Scill. lw selkr [tad to pay he contractors for revised plans and the City fe’
revised [‘tnit.

• The Ci y ‘Va tired a seller to rerihn-e a catport that had been in existence for 50 years and
bad been reported as lega or’ three prior Z C ft cost him $20,000 to verify the carport

bade’ istecl front rhe tiute rite house was htLilL.

• in a similar irus[aIIce tb FI!.II1CtITer was cited for a deck show., ineon-ecily on the plans.
Elowet et. the cI1uIitea LI Ic inspecror obsened were due In chaiiges- at the time of

crIlts(rtw(iun. ft cost rude rho’, 54.000 loger lie violation removed. but this Was less than
the cog Fur the (ire’s clermiand hr cleniolirioti.

• A SOIl. tryitug frI sell his dtccascd iiicther hattie. received a /1k stating the gal-age had
been moved frotit it. ,rLgInaI SIte hccttise ofthe window and door placement. resrtlling in
a viola(ioti. He LciIl’l Lu l’cdte a JO—year-—old photo of iirnccllal lie age ol6 taken in
front a! the earuee sElOttilig the oricirml plneetitetil had mit changed. When originally
detelIpel Ibis tract hn.l the opliort ot localirtg [lie garaoc in diIIrent configurations on a
silt. rate inspector had clone proper research, tElls “ouIl have beet, kiiovti.

If the PT H dctcrnui.tcs [beLt L!,LLtinn dlcLLnletlts st’pponu Ftc violation chriuld he
provtded. CtIrrcmi(lv. ‘up hi ih ‘dIet t!. provide docun,entmior, that proves alher’sie. The
hI learned (tie oitic.Li U! CDI) th,•tt •Ve believe we can’t StLpport ermndLLtberln in all
Lniprclvcnlertts hecLLu’e sve doWt Lnc,w tar sure itrI,cv cause tire or li[ aIa’ risLs.”

There is n, h,mlal appeal procesi nor does CDI) rec’InInend tine. Rsrelv are the Lms dispuled
slitee thee often conic so clr,:e to ([mc end the escrot’ period The nest Sen us rohlem with
tac d:srrc process is Hr. .i e- to te -rrma-_l’.v::n .e refl-,:. e:tin:

Hi c..e<:-n. ire :adrea$ S4 :Or he fR r-j r :iin-4: :
.J-ree-lue rLuj:,irt :ds:.;iee \::,‘eal •.‘-pe. nr,-zes , :.

,. je.e.&. pile Ia

j: ce:: es:r*isl:ed w:i.c: Hre,’,—: ,H-:-e T-JCe55,

(_lcirjv. ::Krc are to cEeLts ccnC w::r] :5 Urter: rxrs.

cre jr tevn. ,eaI_.i:r Ir:::is Ha: o hL :ecaIes or c;vneis Sri i:(ZY)
freis 1 .mpca::c to correct tic :eced c.-.I:,. I. tee a 1c.cinic-:’:rQ c-..ieri
—er:thrc’ iia’i r ocie co tot .

S.:Ojpj -WI lie I-re ic rL’S Cc t,xls rertc: or Jtrec_:.,i tese
,:rcT .:iJr -i-c-re er:er]:ir:L eu _.i lie cit_it: rre Tte CDZ) :rears :o
t—,bci-sed site e31;._::r I. :;r:kec’ar;.

‘I.

IS Sist 3. than C.., ,nrd in



CITY OF SANTA BARBARA ZONING INFORMATION REPORTS

U e City of Ca rpinte r La 5 at! IL tC rts i rig c on (rats]. I a] so requires an Ju spection on Sale Report
which costs $245. .gain. these hezart a the 80s because of illegal dwellings. Inspectors
review the file prior to visiti rig (lie ptuwr and take relevant papers with them and then discuss
with the soller what needs to he do’ie remedy a situation. Staff spends 30-45 itilnules
researching the o thee I es. lb ii %flt C r II spen LI approximately 30 rnimttc s on the property
and at the end at an ins[eeti’i. ‘and tlw homeowner a copy ofthc report. Total time fi,r stair
and inspector is I .75 h c urs Lfl d tip to IWO lOLL ts for a complicated file. Iii contrast (he CDD al

amta Barbara S UI es Ce r tIc rrt I’ L is in. do to cc Ft plc te the ZIR with’ tj I 5 working davs a her an
appfl cati on is it cc ed. . ild I ‘[idly, rite J LI fl• was told Santa Rarbara nspec.t ITS view the
pnipertv flrg and her, research d[e tiles. it, the itirys opinion, this is inel1,cieit.

A Carpirtleria LEtapoctor cs(inrt;t(cd Irialor iula(iomw alt ahoul. one percent. The discrepancy
process 5 sLinpIc. When ott site. (lie lIi’1,ecLiir elk he seller what needs to be clone to remody
a nv vic at i o ci. Re nt cdi es earl hc disc i.LIse I wt ru rite i tupecto r until both sides arc sali s lied.
\\:Licrc there ire clerical CITOrS. tIle City will cleati OICFI, tip.

The cost ore City ofSanra firbara LIFt is 465. which is lie liiizhesl in the state, however. the
(owl cn.st can easily exceed l,otJ. Ir a hotnei’wmtcr lbp[ite tile ttndtngs and staff does
aij<li(jonal rescarcE,, the ojsts begin (ti c’ejlale H chamwes tn[Lst be ‘jade, new permits must he
scqtiired, ccni iftEte pcntiit or a demolition. Tlik would be ii’ .9dditicIl to any requirctnen( 11w
new plan’s. While Stat[Usa:.% LIlt departnient is tCcI[Ue neutral’ these chuxgcs arc hi ceess oF
other jurisdietir!rt., t.)ther n’tim’icmpliries cEujrLe ttIILcll less for this nc ot’rcport: the City [‘los
.‘\ngclcs cliLiret S70 ZL P,tsadcmLm S l(i, Ven(ttL, $35, nrjd Cai1’icttcria 5245. ci-ordin to the
(‘[flU 7[Rm alone eiiera(e ‘‘vet $Ni.i.oilt., anrttiarly.

ANALYSIS

_.le I7Ic z:.::,Ies ::K ucr rae ic Ht.er Iv::’ .9 Rca’ [sL9’ _rarIsor Dis.:sur,r S:_:r.r.’a’
35—F.’. :‘. i’,a’r’,ti.ii. S.,L:r,cl:, Talc ssoriiial ‘vr tver’ac a ro.e%:orr

:T:seeii,’;: reT’ flea. jose :cdr:s: protc.s..:’a Easre., .rc .e:Ier n.• ce :e .n:nfl

h-jr—arE ,‘c’arcr.r 3::’ :Ic:d%. %__:r a ‘:“re’ “ —ara?-,:oo vir accqtrc

.125t0 ac s:wcl svsIc:i: ,,:W. w_:e- ira ‘‘e ,,.•.1”s ,te-e, to reef ieee’s rersir rer:ac:r’.
or .:‘ r:.-.er: ‘--—t-eII-

. lIe.ze or :;i:safe iKco .:rr,3rIs are er’ leuy.ca arj r,l’
C :ii;a t:e Zc,’u’i ;I.r”jrIrar.r. :—te

:ic”ever. he p:.-e.’1ieI: :irair. t:- ILi Irle r.e’fle d:I:2enee C: it I_’DD is K- ::rrct “.1,;

5,1:5. ‘,v:lEc’. 2cnclait’ ,dE:I’u’rj ‘k.rle ,_ :e (h. Niere tar cr_c t:c Cd te Jjr’.
“CT :;rlr frr xr’rcl’i eone er :1:030 are niJire .:‘c::s deej te Ci::. e’ree:s re

C’Y) e e,teI’eci C L e I r nh,einoe I a_ec-s

r’srec’ors .vvai to I: CC tW.: :krr re’:. r.’h- ‘: : .‘w’h’Ie ne’v level — regu ,ariers arc

aprl:e.n E:Ka:IsisteriI ‘,‘::‘ rr rirce.ar nj esen. c eccasic’s, w’ Irk’ sa:nc i:’D.a_a, r.

i’:Cxi’r,r’c he is’ 71e-I’ra I:’, c ZIG :l a ri ulir Dxx-r1’ Sra:ni::12 *e rcr:J .*m I

,4- I) Santa 3arhara Ccun:v Uracj



CITY OF SANTA BARBARA ZONING INFORMATION REPORTS

to 20 4. [his property remained unchanged during these years (no jew COFISEZile nail. additions or
deriioIioni performed) arid was repoi-Ied as lo] lows:

Ziks On One Properly For Yc!’ n 1997 o 20 [4

Rdroouu — —- Full Bnthroo’ns Hdlt Sath’oonn t1nrjcioiis

—

________________

4

___________

- Yoiiing& Bi,i[diiia
200I)

___________

4 —

_____________________________________

2002 4 -I i[d the

— Rdn

- ‘ll rt:. Ensrr:-:: :c:-r ,_-r_ .m1..i a:c !f.,e ,r.:

‘rrt_i:’.. tr :__l:_r: -

I-I Jre- e:can,le. a prozertv .isre,r a ZR 2s .: :n-.-fr ic Cry ::ie:lea::x:s !: :i

.rs a iblex. One ZE{ ia,r a:cd ruat ince Ii:e—e -. er -w pe;rr:ts z lenrer: ur .

rssJlrK-C the u piex vas Fc1lter TI-c re’ 7lR )j tire prxvn nzrJ:l:ars;iwc twre
“Crc !rJ >-r:r :: 2T: :1 :-:ra)- -i :1- - C50.. 7enir:14 was r : pre sin I:.. .1:.: : I:c : r : : C fl

l:a-rxerc :l:-t

-‘ “L,uen ptt Tw rropcr eider a cicud uu::ch is reflected I:: —c t,[L’l ‘K•_’i cec’

re .,,.e e,irrrle, Urese dacisci:s can cause ard>l:rp .:F l:-’,i-c.ui!- it: cl:lJ:cr_a_y. IC

(it, s :cs:der_rs. Many are eficr. urk: stre tu >e n:.ie:.rNea*_ Jr r:iea::xi

cIr iii: rrses. -‘ v:c -ar-cr- :S :c-iu:- c-itt. aIr etlen :i-c’- :.; (. lute::’ L:a-s. Bark>’ ,rc:
s!t:ats Jficr —e: or: a:: i;lr’ l- d_*essed iina:d:e:c.v ciar .2 ::tc Je a

:r:insac:.r: : re_l> It ri—c *:ver Dzks ru: .rc.<rog.. f Q-l:ar.% c.I)cccn— Tire
rr,.e>rr> ‘vl. “cU0r flJr ±2:11:12 cost :xrcd tev Fe 02:u;. .:osr :5

r:e Ier nv :i&:o ‘at: ue
—

ri. IV rrle xirI;e: I circe, :e tiala:ia:i. t,..:lt_

pays :rs. pal-s or 2a::c c-re rarc-i.L —n L,,nm:s:,: Ic..?.rs rc:.r,: axc’:Ii IS .2,rl,tic.j.

tre buv-rrCu a varI; ‘i.:,a clear 71R s::c( ‘rxe:(ei 0: a

fiuiure. The next Time the house is cn the ,narlsi he eune1[ se]kr ha no piuaranteo :iDlslbn
wI I] ot be cited. v 0] a’ iii> the fi Din e IwneT 1 d not corn in it. bill will hr rccj U rod t aba Ic.

the wurding 1)1 the v,olation in ZfRs is ofien ambiguous. .4 Planning (.OlmnissiOnor was
irotibled b’c such vague terms as mighi encroach. t’nieliiirug appears IC ihere is
evidence.” and appears. considering the weight the ZIR now ]aas. Ihis is prt,cuai-l troubling
when ‘he City feels no oh Ii gali on to ton firm this, but iuisi sts II] at lie Ii ni V. ncr in ust provide
pr Diii thaI the property, in its existing state, is not iii vie I at en. In’ ci es Ii n lv. II itV Attorney
cppn yes this vague language as “intend onal lv qtial i fled lang ‘age. Tb CD I, is pro po sing that
in the case of ineonsistcneios/disoropaneies between ZIRs. ii would only rotor for enforc.ernent
the creation of all ii Ioga dwelling unit md [he physical loss of parking. ‘V hat creates a “habitable
space” appears to he discrel.ionary. The CDD stated that areas LLSCd It iT living, euling. or sleeping

2014-15 Sanla Barbara County Grand J,iiv 7



CITY OF SANTA BARBARA ZONING INFORMATION REPORTS

arc what makcs a room Thahi able.” Hoever. [or 25 years a storage room in lb home that had
bccn coii• cried to an cill U e aId tL L to con duct bu si lie ss as such during that time, was doomed
an ui’pcnn Ited “]iali tab I space. C I ire nil, staff is pro pos big chanajil g hahi tahl c space to
tlic creati { m el n C” II III r area o t net’ conditional space. - At thc City Council in cc tin g. this

was de Hn ed as h a ii h Cal tl rid F CO nd it Lolling. - A nteinber of the Co uTici I asked “fn your
mind. is this prec’e?’’

In an other pro po 5a CD U IS S LI gec Sr rio a F [C . \ dmi ni strati v C Z mill g Approval Process to
reduce or Wave zoning staticl&ds ttlicri there arc unctear c.i ly records, discrepancies in the record
(including in the Z IRs. or t cvi don I [haL I he un p ft cern en I Ii as been there for a very long time.
i.e. 50 vcars. When (licrc are unclear records and lisrrcpanc[es in the records, and it is cvidont
an ilnprovccncn( vas on (he site prior to 1q74, those improvements could be eligible fin this
aliproaI. The t’•ord c,,uId’ i problematic as it invokcs a judgment call which could he
reversed 1ie,i hue ho[ic again collies cr1 ritarkor. [lie Jury has concerns about this.

I au n v , re often Ca I lcd o Lit ‘hc ii [IC [I Spcc k ir d aorees with the l ndings of the
pletiotIS inspector. his proposal ap[ioars Lu, set up uncertallit) or hitiire sellers and buyers.
With tlic (.DUs more vigorou% l[lhRt—u1l pU[iC, tile .It[n• is concerned as to how violations.
both major and [iiiriflr. vill h ircLLel. Widuotil ielithiliiv, /ifts arc a wortfihss cloctuneni
both the buyer and lie adler.

Absurd as it suu,uds. portion, )arOc5 risod tbr storage a doomed to hate created a “physical
loss [if pailcint,” md theretore a nnaior violation /R will slale. ‘. ..Ihe ‘VL}rkheRC[l and
cuh’,uets encroach into the rcqtiircd parkirm area in 110 garage Ra City 7.ciiiing Ordinance, two
covered parki’m spaces ore req’.[ircd arid must He maintained at all ‘Flues. This nteans a 20 by
JO loot covered tinobsta,ctccl panktng space h Ha1i [FTC yIryIc is ILsed rot a workshop or For
at°rir_c. LI out he clea’ed OLLI fli,.s s where coimnorl scnsc coeics into pav. lie Pun
t,nderstanda the ‘iced li,r u,EH.Iteer parking. nit ho rcqt[ircriicrim tir :1211 by 20 loot cleared apoe

cx-.: a overly Icarricilve ax.: :r.:’r 5+0:0 40 ,o:-rs ,‘ I :!er roe it,
hi-. i:r Civ s::aj.o rce.iirc aor b:x Hi he Santa Da,or’ ‘na;c.
iccuirhus ‘.-‘cr ra.”. %eers esce’%; :ri,i Ic ,—_e--.l.Lxcns ieed—o ‘:

v sod.

(‘u)N( HS1O\

\.:e:o -:pTi_L :rie’<Iic:iIilu’. i:J:,_.- 5 Scnia Jaruara Cc’t:,:v :.rai:L h._r> rcrrL,s tic:

un:e Zcrr,c l’,it’rn:aiiri: ‘ui.1t la,j al %ri.ri ri,lo p• r ser.i::

tern cvercrcv.r.c. tic 2.15cc:’ jp ‘.t,:b hen a’d Ie ro Pcrier h_olc ct leevearo to;’
once lao Vt Kr : Scc:y:c .s-h: e ,‘ ucze< rrcv’::s hisien-, :h L_R process c:’a:uod arZ
saf: [cg,-t p:. C,,e .flCi. js,’s:rets m.r:o:jccd S_.CT:C.

ix::i-jc:i’r::O’c Rca E’:,;:e T’a’.sar JSJJStre S:.:oacr: 02,1 ‘er aSe_ac- N.’rr_e

::spec:a’rs. ::e:I:, 02,1 5a:iv stacs - :vvrc’:ah’ _e’LcnNe. ri ,,1e,-,:—eJ ‘> ?rofessionZs
in :l:cir k.ds I 2C r,lr ::c r.:c.’ ‘ncr’ e::r.ede rreser”e re.gl:ociaoads aa,nsl
e:oro:owd::i ::a’c bc,,?u’ic ir.:.a a:,l .,l’aIy.

S 2j 4-’ $ Santa Barbara Cur,m’ (__J J’ar5



CITY OF SANTA BARBARA ZONING INFORMATION REPORTS

The (i ty of Santa Barbara needs to stand by the Zoning in’ cinliati Ii Reports pmciuced by the
PLui tang Division of the Community Development Department. Th f’.Ur-mEse7kcs-mUstbe—

I a ‘do is tin professional and un Jtir to the in n ICC it pco ji! inp r v r my ii to sell their
homes. tile onus should he on the City to prove that ‘‘olac’,,’’ eisns and riot art the seller to
ro•e tlmt cite does not exist.

Once he (_‘Lty aHIcs ILS ollicial sea] to the d,cuntcttt. Lt should stand behind its stariarid Lhe
inlronyiatioii it pr I Lde%

FINDINGS AND RECOMMENDATIONS

Finding 1
‘ tic-ia ‘v of carra BarEr-a N irraIir ejx :i:sliljle.t ii.

.xipra:t: rLrpJse. tc sLate r rcL:r rir’ :ele sa:cni;aI.ls ir a-.wI. z Rd :u:e

I,a,.s or E):ch>urc >Lnerer -

Recommendation 1
flt: tue Civ a’ Santa 3aroara dccarc Zo:,i:, hirtalir’ lq- vl:sLn iii :ed ar

nturniati onal ptH pox-s only -

Finding 2
- pretcc 3 eta Sr,Ia Ba* . Crrr1LiE S )e t*pa:f;:t Lprmtaat s ha: ii
.rtorn’aE’: ar:1: ruled h (c Plr,_::_g Tev*iciaz:.lir.specter. it is bsL:i:cd lne’cr

r.:cJ cid ::al .:1er: Tm: ——.c:e prr-.tti:s c::sencc. rc :sce

Recommendation 2
ru a 1: 1 Sarru: _a— .rcur:i e ,_riev Jeparnea i::sz::::e a7a.-c. Li::: -:

:a1crirj: :trj:e I-itt .:e pcpiu tered ojr:r.c :m .rc:,: :,w.,rr’ U:’ the CL’ tl:e

tie a .c:_.ai pr iel:si etcsrac.

Finding 3
Hnnaeiv,,ers. lIkT having spent many hundre.U& ilten tI]’iJssl]ds of doIlkrs 10 es-trthlisIr that an

iIIi]’TcrveIlicnl W5 icrrnittetL and that the Cin was incorrecl. xliii hear he cost 0, the
I, gal ion -

Recommendation 3
it at if the alleged v iii ati ens prove t., he incorrect, the ( dv of S .9!]’ a Ii nil a ra mci Tl•IhtLl-se lie
ho In CII Wi er hr all costs inc tirred in the subsequent invest gal o I]

Finding 4
A Cdv of Santa l3arha,-a Zoning In himiation Re],on with no violations does not guarantee a

I Ut ui-c report tt•i Ii no show alleged unreported violations by prcvi oils ow iicrs -

2014—15 Santa Barbara Count>- (1,-and JuI-y 9



CITY OF SANTA BARBARA ZONING INFORMATION REPORTS

Recommendation 4
Ths lie City I SanLi Barbara provide certainty to lie bt’yc r by cern Iv ig each Zoning

In I urn’ Lion ReporL as acc urs.Ce.

flndin S
a vic,Iatiuti rcpud on a City of Santa Barbara ZOnLLig littc,rit,ata’ii Report Is IIant{ to he

inconect the report is amended but the i llcgcd violation L nol necssan I rernve[ h, the
Conimuitiry Devdoprneat Dcpartmcnr.

Recommendation 5
Lcrr a:oritati.:r_ kerr jrx in Ie i1tT—ecl. ii viola:en or

_fl:ECIV rrc::t

Finding 6
u ;,rrai j?pea_ Iarcce55 u: in_text to Jisninto ;,- Ft ri Jct_Lat .tDnrciIs p0_ness.

Recommendation Ga
*e City c S anita Ba_—n,ara a r’.i nit ar area. pot ne Lx;. C] - re in U: sice:fle3:ar

Recommendation 6b
I hal lie Zuntng Iii FULL] n Report “C] tide a prom ne nti’ slated rid d C U”, c’tcd appeal

Finding 7
fl:e (mv Zo:r:rc rtiarr:3::.:i -t---.-r PLnri,:a Ie-&nnti, I nrc:-, u. I. rtniv reseacl
::k-:rra pc-rv rerzs rri;r U tic <it.

Recommendation 7
ar;jn_’ TetZtn:icna L cspec;o:rev;rw e:n-.n .t:’ 7n,nr n a_c !%L.

finding 8
he basic c,,ct Cit uI• Santa RarI’,,-;t Zenbig Jiiferi]]sIjoi] Kepon is S-1(,S.oi,. IhC higliesi in

lie SLoe. (iLher nn’nicipaiities charge consideraNy less.

RecommendationS
j he price ion- a Zoning lnlbniialion Report should be consisnei]l will, other municipalities.

Finding 9
The requirement that a single —family reside rice main lain a ci set ed - in’ ths In tic’ eLI. 20 foot by 20
foot parking space is overly rcstriclivc.

Recommendation 9

I 0 2014-] 5 Santa KaThora Coanly Grand Jury



CITY OF SANTA BARBARA ZONING INFORMATION REPORTS

I thc City to wri Ic thi parking 0 rclinance requ irotnont jct a in o rI r ii Ic man ncr while
kcçin on-sheet parking under control.

Finding 10
Fhcre i nu .raiI1ng manual for staff to conduct curmihent 7unLnz f’lIIF1nstioti Report

fl4WC Liens and reports.

Recommendation 10
Tint i he City of Santa Liarhara write a dcLJ led hrutninz n;iIl Lial [C LILLIL the research ol ic [Cs.

i• iXXU

REQUEST FOR RESPONSE

P.
- a 33. etuF .rc’ :c co enuneil a:V

ci lra:rc in mis ro port :srrqt.e <[l :rrp —c U;: iim to he ‘hi -

recemxnz::zMions :‘a:_r_’:-’ rr—ner V jhw.ii2nrc be ajccrcd :Krs tor ms rcpjrL
w Li F Liar) aatod rc, n_rn e pcr - br eac -

City of Santa Barbara City Coundl —90 Days
F’lmrc - 2.3.’.. e. &

5. ca. —. I,. dr I

21)14-I $ Santa Rarbaja County Grand Jury



CITY OF SANTA BARBARA ZONING INFORMATION REPORTS

Appendix A

Minor Violations Listed on ZER’s issued during July 2014

Zoning ViolMions
• •IRo workbench tnd cahi ncts encroach nro the required parking area of t]le. garage- By

Cliv Zontng (rd’ narlcc Lw! i covered parking spaces are required and must he maintained
at all Limes

• Traib cans and a wood pie ire hei rig rI• red [sic] in the reqiüred interior setbacks
• •iiic trash encLosure cnr’ache [‘ic] ilk the front yard setback
• •llic viewing deck encr.’;tcFies into rite required interior setback
• The de ‘ci ted 5t0 race sited rid p [a v h Lice eric ri I ic b liii Lb e required interior setbacks
• •[hc tbnt frilce ceet’ [It ‘nLiuiuin aLlowabLe height ofthree and one halllèet wiiilin

[rJ feet a [otiL lc,L [inc jul o.iihiii [dicer ofeirhcr side ofa driveway for a djsiance of
20 ICCL buck from Lhc [rc.int [or Line, [lie front hedur ecceds he required height ui [nec
Lnd one—haLt Leer 6-it when Located within a triangular aTra tin either side ofa
drivecaa niea,ured as folLows: A W[’eri a driea directLy rht’ts a portion ofa street
improved with a sidewalk arid a parkw:u>, bc LliaIlg[e is nieas(Lrecl on two sides by a
distance oftec, reet LIJH trim ihc ‘dc ola dri wL> and en feet lO back from the
front lot hrtc

• The storage [ied eircituacltes jar!) tie rcqtiired interior setback
• The p[av srn’erurc cncro.,c es rita lie required illLer’Ir erhaci

• •Lhc l;NO pccThLt toer [.u.1 bc ‘car .iewing t{e.s in rite rear ‘ard eqiired in [go •fhe
deck reqt’Lrc5 a clew buiLding pcirliL and leir reviewapproval

• The air c,ndilInniit unit u•as added ott he rootoltlic garagc ‘viLLioul die required design
rev en appr!.va

• ho je:ael:ed -•••c ‘j• :nicrFe toajioxi n’riy: :-ard

• it ijI.icl-e: sr.ai: ?clace ‘cxl: was acoec L: *e re_:j:rI rrrrI. :n- ar:aonov:
r1;1J,e tee j.red a di:e

• . it cei.c nj no :.le nc_n erw:r,sI:ro aro caR-ui

ic ;e:jred irene,

• re woe:. sora ‘lou Cr Ca zic< -ri.:- he reql:jec :nion-:-r serbac
• The pain Inn arc ac ci;TZCOr ire laoooror:ae.: -. r:a ic ien., sc±acks
• :)eEr.s. co: :rI;::;.i:l ri::ar::•.S. .a :rai .zir re ,e’:i: s:erred trier—api _ru-rE.:r

• Thr<j—eje sl-e,E ja 1,r real of r:ir A erora re ira. - tic
• ‘liscol.a:Ka:isi:::i:c ire ki:i i,,ed i-: c.Nao ii ri B

ire u-I t(red wic jrcce rid e9eoil into rear

• ::e:rc.:is :r —.rca— - :rii2c-I, nas Ott wr—_i__r K 4C 5_urerhack it

a ::o:tI i)re.}-Nj:il.-i% ii pr:)ta ,‘P[:rnri: Co :oiissioi Iestt.rr i.5_d.

;\j’-4ir’ .).r_rt.. Ii. crienie .ed...izo :re.!.c To cti:Niian sizd ruic 0 Uc rren,ed
it ?ai;ijr ( cirl:z:s5:c;: i_ha net is,r_t r:l_ H: re.,.

2 4-I $ S.riia Rrhtirii Caur:v Grarj Jun



CITY OF SANTA BARBARA ZONING INFORMATION REPORTS

fluilding Violations
• 1 lie re is [sic] no permits on record ] br the harheque i rd atid eec r r cal a pp1 ea,icc S I -vic• I

for the outdoor cooking area
• A door has been added to the carpon without Lie rcquLucd percilir %iLiiin lw Iront ‘ilteri[.Fr

seriueks
• RenioIeI vss done to create a fourth bcdroocn jihout [‘U’ Iii no 1<1111 it

• there is rio xrrnhLt on record lbr the attached patio cover a the rear or rlje loLba

• lie qa,rx !Ie ide urIJ,e LLaace were eu!Istrtictc.1 wLl[lotLt ti’.c rceui’ed per’vtL

• Te :TeI-. in he re:.tr :3:Ee Dxxiv wtjc Lu; ‘viri.j! it ..e.a:_j oen:i

• lEe uas ccc_,:rtjra was Er:: il_;ri Jtr7i’
• ic hjm--:r y.Lr*__ a— ccrs1r:cTe wil:aul pcrx.Is
• Tcrc Ore k rerrrs cc —e Fr.: Ira cc’:icric ::. I: • ne :er Lirhc.1 patio caer

• ha pa’ rL i± rEh:i F neh .irienerE v.:s cej:sri;a ad .vstoii i
• leT9_t:.- for Inc wasner cncr ::,ckjr’ :i

• The k:ci:en las aCt rC:n:dCIad az3 ei:Utred :0 :w ; art tie aInl:iv ream ic
lov.r ante I I fleerr1•rarier Krr.J it - i a ,e\’ r:v ric.Jed aa,c ho
wn sner C V01 :SxUD S ‘voro :ninad I rim iie J tci c—i x—ea Ic tt, tra’ -‘ la::r_drv s
;as also ad rca to nc garage Al ‘.. or a> cone wit ‘10111 Ui e req a ‘cu pci i,i is

• T]wre is no pefiul]L on record forthe air coirditioiIiiI2 unit on lie ‘dc ul ilw divellwg
• T:e side rane cover was 7000:. wirn.: tha reqt.:rec re:r,.
• Pa kixicr was an,3alcd ar.jera re-ri. i,;_& i:: 2*) sL[’::<’—xxxxx.

pcr:nT v Ess_ic. hu: :w’er ;:,ed I: arerri na( :,;i:C:K:i s:ad 1a added
am:a_iJ::::ia —mr -is cEruge .vas :,a:ox:’.r.cc:od a re,:tc rea.
d—

• ha a:rxhe. cnn —n_rue ra(-T—- ‘‘a, addeci ‘.it,:i;: i:C rcqii:rc0 :arrll: .‘,r .i:rkcI-eu
srraeiLrc rcrr-eJ :_:drg r-rtt

• There is a - rrcrrc :.r :l:c -c.,— a:..c red ruOt, a
• an a.r c(rn’ nrc c-i,: s-dec i- mae a—.rfrf:nc Snitico Ark t.: :1.c re_I:rrJ [,1I.

• be iee.oarvx wrs acoc-iw In oil :, crc. .i; red perr I: c-ki aesIg:: civ
appruial. Also. the ofleilia] plans for the duple’ Iii’c carptoi where ihe exisTir,
aIage aiaehocl TO tJ’ni XXX> is Il!c-aLcd The enclosure tftj,e rarpon itqtiircd a
bu ‘cling penn I a]i d de si gil review app ]•O v

• The trellis covers and deck wore addcd witbotil he req i iired permits

• •l•] ic s H c> at was adc ed in 01 e tip stairs bathroom will] otil bc a C’ Ui rcJ pen ii

• 4 building permit is required for the side attached pali ire] lix
• lhcrc is rio record olapennil. ft,r the bar siath intlir gucsl L’cdroo,r,. Funher. Zoning

a] lows onl v a jive i t long counter
• The building permit for the deck (BLI)2000-XXX XX) icus issued in 2000 but expired ii

1002
• ‘lie sink ant) eleetheal outlet were added to the outdoor cou,ilcr wi ihilul Ihe required

peimit

2014—15 Santa Barbara County Grand Jury 13



CITY OF SANTA BARBARA ZONING INFORMATION REPORTS

• •ihe viewing deck was added without the required building permit
• Ilie patio cover was added without the required pennil
• 1 hcre is no permit on record w he al we at the rear of the dwelling. •rlais area is not

habitable space.
• Pte wall between Iwo o [the bedrooms was removed to create one master bedroom. This

work was done Wi lb UI he req at ted petmit
• The basement has been converted to habitable space wilh bedroom and lUll hathi-oorn

without building permits
• A half bath was added to one ii (he bedrooms without building pernuts
• here are no penlilts oil me for the washer and dryer iii the storage area ol the basement
• There ate no permits on file for the conversion of (lie carport in a garage by (he addition

of a garage door
• ‘lie trash end ox ure was buth without permits
• The half bathroom in the garage was added without the reqait-ed peimi

14 2014-15 Santa Barbara Counts- Grand Jut-v



CITY OF SANTA BARBARA ZONING INFORMATION REPORTS

APPENDIX B

Planning Technician XI Job Qualifications, ca 2005:

Knowledge of:
• Basic principles aTrd concepts cd urban planninc.
• Basic e(rnipuLer functions.

• Basic report writing, research methods and data corrpikrtion.
• Basic principles and techniques cC inspection.
• Modern Eflce methods, practices, proccduros arid computer equipment.

• Databases such as Crystal. Access. Execi.
• Pertinent laws, ccrdes rrrdinarices. and regulations related to planning actiVities.
• Principles and concepts of urban plarming.
• Penal codc arrest and seizure procedure.
• Methods and techniques of conflict resolution.
• Complex principles and techniques of inspecliorr.

Ability to:
• L coin to understarr d and in teipiet laws jim] cr1 ying general plans zo ii rig, and applicable

cnvirormrcntal laws arid re grLl ati )n 5.

• learn to inlerprel. planning and zcning programs to the general public.
• Learn to enforce proper zoning requirements.
• Learn to work ‘-i fr diver-xe c u] tural and soc io—econoinic groups.
• ( jiipi Ic technical and statistical inforrnat ion arid prepare basic repor s.
• Rcad arid i nterprel nil appi ng and s tirve y late, site plans, zoning codes Icgal dc.seri ph ons

and related in innaIi rn

• F.stahlisth and ‘maintain databases suet, as Cryslal Access, Excel.
• Understand and carry out oral an LI mTitten directions.
• C nninltrni cate clearly and concis ci y, both oral I yand in writ’ rig.
• Establish and main lain cooperative work rig relationships with those contacted in he

course of work.

• Maintain physical condition approprialc to the perft,nnance of assiaied duties and
responsibilities which may intel ude Ihe Ihllowing:
-- Sitting and standing hrr cx tended periods oftime
-- Operating equipmenl.

• Maintain effective audio-visual dixc,iriiinalir,n and perception nccdcd for:
—- Making observations

Conrnrunicating with others

-- Reading antI Trting
-- Operating related equipment

2014-15 Santa Barbara County Grand Juiy 15



CITY OF SANTA BARBARA ZONING INFORMATION REPORTS

• Intcg,rct and en Li-ce applicable City. Stkite, and Federal codes, ordinances, and
regulation related In inning, planning. aud enviromnental laws.

• Rn ha-ce pioper ZOnilw requironietits.
• Foster and usc teeliniq Lies O[ con lii c resolution while working cooperatively with those

contacted in the course ofwork,
• Eticetively and conipetenIy pre.sent presentations to Planning Commission,

Experience and Training Guidelines
• Au y combination of experience and train i rig that W( I til d likely provide the required

knowledge and abilities is qualifring, A typical way to obtain lie knowledge and abilities
would be:

Experience:
• A nilninitiin oF two years of plaiming or rolated expedenoc is typically reLliured
• Training: Lquivnlent to the complelion al the twelfth grade supplemented by eollegc

fevel course work in pl art ni ng, ge( i graph y h LiSi lies S at] ministration or rd ate.d field.

16 2014-15 Santa Barbara County Grand Jury



CITY OF SANTA BARBARA ZONING INFORMATION REPORTS

Appendix C

Violations Called Out for One Property: 1997 — 2014 with No New
Construction, Additions or Demolition Performed

1997 violations
Zi,n i ‘ig Violation: A portion of the carport encroaches into the required intel-icr yard setback.

Building VioIatios:
I. The hot tub/spa and deck were constructed without the required permits.
2. 1hc cat-port and attached trellis were consti-ucted without the reqithed permits.
3 Whore there s a poe1 )r In ‘dy 0 water over 18 inches. gates opening through fence or

wa]l enclosures sba]l he equipped with a self—closing and self-latching dc’-ice

2000 Violations — Nonc notcd

2002 violations
Bnilding Vie In lion: (1 ates leading to pool area must he self—closing and self—I ateh in g.

2011 Violations
Building Violatio”s Petmirs also caot be located for the harheq no, sink and electrical
applicances [sic] for the outdoor cocking area. (Note, this inspector indicated “nc.)ne Fhr
Zoning Ordinance or Building Code violaticttsj

2014 Violations:
Building Violations

- There are no pe,mits on record for the barbeque, sink and eIeetical applieances [sic] [or
the outdoor cooking area,

2. A door has Iwon added to the caqn rI i thu ut the required permit (within the front and
uteri or setbacks) -

2014-15 Santa Barbara County Grand Jury 17



City of Santa Barbara 
Response to the Santa Barbara County 

Grand Jury 2014-2015 Report on 
Zoning Information Reports  

 
 

Finding 1:  While the City of Santa Barbara Zoning Information Report, instituted in 1974, has 
served an important purpose, the State now requires many of these safeguards through the 
Real Estate Transfer Disclosure Statement. 

 
Response to Finding 1:  The City disagrees wholly with this Finding.  

As stated in Santa Barbara Municipal Code (SBMC) §28.87.220, the primary purpose of a 
Zoning Information Report (ZIR) is to “provide information to the potential buyer of 
residential property concerning the zoning and permitted use of the property.” While 
the zoning designation of a property is easily obtained, the “permitted use of the 
property” is often subject to interpretation and requires a working knowledge of City 
ordinances, rules and records. In addition, the SBMC requires that a ZIR provide the 
following information: 

• Street address and parcel number  
• Zoning classification and permitted uses 
• Occupancy and uses permitted as indicated and established by City records 
• Any discretionary or administrative acts of record 
• Any special restrictions in use or development which apply to the property 
• Any known nonconformities or violations of any ordinances or laws 
• The results of a physical inspection for compliance with the Zoning Ordinance 

and for compliance with Chapter 14.46 of the SBMC 
• A statement of whether the real property has had a Sewer Lateral Inspection 

Report prepared within five years prior to the ZIR 
 

Most of the above items are not included in the Real Estate Transfer Disclosure 
Statement.  Although the State mandated disclosure statements encourage potential 
buyers to conduct their own investigations of the property, no City record check is 
required of either the seller or buyer as part of those disclosures.  Furthermore, the Real 
Estate Transfer Disclosure Statement only requires a property owner to state if they are 
“aware of” any additions, alterations, or repairs that may have been made without the 
necessary permits or may not be in compliance with building codes.  Many members of 
the public are unaware of the extent of improvements that require a permit and are not 
familiar with how to research the permit history, permitted uses, legality of structures 
or if the property contains legal nonconforming improvements.  A ZIR is necessary to 
properly inform buyers of the property’s status in terms of City records.  Without a ZIR, 
a buyer does not have the City’s perspective regarding the permitted uses of the 
property, zoning, nonconformities, or unpermitted construction.  Staff’s analysis of the 
facts based on a physical inspection of the property and historical record in the street 
and planning files is important. 

ATTACHMENT 2



City of Santa Barbara 
Response to the Santa Barbara County 
Grand Jury 2014-2015 Report on Zoning Information Reports 
Page 2 of 11 

 
In addition to providing important information to the seller and buyer, ZIRs provide an 
important community benefit.   ZIRs help maintain and protect neighborhoods and the 
City’s housing stock by ensuring new construction meets codified health, safety and 
general welfare requirements.  City staff has heard from the public that they appreciate 
ZIRs because they know the City will inspect the property when a property is sold.  Many 
neighbors are reluctant to report a potential violation on their neighbor’s property for 
fear of retaliation.   

ZIRs also protect the community by providing a strong incentive for property owners to 
seek necessary City approvals and permits before making improvements.  Most 
property owners are aware that ZIRs are required at the time of sale of the property and 
that improvements made on the property without the proper permits will be identified 
at that time.  The elimination of the requirement for ZIRs could result in fewer property 
owners obtaining the proper City approvals or permits which may lead to an increase in 
illegal dwelling units, substandard construction, and need for future enforcement.  For 
these reasons the City’s adopted Housing Element supports the continuation of the ZIR 
program. 
 

Recommendation 1: That the City of Santa Barbara declare Zoning Information Reports 
voluntary, and used for informational purposes only. 
 

Response to Recommendation 1: The Recommendation will not be implemented 
because it is not warranted or is not reasonable.   

This policy decision has been discussed at several recent public hearings before the 
City’s Planning Commission (Sept. and Oct. 2013, Nov. 2014) and City Council (Aug. 2013 
and Feb. 2015).   At the conclusion of the most recent City Council hearing in February 
2015, the City Council supported maintaining the mandatory requirement for ZIRs and 
directed staff to implement the recommendations of the ZIR Working Group and 
Planning Commission for improvements to the ZIR preparation process.   

Eliminating the requirement for a ZIR or only using the ZIR for informational purposes 
will not negate the fact that a violation exists on a property; it will only potentially delay 
action to abate the violation.  The City Council understood this in February when it 
supported the mandatory ZIR requirement and directed staff to implement the ZIR 
process improvements recommended by the ZIR Working Group and Planning 
Commission.   

It is important to note that a ZIR disclosure does not create the violation(s). 
Construction without required City approval or permit is a violation whether or not it is 
identified in a ZIR, and will continue to be required to be abated at the time the next 
building permit is sought or when a complaint is received.  If this recommendation were 
implemented, in many cases, potential violations would not come to light for months or 

ATTACHMENT 2



City of Santa Barbara 
Response to the Santa Barbara County 
Grand Jury 2014-2015 Report on Zoning Information Reports 
Page 3 of 11 

even years after the sale has closed.  By that time it could be extremely challenging for 
the”new” property owner to hold the previous property owner responsible and obtain 
an appropriate remedy for the violation(s). Although the implementation of this 
recommendation might simplify the real estate transaction, it could lead to more 
property owners being upset and wishing they knew about the violations when they 
bought the property.  Identifying zoning and building violations at the time of sale of a 
residential property gives the seller and buyer the same information from the City on 
the status of the property and the opportunity to decide how to resolve the violations.  
City staff has received few complaints regarding the ZIR process from prospective 
buyers of a property, or neighbors.  It is important to consider the many perspectives on 
the value of ZIRs and the purpose they serve to protect the community at large.  
 

Finding 2:  The practice of the City of Santa Barbara Community Development Department is 
that if information cannot be located by the Planning Technician II inspector, it is assumed it 
never existed and that owners must produce proof of its existence, or face violations. 
 

Response to Finding 2:  The City partially agrees with this Finding.  

The ZIR inspector (Grand Jury utilizes the term “Planning Technician II inspector”) uses 
many resources during the preparation of a ZIR.  In addition to a site visit, the primary 
information sources include the street and planning files and the City’s archive plans. If 
information in City files or archive plans does not include certain improvements 
observed during the site inspection, the ZIR inspector performs additional research.  
This research involves a number of sources including: Sanborn Maps, consultation 
and/or additional site inspection with City building inspectors, historic survey 
documentation, and aerial photographs. Staff also consults with the property owner or 
real estate agent to discuss the improvement and requests any information which could 
help establish when the improvement in question first appeared on the site.  Staff 
sometimes asks the property owner to obtain the County Assessor’s Residential Building 
Record which can help establish when the improvement in question first appeared on 
the property.  Records that establish when an improvement was constructed help staff 
determine what City Codes were in effect at the time, and what standards and permits 
were necessary.  Based on this research, staff uses its best judgment to resolve issues 
and, in many cases, decides to recognize an improvement as being legal when there is 
some credible evidence to support such a conclusion.  However, if information in the 
record clearly indicates that an improvement is in violation of the Zoning Ordinance or 
lacks the necessary building permit, staff must note it as a violation. 

If there are no original permits or original archive plans to reference, a note is added to 
the ZIR that states: “There are no original building permits or plans on file for the 
dwelling. Therefore, no verification can be made as to the number and legality of the 
existing configuration of rooms.” In these cases, any other obvious violations may be 



City of Santa Barbara 
Response to the Santa Barbara County 
Grand Jury 2014-2015 Report on Zoning Information Reports 
Page 4 of 11 

noted in the ZIR, evidenced by the date of construction, location of improvement (in 
relation to a known improvement), or apparent health or safety violations.  
 

Recommendation 2: That the City of Santa Barbara Community Development Department 
institute a policy that if staff cannot prove that the property was altered during the current 
ownership, the City presumes the alteration previously existed. 
 

Response to Recommendation 2: This Recommendation will not be implemented 
because it is not warranted or is not reasonable.    

The implementation of this Recommendation would neither be in compliance with the 
requirements of City’s Zoning Ordinance nor further the purposes of a ZIR.  In addition 
to basic information regarding the property such as street address, assessor parcel 
number, zone classification, and permitted uses of the property, SBMC Section 
28.87.220.D requires “any known nonconformities or violations of any ordinances or 
law” to be included in the ZIR.  This section of the Code states that “any” nonconformity 
or violation should be noted, not just ones that occurred during the current ownership.   

Furthermore, given that the City is granted police powers by the state, which includes 
the responsibility to regulate and protect the general health, safety and welfare of the 
community, staff cannot ignore its responsibility to identify that which might cause 
someone harm or affect their or their neighbors’ welfare. Additionally, Section 1272 of 
the Evidence Code provides that because it is the City’s regular course of business to 
preserve the record of the City, the absence of a record is a trustworthy indication that 
the act or event did not occur, or that the condition did not exist. For these reasons, the 
City has a responsibility to disclose our records as they exist, and note any discrepancies 
therein. 
 
This recommendation operates on a mistaken assumption that if the City presumes that 
the alteration existed when the current owner took ownership that the violation is 
avoided.  However, if an alteration was constructed without permits at a time when 
permits were required, it doesn’t matter who owns the property, the violation exists 
whether or not the violation was actually caused by the current owner. 
 
Furthermore, implicit in this recommendation is the belief that if the violation was 
missed by the inspector for the prior ZIR, or was not abated during the ownership of the 
prior owner, the proper remedy for the current owner who is attempting to sell the 
property is for the City to “legalize” or ignore the existence of the violation.  The City 
disagrees with this recommendation because it doesn’t address the underlying illegality 
of the violation and the remedy only serves to harm the persons who live or own 
property adjacent to the residence on which the violation is noticed. 
 



City of Santa Barbara 
Response to the Santa Barbara County 
Grand Jury 2014-2015 Report on Zoning Information Reports 
Page 5 of 11 

Finding 3:  Homeowners, after having spent many hundreds, often thousands of dollars to 
establish that an improvement was permitted, and that the City was incorrect, still bear the cost 
of the investigation. 
 

Response to Finding 3:  The City agrees with this Finding. 
 

Recommendation 3: That if the alleged violations prove to be incorrect, the City of Santa 
Barbara reimburse the homeowner for all costs incurred in the subsequent investigation. 
 

Response to Recommendation 3: This Recommendation will not be implemented 
because it is not warranted or reasonable.  

City staff utilizes many sources of information to develop complete and fair conclusions 
in a ZIR. Additionally, if questions arise about the age or legality of an improvement, the 
ZIR inspector performs additional research and also consults with the property owner or 
real estate agent to discuss the improvement and requests any information which could 
help establish when the improvement in question first appeared on the site.  Based on 
this research, staff uses its best judgment to resolve issues and, in many cases, decides 
to recognize an improvement as being legal when there is some credible evidence to 
support such a conclusion.  However, if information in the record clearly indicates that 
an improvement is in violation of the Zoning Ordinance or lacks the necessary building 
permit, staff must note it as a violation. 

The majority of the time it is unnecessary for a property owner to hire a consultant to 
resolve these issues at the onset, if at all. City staff encourages property owners to 
contact staff directly when there is concern regarding a noted violation.  Staff will work 
with the property owner to gather information that may help establish the legal status 
of the construction in question. In more challenging cases, owners may find the help of 
a hired consultant beneficial to their cause, but that is a personal decision and not one 
mandated by the City.  
 
The City conducts inspections and prepares ZIRs in good faith.  It is understood that 
property owners may have a different perspective regarding the legality of the 
improvements on their property.  Even when everyone is acting in good faith, disputes 
can arise.  Just because an error is determined to have occurred, it is not necessarily 
appropriate for the City to reimburse costs that it does not require a property owner to 
undertake. 

 
 

Finding 4:  A City of Santa Barbara Zoning Information Report with no violations does not 
guarantee a future report will not show alleged unreported violations by previous owners. 
 

Response to Finding 4:  The City agrees with this Finding, with qualifications. 



City of Santa Barbara 
Response to the Santa Barbara County 
Grand Jury 2014-2015 Report on Zoning Information Reports 
Page 6 of 11 

City staff acknowledges that there may be instances of discrepancies between the 
findings of a current ZIR and a previous ZIR.  Staff estimates that approximately only two 
to four ZIRs per month (or 4-8 %) have some kind of inconsistency or discrepancy with a 
previous ZIR.   

There are various reasons for alleged discrepancies between ZIRs: 1) the level/quality of 
staff research performed during the preparation of previous ZIRs was less than 
acceptable in some cases; 2) the City record is occasionally unclear or lacking altogether; 
3 ) the improvement may have been obscured from view by landscaping or an object 
had been placed over, or in front of, the improvement to obscure the view of it from the 
ZIR inspector, which was later removed; or, 4) the improvement was, in fact, added 
after the last ZIR was completed.  
 

Recommendation 4: That the City of Santa Barbara provide certainty to the buyer by certifying 
each Zoning Information Report as accurate. 
 

Response to Recommendation 4:  The Recommendation will not be implemented 
because it is not warranted or is not reasonable. 

A ZIR is a good-faith effort at full disclosure to a potential buyer of authorized uses and 
occupancy of a property, including zoning violations and improvements constructed 
without City permits or approvals. At the time each ZIR is prepared, it is completed with 
a high level of confidence that it reflects the City’s current record and understanding 
regarding improvements on the property. Potential discrepancies with a prior ZIR does 
not invalidate the current ZIR as being the most accurate account of the property from 
the City’s perspective. 

The certification of accuracy has no effect on the conditions that cause the violation.  
Implicit in this recommendation is the expectation that the City will ignore a violation if 
it was not identified in a prior ZIR, otherwise the certification of accuracy would be of no 
use to the property owner.  The City does not believe this is an appropriate remedy for 
failing to identify a violation, since ignoring the violation only harms the owners or 
residents of the neighboring properties. 

Implementation of this Recommendation would require changes to the ZIR preparation 
process and has the potential of extending the time period required to prepare a ZIR.    
When staff does make an error in a current ZIR, we take necessary steps to correct it 
(that process is further discussed in Recommendation 5). The ZIR Working Group did 
consider including a five-day preview period during which agents could review an 
electronic draft of the ZIR before the ZIR becomes final, and discuss any differences of 
opinion or concerns.  While this option could provide additional assurance that the final 
report represents a consensual understanding of the property’s status, it would 
lengthen the overall turnaround time for ZIRs.   

 



City of Santa Barbara 
Response to the Santa Barbara County 
Grand Jury 2014-2015 Report on Zoning Information Reports 
Page 7 of 11 

Finding 5:  If a violation reported on a City of Santa Barbara Zoning Information Report is found 
to be incorrect, the report is amended but the alleged violation is not necessarily removed by the 
Community Development Department. 
 

Response to Finding 5:  The City disagrees wholly with this Finding. 

If a violation cited in a ZIR is later found to be incorrect, the report is amended or a 
memo is sent to the street file, and any associated enforcement action pertaining to 
that violation is withdrawn.  
 

Recommendation 5: If a Zoning Information Report violation is found to be incorrect, that 
violation be removed entirely from the report. 
 

Response to Recommendation 5: A portion of this Recommendation is currently 
part of the City’s ZIR preparation process, and part of the Recommendation will not be 
implemented because it is not warranted or is not reasonable. 

If a violation is found to be incorrect prior to the final ZIR being posted on the City’s 
website, reference to the violation is removed from the ZIR and a new ZIR (without the 
violation) is produced.  However, if a violation is found to be incorrect soon after the ZIR 
is posted on the City’s website, an amended ZIR is issued with a note included in the 
violation section explaining why the conclusion was incorrect and indicates that the 
violation no longer pertains to the property.  If several months have passed since the 
issuance of the ZIR, a memorandum is sent to the public street file that explains the new 
finding and that the violation no longer pertains to the property.   

In order to maintain thorough and accurate public records, staff does not modify a ZIR 
after the ZIR has been sent to the street file and posted to the City’s website. Since the 
ZIR becomes part of the public record once it’s posted, staff cannot know if a ZIR has 
been downloaded and distributed to other persons not associated with the sale of the 
property, and it can cause confusion if two different ZIRs are circulating with different 
dates and conclusions.   For that reason, staff appends to previously posted ZIRs, and 
does not remove them entirely from the record. 

 
Finding 6:  There is no formal appeal process. An “intent to dispute” is not an adequate appeals 
process. 
 

Response to Finding 6:  The City disagrees wholly with this Finding.  

Currently, the ZIR form states that an owner or agent has ten days from the receipt date 
of a ZIR to appeal its findings, and no fee is charged.  In order to appeal the findings of 
the ZIR, a written letter stating the grounds for the appeal and any supporting 
documentation regarding the disputed finding(s) of the ZIR must be submitted.  The 
owner or agent first works with the inspector that prepared the ZIR to resolve the 



City of Santa Barbara 
Response to the Santa Barbara County 
Grand Jury 2014-2015 Report on Zoning Information Reports 
Page 8 of 11 

appeal issues. The ZIR inspector is most familiar with the property as they recently 
inspected it for the ZIR.  If an owner or agent is not satisfied with the determination of 
the ZIR inspector, the appeal is elevated to the Supervisor or City Planner level for 
further review.   

Since there is no set appeal period established in the Municipal Code, a property owner 
may appeal the findings of the ZIR after the ten-day period specified on the ZIR form.  
However, because additional staff time is necessary to recall the records and basis for 
the findings and, in some cases, a follow-up site visit is warranted, staff’s time to 
research an appeal after the ten-day period is subject to the hourly staff fee as 
established by the City Council. 
 

Recommendation 6a:   That the City of Santa Barbara establish an appeals process that requires 
an outside mediator. 
 

City Response to Recommendation 6a: The City will not be implementing this 
recommendation because it is not warranted or is not reasonable.   

Implied in this recommendation is the assumption that a third party mediator would 
have the authority to resolve the violation.  Whether or not a violation exists is a 
question of fact.  It would be inappropriate to grant an outside mediator the authority 
to waive, excuse, or ignore a violation of the zoning ordinance.  If a property owner 
disagrees with a factual conclusion made in a ZIR, the property owner may ask a court to 
review the basis on which the City’s conclusion rests.  

 
Recommendation 6b:   That the Zoning Information Report include a prominently stated and 
documented appeal process. 
 

City Response to Recommendation 6b:  This Recommendation has been implemented 
as it was a recommendation of the ZIR Working Group. 

The revised ZIR template contains a new Section titled “Expiration Date, Amendments to 
this ZIR, and Appeals.”  This Section explains the process to request an amendment to 
the ZIR and how a property owner or agent can appeal the ZIR findings.  Staff anticipates 
beginning using the new ZIR template within the next month. 
 

Finding 7:  The City Zoning Information Report Planning Technician II inspectors do not typically 
research the property records prior to the site visit. 
 

City Response to Finding 7:  The City disagrees wholly with this Finding. 

ZIR inspectors are trained to review the street and planning files prior to the site 
inspection. In some cases, archive plans are also reviewed prior to the inspection. The 
inspector also prepares a ZIR worksheet that contains basic property information 



City of Santa Barbara 
Response to the Santa Barbara County 
Grand Jury 2014-2015 Report on Zoning Information Reports 
Page 9 of 11 

(zoning, non-conforming aspects of the property, number of parking spaces, etc.), the 
property description from the last ZIR (if applicable), and previous zoning/building 
violations as a frame of reference for beginning the inspection.  Any discrepancies in the 
record or missing information are noted to help inform the inspector about certain 
areas of the property that may warrant additional attention. The ZIR inspector brings 
the street file and ZIR worksheet with them to the site inspection for reference on site. 
 

Recommendation 7: The Planning Technician II inspector review all relevant files prior to a site 
visit. 
 

City Response to Recommendation 7:  This Recommendation has been implemented 
as it is a current requirement of the ZIR inspector. 

This is a current requirement and will be included in the written staff procedures 
currently under development.   
 

Finding 8:  The basic cost of a City of Santa Barbara Zoning Information Report is $465.00, the 
highest in the State.  Other municipalities charge considerably less. 
 

Response to Finding 8:  The City disagrees partially with this Finding.  

Any comparison of fees should take into consideration the level of service provided and 
whether or not the jurisdiction seeks to recover the full cost of providing the service. 
City staff researched many other municipalities to determine what they require upon 
the sale of residential property.  There is a large variation in the report types and the 
type of information provided.  Many municipalities that produce a “zoning report” do 
not perform site inspections.  Some municipalities provide a computer printout of 
zoning requirements and known nonconformancies or violations based on information 
contained in their street file.  Other municipalities provide information from their files 
and do a visual inspection of the exterior of the property and list any obvious violations.  
Other municipalities provide a limited interior/exterior inspection but only focus on 
certain health and safety or building code violations.  Based on staff research, the costs 
of these varied services and the resultant reports range from $30.00 to $1,016.00 per 
unit.  One jurisdiction’s fee was based on the size of the residential unit.  For residences 
less than 5,000 square feet the fee is $385.00. For residences between 5,000 and 10,000 
square feet the fee is $591.00 and the fee for residences over 10,000 square feet is 
$1,016.00.  Due to the larger scope of the City’s ZIRs and the fact that City Council has 
deemed the service to be full-cost recovery, the cost of a ZIR in the City does exceed 
that of many other jurisdictions.  
 

Recommendation 8:  The price for a Zoning Information Report should be consistent with other 
municipalities. 
 



City of Santa Barbara 
Response to the Santa Barbara County 
Grand Jury 2014-2015 Report on Zoning Information Reports 
Page 10 of 11 

Response to Recommendation 8:  This Recommendation will not be implemented 
because it is not warranted or is not reasonable.  

This issue has been discussed before the City Council in several recent public hearings 
(Aug. 2013 and Feb. 2015).  Zoning Information Reports are one of a few services 
provided by the Planning Division that the City Council has designated as being full cost 
recovery.  The City Council has determined that it is not appropriate for public funds to 
subsidize private real estate transactions.  If the cost of a ZIR were reduced below that 
which it costs the City to provide the service, the level of service would either have to be 
reduced accordingly or the funds would have to be absorbed by another program in the 
Planning Division.  The cost of a ZIR has not increased since Fiscal Year 2011, and was 
actually reduced in FY2014 for larger multi-unit properties.   
 

Finding 9:  The requirement that a single-family residence maintain a covered, unobstructed, 20 
foot by 20 foot parking space is overly restrictive. 
 

Response to Finding 9:  The City disagrees wholly with this Finding. 

SBMC §28.90.045, Parking Design Standards, requires all parking facilities be designed 
and constructed pursuant to the current City Standards for Parking Design.  The 
requirement for the minimum 20 foot by 20 foot interior clear space within a garage is 
contained in the City Standards for Parking Design, which was established in 1982.  This 
minimum interior dimension is a standard requirement of many jurisdictions, both 
within California and nationwide. 
 

Recommendation 9: That the City rewrite this parking ordinance requirement in a more flexible 
manner while keeping on-street parking under control. 
 

Response to Recommendation 9: This Recommendation will not be implemented 
because it is not warranted or is not reasonable.  

SBMC §28.90.045.B, Parking Design Standards - Variation, allows a property owner to 
apply for a waiver from the requirement for any of the design standards contained in 
the City Standards for Parking Design, including the minimum interior dimension of a 
garage. This provides flexibility on a case-by-case basis, as warranted. The Public Works 
Department reviews parking design waiver requests. 
 

Finding 10:  There is no training manual for staff to conduct consistent Zoning Information 
Report inspections and reports. 
 

City Response to Finding 10:   The City agrees with this Finding.  

Staff agrees that there is currently no written training manual for preparing ZIRs.  New 
ZIR inspectors are trained by staff currently preparing ZIRs. 



City of Santa Barbara 
Response to the Santa Barbara County 
Grand Jury 2014-2015 Report on Zoning Information Reports 
Page 11 of 11 

 
Recommendation 10:   That the City of Santa Barbara write a detailed training manual defining 
the research policies, inspections, and procedures. 
 

City Response to Recommendation 10:  This Recommendation has been implemented 
as it was a recommendation of the ZIR Working Group. 

The ZIR Working Group recommended that staff prepare written procedures for the 
preparation of ZIRs, including relevant information sources, site inspection procedures, 
appeal process, and documentation.  The Planning Commission and City Council 
concurred with this recommendation.  City staff is in the process of developing the 
written procedures.   The new written procedures will help with consistency and give 
clear guidance on preparing ZIRs. 

 



Agenda Item No.  9 
File Code No.  640.09 

 

 

 

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 
 
 COUNCIL AGENDA REPORT 

 
 
 

AGENDA DATE: February 10, 2015 
 
TO: Mayor and Councilmembers 
 
FROM: Planning Division, Community Development Department  
 
SUBJECT: Zoning Information Report (ZIR) Process Improvements 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  That Council:   
 
A. Hold a public hearing and review the Planning Commission recommendations on 

ZIR process improvements; and, 
B. Initiate an Ordinance to establish an Administrative Zoning Approval process.  
 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY: 
 
Over the last year, staff has worked with the Santa Barbara Association of Realtors 
(SBAOR) and the Planning Commission on improvements to the ZIR process in 
response to concerns with timeliness, consistency, reliability, understandability, problem 
solving, and violation identification.  A ZIR Working Group was formed and developed 
recommendations to clarify and streamline the ZIR process including: revisions to the 
ZIR template, categorization of violations, clarification of ZIR appeal period, deferral of 
compliance deadlines in certain situations, proposed establishment of a Administrative 
Zoning Approval process, and creation of new public handouts.  The Planning 
Commission reviewed and concurred with the recommendations of the ZIR Working 
Group and recommends the Council initiate an Ordinance to establish the 
Administrative Zoning Approval process and direct staff to implement the other changes 
recommended by the ZIR Working Group. 
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
Background 
 
On August 13, 2013, Council considered a request of Mayor Schneider and 
Councilmember Francisco regarding the requirement for ZIRs at the time of sale of 
residential property and potential amendments to the Zoning Ordinance to change the 
requirement and/or processing of ZIRs.  Council was supportive of the requirement for a 
ZIR but expressed concerns regarding the timeliness of the completion of ZIRs and the 

ATTACHMENT 3



Council Agenda Report 
Zoning Information Report (ZIR) Process Improvements  
February 10, 2015 
Page 2 

 

accuracy and accountability of ZIRs.  Counci l directed staff to explore a process for 
resolution of discrepancy issues. 
 
In September and October of 2013, the Planning Commission held public hearings to 
hear from staff and the public on issues that arise during the ZIR preparation process.  
At the conclusion of those hearings, the Planning Commission recommended that a 
working group be formed to work through the issues and help the Planning Commission 
formulate recommendations to the City Council on improvements to the ZIR process. 
 
On November 13, 2014 the Planning Commission reviewed and concurred with the 
recommendations of the ZIR Working Group. The Planning Commission recommended 
the City Council initiate an amendment to the Zoning Ordinance for the Administrative 
Zoning Approval process and direct staff to implement the revised ZIR template and 
identified changes to the ZIR process (Attachments 1 & 2). 
 
ZIR Working Group Outcomes and Planning Commission Recommendations 
 
The ZIR Working Group met nine times from January through October 2014 (see 
Exhibit F of Attachment 1 for meeting minutes).   The ZIR Working Group worked on 
clarifying and streamlining the ZIR process and on formulating recommendations for 
changes to the ZIR process and Zoning Ordinance.  The ZIR Working Group worked 
through changes in a number of important areas.  Please see the attached Planning 
Commission Staff Report dated November 6, 2014 for a full discussion of these areas.    
 
Identification and Categorization of Major and Minor Violations  
 
It is very common for staff to identify violations on residential properties during the 
inspection and record review done while preparing ZIRs. For the purpose of determining 
which violations are referred for immediate enforcement, violations are classified as 
either major or minor (Attachment 3).  Due to limited staff resources for code 
enforcement, not all violations can be pursued to abatement immediately upon 
discovery.  Over the years, staff developed this classification system as a means to 
triage which violations need to be abated immediately given avai lable staff resources.  
Major violations are referred for immediate enforcement and follow-up. Minor violations 
are kept on file and are required to be abated with the next building permit sought for 
the property.  If the minor violation is not abated prior to the next transfer of the 
residential property, the minor violation is carried forward in the next ZIR.  
 
One of the sticking points between the Staff and SBAOR members on the ZIR Working 
Group was the use of the term “habitable space.”  Staff considers the addition of new 
habitable space to be a major violation subject to immediate enforcement.  The 
identification of new habitable space caused concern for the ZIR Working Group 
because the term is not defined in the Zoning Ordinance.  As part of the process 
improvements, staff has changed the term used from “new habitable space” to 



Council Agenda Report 
Zoning Information Report (ZIR) Process Improvements  
February 10, 2015 
Page 3 

 

“unpermitted floor area or conditioned space1”.  Floor area is currently defined in SBMC 
§28.04.315.  If a violation involves the addition of unpermitted floor area or new 
conditioned space, it will be considered a major violation and will be referred for 
enforcement.  With this change, the ZIR Working Group and Planning Commission 
confirmed staff’s categorization of major and minor violations for the purposes of 
referring violations identified in a ZIR for enforcement. 
 
Changes to the ZIR template 
 
The ZIR Working Group suggested and reviewed major editing of the ZIR template to 
make it more useful and understandable (Exhibit C of Attachment 1).  The ZIR Working 
Group and Planning Commission were in consensus that the revised ZIR template was 
a vast improvement over the existing ZIR template. 
 
Appeal of ZIR findings 
 
The ZIR Working Group and Planning Commission confirmed that the current 10-day 
appeal period was appropriate to dispute violations noted in a ZIR.  The ZIR Working 
Group discussed establishing a more formal appeal process but concerns were 
expressed regarding the amount of additional time and costs associated with that 
process and agreed to maintain the existing 10-day appeal period.  It is important to 
note that when an agent or property owner brings a concern regarding a ZIR to staff 
after the 10-day appeal period passed, staff still looks into their concerns.  The 10-day 
appeal period is given as an incentive to property owners to bring concerns to staff’s 
attention in a timely manner.  No fee is required for this appeal if it is filed within 10 days 
of the date of the ZIR.  Staff time to research and work to resolve any appeals filed after 
the 10-day appeal period may be subject to the hourly rate fee. 
 
Additional Improvements to the ZIR process 
 
The ZIR Working Group made a number of suggestions for further improvements 
including updating and standardizing the procedures for preparing ZIRs and identifying 
violations; creation of a ZIR inspection checklist to give to property owners; creation of a 
frequently asked questions handout; and creation of a handout that explains how to 
address identified violations.  The Planning Commission concurred with the work 
program identified in the Planning Commission Staff Report and recommended staff 
continues to work on the additional ZIR process improvements.  Staff is working on 
these items. 
 

                     
1 Conditioned space is area in a building that is provided with heating or cooling.  



Council Agenda Report 
Zoning Information Report (ZIR) Process Improvements  
February 10, 2015 
Page 4 

 

Discrepancies between ZIRs and Reliability and Accountability 
 
The ZIR Working Group spent a lot of time discussing ways to deal with discrepancies 
between ZIRs.  Exhibit D of Attachment 1 contains a paper based on the discussions of 
the ZIR Working Group.   
 
Although the ZIR Working Group had consensus that the paper was a move in the right 
direction and proposed improvements to the ZIR process are positive and responsive to 
many of the issues that were raised, a major criticism of the ZIR process by the SBAOR 
ZIR Working Group members continues to be that in their perspective the City is not 
accountable or liable for inaccurate reports.  The SBAOR members in the ZIR Working 
Group felt that it is unfair for the City to seek abatement of violations when a prior ZIR 
did not disclose the violation to the current owner/seller. The SBAOR ZIR Working 
Group members still maintain that all improvements missed in previous ZIRs should be 
“grandfathered” or automatically legalized. 
 
Staff has made improvements over the years to increase the reliability of the ZIR.  Staff 
performs more in-depth research and regularly consults the archive plans when 
preparing a ZIR.  Staff believes that the increase in reliability of today’s ZIRs have led to 
some of the issues SBAOR is bringing up now. 
 
Staff is currently updating and standardizing the procedures for preparing ZIRs and 
identifying violations.  The updated procedures give staff clear and consistent direction 
on not only how to prepare a ZIR but also how to conduct the site inspection, what 
violations are to be identified in the ZIR, and how violations are referred for 
enforcement.  Planning staff has also increased its early collaboration with property 
owners and Building Division staff when discrepancies arise before the ZIR is finalized.  
 
Staff is currently developing a ZIR inspection checklist and a Frequently Asked 
Question handout for property owners so they will be more informed on what to expect 
during a ZIR site inspection and to answer common questions that the inspector 
receives while on the site. 
 
In regards to discrepancies between prior ZIRs, staff and the ZIR Working Group spent 
a lot of time discussing ways to deal with discrepancies between ZIRs.  On average, 45 
ZIRs are prepared per month.  Of this number, approximately 2-4 ZIRs have some type 
of inconsistency or discrepancy between the current ZIR and a previous ZIR.  This is a 
small percentage of the total number of ZIRs that are prepared.  The vast majority of the 
discrepancies involve improvements that fall in the minor violation category and are not 
referred for immediate enforcement.    
 
The City does attempt to minimize the impacts of discrepancies between ZIRs.  Staff 
currently expedites and simplifies the discretionary review process as much as possible 
and waives the planning fees in cases of discrepancies between ZIRs.  Planning staff 



Council Agenda Report 
Zoning Information Report (ZIR) Process Improvements  
February 10, 2015 
Page 5 

 

also involves Building Division staff earlier in the process to identify information that may 
be necessary for the building permit. 
 
The ZIR Working Group discussed several changes to the ZIR process to address 
discrepancies.  These changes include a proposal for the establishment of an 
Administrative Zoning Approval process (requires a Zoning Ordinance amendment) and 
to only refer violations for enforcement that involve the creation of an illegal dwelling unit 
or the physical loss of parking.  Violations that involve the creation of new floor area or 
conditioned space would only be referred for enforcement if it appears to create an 
immediate health or safety risk.    
 
Staff does not support SBAORs request to automatically “grandfather” or legalize 
improvements that were missed in a previous ZIR when the improvement was done 
without the required permits or approvals.  The City has a duty to enforce its adopted 
Codes.  The as-built improvements may not meet City codes and could pose a health or 
safety risk.  Additionally, if the violation were to be legalized without the proper City 
approvals that may be seen as a benefit for the property owner but the neighbors have 
the potential to suffer negative consequences and have legitimate concerns as to 
fairness and consistency.  
 
Administrative Zoning Approvals 
 
Currently staff does not have the authority to waive zoning standards if the improvement 
in question conflicts with adopted zoning standards.  Therefore, discretionary approval 
of a modification of the standard is necessary.  As part of the ZIR process 
improvements, the ZIR Working Group recommends the establishment of a new 
Administrative Zoning Approval process.  The Administrative Zoning Approval process 
would expedite the resolution of discrepancies found during the preparation of a ZIR by 
giving staff the authority to grant zoning clearance for improvements that do not conform 
to the zoning requirement in instances where there are unclear City records, 
discrepancies in the record (including discrepancies in ZIRs) and it is evident the 
improvement was on the site prior to 19742.   No planning fees would be charged for 
this Administrative Zoning Approval review. 
 
The ZIR Working Group reviewed and refined the types of improvements proposed to 
be eligible for Administrative Zoning Approval (Exhibit E of Attachment 1).   The 
Planning Commission recommends the Council initiate an Ordinance to establish this 
new process. 
 
It is important to note that not all discrepancies will be solved by this amendment.  
Additional time and expense could still be required to resolve the more major violations, 
such as larger as-built encroachments into required setbacks.  If a property owner 

                     
2 Year of the adoption of the Ordinance establishing ZIRs. 



Council Agenda Report 
Zoning Information Report (ZIR) Process Improvements  
February 10, 2015 
Page 6 

 

wishes to maintain an unpermitted improvement, the property owner may proceed 
through the existing modification process.  
 
Cost of ZIRs 
 
There was some discussion on the cost of ZIRs.  The ZIR Working Group suggested 
incentives be established to encourage property owners to obtain a ZIR prior to the 
property being listed for sale. The SBAOR ZIR Working Group members cited cost as a 
deterrent to obtaining ZIRs early in the sale process.  Some SBAOR ZIR Working 
Group members suggested breaking up the payment into two installments, one payable 
at the time of ZIR application submittal and one at the time escrow closes.  The down 
side of that option is that if escrow does not close, the City would not be paid for the 
work completed.  Another option proposed by SBAOR was that the fee be reduced if a 
property owner applies for a ZIR within a certain number of days of signing a listing 
agreement as an incentive for property owners to obtain the ZIR earlier. 
 
Since the last ZIR Working Group meeting, the SBAOR ZIR Working Group members 
have stated to staff that the cost of the ZIR continues to be an issue for them.  They 
request that the cost of the ZIR be reduced rather than pursuing the other options 
discussed by the ZIR Working Group. 
 
ZIRs are one of the few Planning Division programs that the City Council has 
designated as being full cost recovery.  The cost of a ZIR has not increased since 2011; 
it has actually been reduced for larger multi-unit properties.  The Council has stated in 
the past that it is not appropriate for the tax payer to subsidize private transactions.  
However, Council may decide to subsidize the cost if they determine it to be 
appropriate. 
 
Public Outreach 
 
The ZIR Working Group discussed ways to encourage property owners to voluntarily 
abate violations on their property.  This would help reduce the number of violations 
identified in ZIRs and relieve some of the stress that occurs during the escrow period. 
The ZIR Working Group also suggested the City establish a good public relations effort 
to inform the public of the benefits and appropriateness of a ZIR in addition to just when 
residential property is being sold.  The ZIR contains useful and important information in 
regards to the zoning, permitted uses, and non-conforming elements of the property as 
well as violations that may be on the property.  The ZIR is a mechanism for property 
owners to work with the City to understand City Codes and the requirements to clean up 
a property.  The Planning Commission agreed with the ZIR Working Group on 
establishing a public relations effort.  As part of the Fiscal Year 2016 budget 
discussions, staff will be requesting that additional funds be allocated to the Planning 
Division for this public outreach effort. 
 
 



Council Agenda Report 
Zoning Information Report (ZIR) Process Improvements  
February 10, 2015 
Page 7 

 

BUDGET/FINANCIAL INFORMATION: 
 
Since the initial discussion on improvements to the ZIR process began in 2013, staff 
added a new P3 goal to complete 80 percent of the ZIRs within 10 working days of 
application submittal.  As of December 2014, the completion rate is 83 percent.  Staff 
anticipates that continued implementation of this new P3 goal can be handled by 
existing staff given the increased funding Council previously approved for additional 
staff in the Zoning and Enforcement section.   
 
If the Council should make significant changes in the fee structure for ZIRs, such as 
reducing the cost of the ZIR per SBAORs request, that would affect Planning Division 
revenues.  The average amount annually is approximately $240,000. 
 
Establishing the Administrative Zoning Approval process for dealing with discrepancies 
between ZIRs will not represent an increase in workload in the Planning Division, as 
Planning staff would currently process a Modification request for those improvements if 
the Administrative Zoning Approval process were not adopted. 
 
In regards to the new Public Outreach/Education component of the ZIR process 
improvements, as part of the upcoming budget process, staff will request funding 
(approximately $7,000) to hire a consultant.  
 
ATTACHMENTS: 1. Planning Commission Staff Report, November 6, 2014 
 2. Planning Commission Minutes, November 13, 2014 
 3. Classification of Major and Minor Violations Cited in ZIRs 
 
 
PREPARED BY: Susan Reardon, Senior Planner  
 
SUBMITTED BY: George Buell, Community Development Director 
 
APPROVED BY:  City Administrator's Office 
 



ATTACHMENT 1



























































































































































Planning Commission Minutes ATTACHMENT 2 
November 13, 2014   
 

ACTUAL TIME: 2:13 P.M. 
 
A. ZONING INFORMATION REPORTS - PROCESS IMPROVEMENTS 

The purpose of this public hearing is for the Planning Commission to receive the 
recommendations of the Zoning Information Report (ZIR) Working Group and 
forward recommendations to the City Council on potential ZIR process 
improvements and Zoning Ordinance amendments.  
 
Contact: Susan Reardon, Senior Planner 
Email: SReardon@SantaBarbaraCA.gov Phone: (805) 564-5470, ext. 4555 
 
Susan Reardon, Senior Planner, gave the Staff presentation.  Bettie Weiss, City 
Planner, was also available to answer the Commission’s questions. 
 
Ed Fuller, President of the Santa Barbara Association of Realtors (SBOAR), 
summarized comments of appreciation to the Commission on behalf of the 
Association and asked for continued improvements on reliability and accountability.  
Additional remarks were made by Adrienne Schuele, SBOAR/Realtor.   
 
Chair Schwartz opened the public hearing at 2:45 P.M. 
 
The following people commented on the project: 

1. Jarret Gorin, Van Guard Planning, LLC, acknowledged that within the past 
year ZIR’s were being completed sooner.  Remained concerned with the 
burden of proof being on the owners when discrepancies are found.  

2. Steve Engels shared his personal experience of going through the ZIR 
process and receiving allegations of illegal window and door movement on 
his property.  Expressed concern with having had to spend substantial money 
to clear the allegations and prove innocence.  

3. Jeff Havlik echoed a similar experience of the prior speaker.  Three prior 
ZIR’s did not reveal violations that were found. 

4. Steve Epstein, Realtor, stated the city’s policy is “guilty until proven 
innocent.”  Stated that the ZIR is a worthless document in the hands of 
buyers and sellers.   Appreciates improvements made to the ZIR process, but 
find that it is too little, too late. 

5. Ann Harkey shared her son’s experience in selling his house and the ZIR 
process that leaves room for many assumptions made by City Staff with the 
burden on the seller.  Questioned the use of the term “appears to be” on a 
recent ZIR. 

6. Jan Banister, Realtor, spoke about discrepancies between ZIR’s done on the 
same property.  Accountability and reliability are strongly needed and 
missing. 



Planning Commission Minutes  
November 13, 2014 
 

7. Erik Taiji spoke for the rights of the consumer to appeal a violation.  The ten 
days given are insufficient when a consumer needs time to make contacts to 
correct the violation.  Also, there is currently no closure on an appeal. 

 
With no one else wishing to speak, the public hearing was closed at 3:04 P.M. 
 
Scott Vincent, Assistant City Attorney, provided clarification of the term 
‘grandfathering.’ It is a term given to the concept of legal nonconforming, meaning 
that the improvement was legal, based on zoning, at the time the improvement was 
made and because of zoning changes, the improvement then became non-
conforming to the new zoning requirements.  Illegal construction, whether discussed 
in a ZIR or not, is still a zoning violation.  Mr. Vincent recommended against a 
process to grandfathering zoning violations.  He stated an error in a ZIR should not 
legalize a zoning violation.   The people that would be most affected if the violation 
were to be legalized without proper City approvals would be the neighbors who 
would have to suffer the consequences.   
 
Chair Schwartz called for a recess at 4:20 P.M. and reconvened at 4:30 P.M. 
 
Commissioner’s comments: 
 
1. The Planning Commission acknowledged the work done by the ZIR 

Working Group and the improvements made to the ZIR process.  The 
Commission recommended City Council initiate an amendment to the 
Zoning Ordinance for the Administrative Zoning Approval process and 
direct staff to implement the revised ZIR template and identified changes the 
ZIR process. 

2. Commissioners Thompson and Lodge want to see inspectors better trained 
so that fewer mistakes are made. 

3. Commissioner Lodge supports keeping ZIRs as a requirement. 
4. Commissioner Pujo supports ZIRs as a process, good tool, and beneficial. 

and listed areas that could be improved further: 
a. Agrees with Staff about the idea of potentially pushing ZIRs back to 

after the time of sale to the next building permit would only push any 
potential issues down further and not benefit all parties, especially the 
buyer of the property. 

b. The Working Group did a good job of sorting Major/Minor violations 
and she supports additional staff revisions before going to Council, 
especially for Item 2 under Major Violations that needs further 
clarification of square footage being discussed. 

c. The ZIR template changes are a major improvement in clarity and are 
more simplified by the inclusion of attachments. 

d. The Work Program outlined in the Staff Report is good. 
e.  Discrepancies fall under Oversights or omissions.  The City cannot later 

overlook something that exists.  



Planning Commission Minutes  
November 13, 2014 
 

f. The work that is being done with proposing administrative zoning 
approvals both under ZIR and the NZO review are good stream lining 
tools and should be welcomed by the development community. 

g. Under the non-conforming section, recommends that Staff be absolute 
and if a non-conforming determination cannot be made within the ZIR, 
then it needs to be clear that it is not a final determination and with 
referral for a process of how the information could be verified.   

5. Commissioner Thompson agrees with improvements made, especially the 
administrative zoning approval, new ZIR report format, and improved 
timeliness.  Encourages that the Working Group continue to work to 
improve the process and possibly reconvene in a year.  In a perfect world, he 
would eliminate the ZIR, but understands that it will not happen so we want 
make the ZIR process the best possible so that it provides a good service to 
citizens of the City. 

6. Commissioner Campanella said that disclosure is a major overriding factor 
for the seller and the buyer.  He also added: 
a. A continued discussion should take place on when do minor violations 

have to be remedied, to what extent, and justification for 
conforming/non-conforming.  Continuing to clearly express when a 
violation needs to be abated can put a buyer at ease that this is not a 
pressure to close.   

b. Suggested the Work Group look at unbundling violations for a permit, 
depending on the type of permit, such as an exterior permit that does not 
impact the interior of the house. 

c. The new ZIR reports are designed much better, are easier to understand, 
are more descriptive, consistent, and tell you what you can do and when.  
The combination of forms and the feedback from realtors have improved 
the process.   

d. Buyer disclosures are required and ZIR’s are one way to accomplish this 
protection for the buyer.  We have to be more reasonable on when the 
corrections need to be made on the minor side and making sure that we 
are getting good feedback and the process is working for the buyer and 
seller. 

7. Commissioner Schwartz acknowledged significant progress made by the 
Working Group on the forms, the content of the forms, the consistency, and 
the clarification of terms.  The topic of outsourcing this function has come 
up and would still require the responsibility of overseeing the quality of the 
work, all of which would require the cost of human resources to manage the 
outsourcing.  Her research shows that the cost of outsourcing is in line with 
the fees charged by the City.  Areas that still need work are:  
a. Terms used are still too vague to be used in a report with a physical 

inspection that carries the weight of a ZIR, such as “might”, “appears to 
be”, “there is evidence of” without further detail and clear explanation.  
Concerned with the implications and consequence for the buyer and 
seller created by the vagueness. 



Planning Commission Minutes  
November 13, 2014 
 

b. Based on the continued volume of community concern, we still have a 
long way to go in improving our ordinance and the tools we are using 
and the way we are having Staff utilize these tools, which is why training 
is questioned.  Agrees with Commissioners Campanella and Pujo on 
identified work efforts. 

c. Asked Staff to continue to look at improvements that could be 
incorporated into the appeal process.   

d. Encouraged more work on a program for greater public outreach, public 
education, notification which could help engage, educate, and build 
community confidence to bring in violations to the City and result in 
fewer violations in the City. 

 
Mr. Vincent clarified that the language in ZIRs is not “vague” when the language is 
qualified.  He recommended that the language used in ZIRs inform the reader what 
information was evaluated in reaching a conclusion regarding a violation. 
 
Ms. Weiss will have the Council confirm interest in greater outreach and education 
of the public.  Staff may request additional funding from the Council to support that 
effort.  
 
Krista Pleiser, SBOAR, thanked the Commission for the open communication and 
working toward improvements on the ZIR process.  Commissioners Campanella, 
Pujo, and Schwartz were members of the Working Group. 

 



ATTACHMENT 3 

Classification of Major and Minor Violations Cited in ZIRs 

Major Violations 

1. Illegal dwelling units.  See SBMC§28.04.590 for the definition of Residential Unit. 
2. Addition of new floor area (except detached non-conditioned accessory space) or conditioned 

(i.e. – heating/AC) space.  See SBMC§28.04.315 for definition of Net Floor Area. 
3. Loss of required parking.  This includes the physical removal of the garage/carport; the 

conversion of the garage/carport to another use; built-in physical obstructions such as walls or 
rooms (office, storage, laundry, etc.); loss of access to the garage/carport (such as removal of 
garage door opening, placement of a structure on the driveway, addition of a barrier or lip 
that limits access to the garage or removal of an approved driveway material); change in the 
garage door from 2-car to 1-car w/ pedestrian door.   

4. Improvements within 50 feet of the coastal bluff or on the bluff face. This includes, but is not 
limited to the planting of new or removal of significant landscaping, and patios, decks and any 
fences. 

5. Other violations that pose an immediate fire or life safety risk. 

Minor Violations 

Any other violation that does not fall under the above categories.  Examples include, but are not 
limited to: 

• Detached accessory building (no heating, AC, plumbing), shed, trellis, pottery shed, misc 
structures (outside sinks and showers, chicken coops, work benches, trash enclosures, etc.) in 
required setback or open yard. 

• Gates, fences and arbors in the front setback that are over 3 ½ feet. 
• In the garage:  

o Cabinets and workbenches which encroach into the required minimum interior 
dimensions  

o Washer/dryer and/or laundry sink.  New plumbing or electrical requires a building 
permit 

o Addition of any flammable flooring material such as carpet or linoleum  
o The addition of a doorway between a bedroom and a garage or carport 

• Decks, patios, and permanent fixtures such built-in fireplaces or fire pits, built-in seating which 
are over 10 inches in height in a required setback. 

• Attached patio covers.  
• Detached patio covers which are over 120 square feet. 
• Interior remodels that don’t include additional floor area. 
• Air conditioning units, pool equipment, water heaters and softeners in required setbacks. 
• Expansion of paved areas accessible to vehicle in required setbacks. 
• Fountains or ponds in interior setbacks. 
• New door and window openings within the required setbacks. 

  

ATTACHMENT 3



 
 

28.04.590 Residential Unit. 
 
 A. A building or portion thereof designed or occupied for residential purposes, containing not 
more than one (1) kitchen per residential unit, but not including hotels or boarding houses. 
 B. A residential unit may be declared by the Community Development Director when a building 
or portion thereof is configured or occupied for residential purposes, whether permanent or temporary, and 
contains elements evidencing separate residential occupancy.  Elements to be considered may include, but are 
not limited to, the proximal arrangement and various combinations of: 
  1. Sink or bar sink; 
  2. Garbage disposal; 
  3. Dishwasher; 
  4. Toilet; 
  5. Bathing facility; 
  6. Interior locking doors; 
  7. Exterior entrance; 
  8. Exterior staircase; 
  9. Separate yard, patio, deck or balcony; 
  10. Separate phone line, cable line, or utility line; 
  11. Separate garage or parking area (covered or uncovered) or carport; 
  12. Countertops or cupboards; 
  13. Sleeping loft; or 
  14. Separate address/mail box designation. 
  Issuance of a building permit or other approvals does not, of itself, establish that a building or 
portion thereof is not a residential unit. 
 C. Notwithstanding this Section, a building or portion thereof configured or occupied for 
residential purposes, whether permanent or temporary, containing a modular cooking unit shall not be 
deemed a residential unit providing: 
  1. A performance standard permit or conditional use permit has been issued pursuant to 
either Chapter 28.93 or Chapter 28.94 of this Code; and 
  2. The facility has current, valid state licenses to operate a residential care facility for the 
elderly, community care facility or hospice; and 
  3. There is a staffed congregate kitchen and dining facility on-site providing regular meals 
to all residents.  (Ord. 5380, 2005; Ord. 4858, 1994.) 
 
 
28.04.315 Floor Area, Net. 
 The net floor area of a building shall be calculated in accordance with the following general rule and 
any applicable special rules: 
 A. GENERAL RULE.  Net floor area shall be defined as the area in square feet of all floors confined 
within the exterior walls of a building, but not including the area of the following: exterior walls, vent shafts, 
courts, and any areas with a ceiling height of less than five (5) feet above the finished floor. 
 B. SPECIAL RULES. 
  1. The area occupied by stairs or an elevator shaft within the exterior walls of a building 
shall be counted only on one floor of the building. 
  2. Freestanding accessory buildings that do not require a building permit for construction 
or installation are excluded from the net floor area calculation. 
 
 



Zoning Information Report  
Process Improvements  
City Council 
February 10, 2015 



City of Santa Barbara  •  Community Development Department 2 

Background 

 SBAOR - ZIR Issues 
 Discrepancies with prior ZIRs 

 Timeliness & Necessity 

 Consistency & Reliability 

 Understandability & Usability  

 Violation Identification & Abatement 

 Cost 



City of Santa Barbara  •  Community Development Department 3 

Background 

 City Council review August 2013 

 Planning Commission review 
September and October 2013 

 ZIR Working Group Meetings – 
January through October 2014 

 Planning Commission 
Recommendations to Council 
November 2014 

 



ZIR Working Group Members 

 Three Planning Commissioners 

 Two SBAOR Staff members 

 Three Realtors 

 Two Planning Staff members 

 Two Building & Safety Staff members 

 Assistant City Attorney 

 
City of Santa Barbara  •  Community Development Department 4 



Outcome/Recommendations 

 Classification of Major and Minor 
Violations 

 Improvements to ZIR template 

 Dealing with Discrepancies between 
ZIRs 

 Administrative Zoning Approvals 

 

City of Santa Barbara  •  Community Development Department 5 



Classification of Violations 

 Major Violations 
 Illegal Dwelling Units 

 Unpermitted floor area/conditioned space 

 Physical loss of required parking 

 Improvements within 50’ of coastal bluff 
or on bluff face 

 Violations that pose an immediate fire or 
life safety risk 

City of Santa Barbara  •  Community Development Department 6 



Classification of Violations 

 Minor Violations   
 All other violations, such as: 

• Detached accessory buildings 

• Patio covers 

• AC units, pool equipment, water 
heater/softeners in required setbacks 

• New door/window openings in required 
setbacks 

• Washing machine/dryer in garage 

 City of Santa Barbara  •  Community Development Department 7 



Changes to the ZIR template 

 Better define purpose & scope of ZIR 

 Clarified language re: major/minor 
violations 

 Specify violation abatement timelines 

 Specify procedures for 
appealing/amending ZIR 

 Information sources used in preparation 
of ZIRs 

 City of Santa Barbara  •  Community Development Department 8 



Discrepancies between ZIRs 

 Average of 45 ZIRs prepared per 
month 

 Estimate 2-4 ZIRs per month have a 
discrepancy with a prior ZIR 

 Vast majority involve violations in the 
minor category 

City of Santa Barbara  •  Community Development Department 9 



Discrepancies between ZIRs 

 Planning Process – Currently 
 Waive Planning fees 

 ZIR inspector processes application 

 Minimal Information required 

 Expedited discretionary review 

City of Santa Barbara  •  Community Development Department 10 



Discrepancies between ZIRs 

 Planning Process – Proposed 
 New Administrative Zoning Approval 

authority 

 No longer refer new floor 
area/conditioned space to enforcement 
unless it poses a fire or life safety risk 

City of Santa Barbara  •  Community Development Department 11 



Discrepancies between ZIRs 

 Building Permit Process – 
Implemented 
 Committed to streamline process 

• Two dedicated Building plan check positions 

• Increased consultation of Zoning inspector 
with Building staff 

• No option to waive building permit 
requirement  

 

City of Santa Barbara  •  Community Development Department 12 



Changes to ZIR Process 

 Current 
 Complete 80% of ZIRs within 10 working 

days – currently at 83% 

 More collaboration with property owner 

 Retention of inspection photos long-term 

 

City of Santa Barbara  •  Community Development Department 13 



Changes to ZIR Process 

 In-process 
 Update & standardize ZIR preparation 

procedures 

 Create: 
• Inspection checklist for Zoning inspector 

• Frequently Asked Question handout 

• Handout on how to abate violations 

City of Santa Barbara  •  Community Development Department 14 



Changes to ZIR Process 

 After Council Direction: 
 Process Amendment to Zoning Ordinance 

to Create Administrative Zoning Approval 

 Implement Improved ZIR template 

 Implement Other Administrative 
Improvements – Staff Procedures, Public 
Handouts, etc. 

 Public Outreach/Education 

City of Santa Barbara  •  Community Development Department 15 



Recommendations 

 Consider Planning Commission 
recommendations on ZIR process 
improvements 

 Initiate an amendment to the Zoning 
Ordinance to establish an 
Administrative Zoning Approval 
process 

 

City of Santa Barbara  •  Community Development Department 16 



Next Steps 

 PC Public Hearing on Zoning 
Ordinance amendments – Spring 2015 

 Council OC review – Summer 2015 

 PC Recommendation on Zoning 
Ordinance Amendment – Fall 2015 

 Council Adoption of Zoning Ordinance 
Amendment – Late Fall/Winter 2015 

 

 
City of Santa Barbara  •  Community Development Department 17 



 

City of Santa Barbara  •  Community Development Department 18 



Agenda Item No.  23 
File Code No.  640.07 

 

 

 

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 
 
 COUNCIL AGENDA REPORT 

 
 

 
AGENDA DATE: July 21, 2015 
 
TO: Mayor and Councilmembers 
 
FROM: Planning Division, Community Development Department 
 
SUBJECT: Appeal Of Architectural Board Of Review Project Design Approval  
 Of A New Seven-Unit Apartment Building At 1818 Castillo Street 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  That Council 
 
A. Deny the appeal of Brian Barnwell of the Architectural Board of Review’s decision 

to grant Project Design Approval for the proposed new seven-unit apartment 
building; and  

B. Direct Staff to return to Council with Decision and Findings reflecting the outcome of 
the appeal. 

 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY: 
 
On May 26, 2015, the Architectural Board of Review (ABR) granted Project Design 
Approval, on a 3/1 vote, for a new three-story, seven unit, rental housing development at 
1818 Castillo Street. Brian Barnwell, a neighbor, has appealed the Project Design 
Approval asserting the following:  1) The project is the only three-story building within 
blocks, exceeding the neighborhood standards for height, bulk, and scale; 2) The ABR did 
not conduct an organized site visit to understand the neighborhood context; 3) Story poles 
were not erected for the project;  4) The individual garages were not adequately discussed 
relative to building height and mass, and; 5) The AUD ordinance is designed to produce 
smaller units and smaller buildings in and around the Downtown, and the proposed project 
does neither. The appeal letter is provided as Attachment 1. 
 
Staff believes that the ABR considered the concerns of the appellant and other neighbors 
regarding the compatibility and appropriateness of the three-story project within the 
neighborhood. At the May 11, 2015 hearing, staff advised the ABR that it could refer the 
project to the Planning Commission or request visual aids such as story poles, streetscape 
elevations, or 3-D modeling of the project. The ABR requested additional streetscape 
details related to building massing and a survey of two- and three-story buildings within a 
one- and one-half block radius. Story poles were not requested. Many of the ABR 
members stated that they either had driven by the site, or were familiar with the 
neighborhood; therefore, an organized site visit was not necessary. 
 



Council Agenda Report 
Appeal Of Architectural Board Of Review Project Desgin Approval Of  
A New Seven-Unit Apartment Building At 1818 Castillo Street 
July 21, 2015 
Page 2 

 

The proposed project complies with all zoning standards, particularly the Average Unit-size 
Density (AUD) Ordinance requirements. Staff believes the project was properly reviewed 
by the ABR, including findings of consistency with all applicable design guidelines and the 
project compatibility analysis and; therefore, the ABR appropriately approved the project. 
Staff recommends that Council deny the appeal and uphold the ABR approval. 
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
Project Description 
 
The project site is located in the Oak Park neighborhood and is situated on a 12,656 
square foot lot, with a land use designation of Medium-High Density Residential (15-27 
dwelling units/acre). The proposal includes the demolition of an existing single-family 
home, a studio apartment, detached garage, and two sheds, and construction of a three-
story residential apartment building under the AUD Incentive Program. The project will 
result in seven units comprised of two, two-bedroom units and five, three-bedroom units, 
totaling 6,569 square feet. The proposed density for the project is 25 dwelling units per 
acre with an average unit size of 938 square feet. There will be seven covered parking 
spaces provided on the ground floor of the building. The project site plans are included as 
Attachment 2. 
 
Background 
 
The ABR initially reviewed the project at a noticed concept hearing on March 30, 2015. 
During this meeting, two neighbors spoke in opposition to the project’s mass, bulk, and 
scale. On May 11, 2015, the ABR conducted a second concept review of the project and 
requested additional information for analysis of neighborhood compatibility. During this 
meeting, five neighbors spoke and several emails were received in opposition to the 
project stating concerns regarding neighborhood compatibility and issues related to the 
one-space per unit parking requirement. The ABR discussed whether an organized site 
visit should be conducted and determined that there was not a need. However, the 
applicant was directed to provide additional visual aids to study the project’s compatibility 
with the neighborhood. 
 
On May 26, 2015, the applicant returned to the ABR, which had a quorum of four 
members. Five neighbors spoke in opposition to the project voicing concerns related to 
neighborhood compatibility and the need for additional parking. After considering public 
comment and discussing the project, the ABR made the required Project Compatibility 
Analysis findings and granted the Project Design Approval on a 3/1 vote. The ABR 
meeting minutes are provided as Attachment 3. 
 
ABR member Wittausch was unable to make the Project Compatibility Analysis findings, 
and voted against the project, based on the design of the seven parking spaces in single 
car garages and the cantilevered mass of the front unit along Castillo Street. 
 



Council Agenda Report 
Appeal Of Architectural Board Of Review Project Desgin Approval Of  
A New Seven-Unit Apartment Building At 1818 Castillo Street 
July 21, 2015 
Page 3 

 

APPEAL ISSUES 
 
The appellant requests that Council deny the project approval, asserting that the proposed 
project should not have been approved by the ABR due to the excessive size and height, 
which adversely affects the nature and quality of the neighborhood and sets precedence 
for the neighborhood. The appeal letter further states that because there were only four 
ABR members present, the approval vote did not represent the majority of the Board. 
Additional assertions as to why the project was not correctly analyzed by the ABR included 
the following: 
 

• There is no “turn around” area for guests or emergency vehicles. 
• The parking is accessed from the interior of the residential units lending to the 

garage area being used as something other than parking.   
• With garages having the potential for being used as a use other than parking, the 

impacted on-street parking will be further impacted.   
• The spirit of the AUD ordinance was to create smaller units and smaller buildings 

primarily in and around the Downtown. 
 
Building Height, Size, Bulk, and Scale: 
The appellant contends that the project will be the only three-story building within several 
blocks, exceeding the neighborhood standards for height, bulk and scale.  However, the 
property abutting the subject property to the east contains a building that is two-story with 
a third story mass towards the center of the lot. 
 
The appellant also asserts that the proposed individual garages in the townhouse style 
design add to the building height and massing of the building. At least one ABR member 
expressed a similar concern at the May 26, 2015 meeting. However, the majority of the 
Board did not concur with this conclusion. The project is zoned R-4 (Hotel-Motel-Multiple 
Family Residence), which is described in the Municipal Code as having a principal use of 
multi-family housing, together with recreational, religious and education facilities required 
to serve the community. The Board also understood that the maximum height allowed for 
AUD projects in the R-4 Zone is four stories and 45 feet. The project has two-story 
elements at the front and rear of the site, with a maximum height of 28’ -7”, and third-story 
dormer elements near the interior, resulting in a total building height of 33 feet. It was 
further understood, that although some R-4 neighborhoods might be predominately 
developed with one- and two-story buildings, the intended development potential for this 
zoning district allows for higher density multi-unit development. 
 
There was some initial discussion by the ABR of whether or not the garages should have 
garage doors. Ultimately, it was the Board’s decision that the project design was 
acceptable and did not require a change to the proposed parking design. 
 



Council Agenda Report 
Appeal Of Architectural Board Of Review Project Desgin Approval Of  
A New Seven-Unit Apartment Building At 1818 Castillo Street 
July 21, 2015 
Page 4 

 

Site Visit and Visual Aids 
 
The appellant contends that due to the lack of an organized site visit and placement of 
story poles the ABR did not adequately assess the impacts of the project to the residential 
buildings within the 1800 block of Castillo Street. The ABR discussed whether an 
organized site visit was necessary, and determined that because several board members 
had already driven by the site on their own and others were very familiar with the 
neighborhood, an organized site visit was not needed. The ABR also indicated that the 
neighborhood typically considered during the review of a project is not limited to the street 
frontage or the immediate block and requested that the applicant provide a survey of two- 
and three-story buildings within a one and one-half block radius of the subject site.  The 
applicant subsequently submitted an aerial and photograph survey of two- and three story 
buildings in the surrounding area.  The ABR determined that sufficient information and 
photographs of adjacent properties had been provided and found the project appropriate 
for the neighborhood. 
 
Site Design and Use of Garages 
 
The appellant asserts that there is no on-site turnaround for vehicles including guest, 
delivery and emergency vehicles, thus making it necessary for these vehicles to back-out 
on to the street, which is contrary to existing City guidelines. Transportation Division staff 
reviewed the proposed project for compliance with the City’s Standards for Parking Design 
and found the project to comply with the minimum distance necessary for a vehicle to 
enter each of the garages in one forward movement and to exit each of the garages and 
property in one backward and one forward movement. Projects developed under the AUD 
ordinance are not required to provide on-site guest parking; therefore, the vehicular access 
is intended for the residents of the property and additional on-site turnaround and parking 
was not required. 
 
The appellant also claims that the garages for this apartment building will likely be used for 
uses other than parking, such as storage, expansion of living space, or a room rental, 
forcing the required parking onto the street. Each unit has been designed with an attached 
one-car garage that has interior access to the living space of the unit. Generally, the ABR 
and staff do not speculate what the owner or tenant may do in the future and must analyze 
the floor plans that are currently proposed. 
 
At the time of the ABR hearings, the appellant raised the issue that the garages should 
instead be carports to avoid them being used for purposes other than parking. All 
properties within the city are required to maintain access to the required off-street parking 
at all times. In the event that required parking becomes inaccessible, any citizen may 
submit a request for investigation to the Community Development Department for 
enforcement of this provision.   
 



Council Agenda Report 
Appeal Of Architectural Board Of Review Project Desgin Approval Of  
A New Seven-Unit Apartment Building At 1818 Castillo Street 
July 21, 2015 
Page 5 

 

Purpose and Intent of the AUD Incentive Program 
 
The appellant contends that the AUD ordinance is designed to produce smaller units and 
smaller buildings in and around the Downtown, and that the proposed project does neither. 
The City’s AUD Program promotes critically needed residential development, particularly 
non-subsidized rental units. It encourages housing by allowing increased densities based 
on unit size: the smaller the average unit size for the project, the greater the density 
allowed. 
The density allowance for AUD projects located in the Medium-High Density areas, 
range from 15 to 27 dwelling units per acre depending on unit size. These densities are 
purposely similar to those allowed under the former Variable Density provisions, but 
with smaller unit sizes. In this instance, the AUD Program allows for up to seven small 
units, whereas the variable density provisions would have allowed up to five units of any 
size and could have resulted in a similarly sized or larger building. The variable density 
provisions required an additional parking space per unit, and guest parking. 
The approach taken to develop the AUD Program involved policy tradeoffs that make 
AUD projects potentially more controversial. One such tradeoff is parking. As part of the 
General Plan Update process, the City Council discussed and acknowledged that on-
street parking might be impacted in some neighborhoods by the reduced parking 
requirements of the AUD Program; however, that was an appropriate tradeoff in order to 
produce more housing. 
The AUD Program requires a minimum of one parking space per residential unit and no 
guest parking. This reduction in parking is intended to encourage affordability and help 
decrease building mass. Reduced parking requirements for AUD projects are also 
consistent with Housing Element Policy H17 and Implementation Action H17.1 that 
direct flexibility in development standards to facilitate additional housing. 
 
As indicated above, projects located in the Medium-High Density areas and developing 
under the AUD Program are allowed a density range of 15 to 27 dwelling units per acre 
with a maximum average unit size range of 905 to 1,450 square feet. The proposed 
density for the project is 25 dwelling units per acre, which allows a maximum average unit 
size of 945 square feet. The project proposes a maximum average unit size of 938 square 
feet, therefore complying with the density and unit size allowances of the AUD Program. 
Additionally, the proposed project is consistent with Housing Element Policy H10, 
encouraging new housing, and Housing Element Implementation Action H11.10, 
encouraging the construction of three bedroom or larger rental units. 
 
Therefore, staff supports the proposed three-story, seven-unit design that the majority of 
ABR members approved, given that the project is consistent with all applicable regulations 
and the Project Compatibility Analysis has been satisfied. 
 



Council Agenda Report 
Appeal Of Architectural Board Of Review Project Desgin Approval Of  
A New Seven-Unit Apartment Building At 1818 Castillo Street 
July 21, 2015 
Page 6 

 

RECOMMENDATION:   
 
The proposed project has undergone a thorough review by the ABR and staff. The main 
issue is whether the project is compatible with the neighborhood and appropriate for the 
site in terms of size, bulk, and scale. Staff believes that the ABR fully considered this issue 
and found the project consistent with the Project Compatibility Analysis criteria and 
therefore a compatible development. 
 
Staff recommends that Council deny the appeal and uphold the ABR’s decision to grant 
Project Design Approval to the new seven-unit apartment building and direct Staff to return 
to Council with Decision and Findings reflecting the outcome of the appeal. 
 
NOTE: The project plans and files were separately delivered to the City Council for 

their review and are available for public review in the City Clerk’s Office. 
 
ATTACHMENT(S): 1. Appellant Letter, dated August 21, 2015 
 2.  Proposed Site plan, floor plans, and elevations 

 3. ABR Minutes 
 

 
PREPARED BY: Suzanne Riegle, Associate Planner 
 
SUBMITTED BY: George Buell, Community Development Director 
 
APPROVED BY:  City Administrator's Office 
 



ATTACHMENT 1





10
E.
Fi
gu
er
oa

St
.,
Su
ite

1
Sa
nt
a
Ba

rb
ar
a,
CA

93
10
1

Te
l:
80
5.
96
3.
82
83

Fa
x:
80
5.
96
3.
81
84

w
w
w
.rr
m
de

sig
n.
co
m

A
1.
0

Co
ve
r
Sh
ee
t

18
18

Ca
st
ill
o
St
.A

pa
rt
m
en

ts
5/
26
/2
01
5

18
18

Ca
st
ill
o
St
.

Vi
ci

ni
ty

 M
ap

Ad
dr

es
s:

18
18

 C
as

til
lo

 S
tre

et

O
w

ne
r: 

R
an

dy
 D

ou
gl

as

Lo
t A

re
a:

 
12

,6
56

.2
5 

SF
 o

r .
29

1 
ac

re
s

Lo
t A

PN
:

02
7-

01
2-

02
3

D
en

si
ty

 R
es

id
en

tia
l: 

(1
5-

27
 d

u/
ac

re
)

La
nd

 U
se

 D
es

ig
na

tio
n:

 M
ed

iu
m

 H
ig

h

Zo
ni

ng
:

R
4 

- A
U

D

Al
lo

w
ab

le
 D

en
si

ty
:

(.2
91

 x
 2

5 
D

U
/A

C
) =

 (7
.2

6)
 7

 u
ni

ts

St
or

ie
s:

2 
an

d 
3

H
ei

gh
t

+/
- 2

7-
44

'

N
et

 H
ab

ita
bl

e 
Fl

oo
r A

re
a

2 
- 2

BR
 U

ni
ts

 @
 7

92
 S

F 
x 

2 
= 

1,
58

4 
SF

 N
et

5 
- 3

BR
 U

ni
ts

 @
 9

97
 S

F 
x 

5 
= 

4,
98

5 
SF

 N
et

6,
56

9 
SF

 N
et

G
ro

ss
 F

lo
or

 A
re

as
 (I

nc
lu

di
ng

 G
ar

ag
e)

2 
- 2

BR
 U

ni
ts

 @
 1

,1
32

 S
F 

x 
2 

= 
2,

26
4 

SF
 G

ro
ss

5 
- 3

BR
 U

ni
ts

 @
 1

,3
77

 S
F 

x 
5 

= 
6,

88
5 

SF
 G

ro
ss

9,
14

9 
SF

 G
ro

ss

Bu
ild

in
g 

C
ov

er
ag

e
4,

03
9

SF
32

%
La

nd
sc

ap
e 

Ar
ea

3,
30

3
SF

26
%

Pa
ve

d 
Ar

ea
5,

31
4

SF
42

%
12

,6
52

 S
F

10
0%

Ex
is

tin
g 

Bu
ild

in
gs

M
ai

n 
Bu

ild
in

g
96

9 
SF

G
ar

ag
e

28
8 

SF
G

ue
st

27
1 

SF
Sh

ed
22

7 
SF

1,
75

5 
SF

 G
ro

ss

Pr
op

os
ed

 D
ev

el
op

m
en

t
Pr

oj
ec

t D
at

a

Th
e 

pr
op

os
ed

 p
ro

je
ct

 in
cl

ud
es

 th
e 

de
m

ol
iti

on
 o

f
an

 e
xi

st
in

g 
si

ng
le

 fa
m

ily
 h

om
e,

 a
 s

tu
di

o
ap

ar
tm

en
t, 

a 
de

ta
ch

ed
 g

ar
ag

e,
 a

nd
 tw

o 
sh

ed
s.

Th
e 

si
te

 w
ill 

be
 d

ev
el

op
ed

 w
ith

 s
ev

en
 re

nt
al

un
its

 th
at

 a
re

 tw
o 

an
d 

th
re

e 
be

dr
oo

m
.

Pr
oj

ec
t D

es
cr

ip
tio

n

N
or

th

Pa
rk

in
g

R
eq

ui
re

d
Pr

ov
id

ed
Ve

hi
cl

e
7 

C
ov

er
ed

7 
C

ov
er

ed

Bi
cy

cl
e

7 
C

ov
er

ed
7 

C
ov

er
ed

Pa
rk

in
g 

C
al

cu
la

tio
ns

Al
lo

w
ab

le
 U

ni
ts

Al
lo

w
ab

le
 A

ve
. U

ni
t S

iz
e

To
ta

l A
llo

w
ab

le
 S

F
7

   
  9

45
6,

61
5

Pr
op

os
ed

 P
ro

je
ct

U
ni

ts
U

ni
t S

iz
e 

N
et

 S
F

To
ta

l N
et

 S
F

(2
) 2

 B
R

79
2

   
  1

,5
84

(5
) 3

 B
R

99
7 

   
  4

,9
85

6,
56

3

Av
er

ag
e 

U
ni

t S
iz

e 
= 

93
8 

N
et

 S
F

AU
D

 O
rd

in
an

ce

20
13

 C
al

ifo
rn

ia
 B

ui
ld

in
g 

C
od

e
20

10
 C

al
ifo

rn
ia

 P
lu

m
bi

ng
 C

od
e

20
08

 C
al

ifo
rn

ia
 E

le
ct

ric
al

 C
od

e
20

10
 C

al
ifo

rn
ia

 F
ire

 C
od

e
20

13
 C

al
ifo

rn
ia

 E
ne

rg
y 

C
od

e
20

10
 C

al
ifo

rn
ia

 A
dm

in
is

tra
tio

n 
C

od
e

20
10

 C
al

ifo
rn

ia
 R

ef
er

en
ce

d 
St

an
da

rd
s 

C
od

e
C

ity
 o

f S
an

ta
 B

ar
ba

ra
 M

un
ic

ip
al

 C
od

e

Ap
pl

ic
ab

le
 C

od
es

Pr
iv

at
e 

O
pe

n 
Sp

ac
e

U
ni

t 1
, S

ec
on

d 
Le

ve
l, 

Pr
iv

at
e

86
 S

F
U

ni
t 2

, S
ec

on
d 

Le
ve

l, 
Pr

iv
at

e
99

 S
F

U
ni

t 3
, S

ec
on

d 
Le

ve
l, 

Pr
iv

at
e

99
 S

F
U

ni
t 4

, S
ec

on
d 

Le
ve

l, 
Pr

iv
at

e
99

 S
F

U
ni

t 5
, S

ec
on

d 
Le

ve
l, 

Pr
iv

at
e

99
 S

F
U

ni
t 6

, S
ec

on
d 

Le
ve

l, 
Pr

iv
at

e
99

 S
F

U
ni

t 7
, S

ec
on

d 
Le

ve
l, 

Pr
iv

at
e

86
 S

F

C
om

m
on

 O
pe

n 
Sp

ac
e 

(1
5%

 N
et

 L
ot

 A
re

a)
1,

89
8 

SF
2,

26
2 

SF

R
eq

ui
re

d 
C

om
m

on
 A

re
a 

(2
0x

20
) =

 S
ee

 S
ite

 P
la

n

O
pe

n 
Sp

ac
e

Pr
ov

id
ed

(C
om

m
on

 O
ut

do
or

 L
iv

in
g 

Sp
ac

e 
M

et
ho

d)

A1
.0

C
ov

er
 S

he
et

A2
.0

S
ite

 P
la

n
A3

.0
Fl

oo
r P

la
ns

A4
.0

U
ni

t P
la

ns
A5

.0
E

xt
er

io
r E

le
va

tio
ns

L-
1

La
nd

sc
ap

e 
Pl

an

Sh
ee

t I
nd

ex

C
.1

-C
.4

   
 G

ra
di

ng
 a

nd
 D

ra
in

ag
e 

Pl
an

s

ATTACHMENT 2



U
P

U
P

U
P

U
P

U
P

U
P

U
P

D
N

Se
tb

ac
k

12
' -

 2
"

Le
ve

l 1
 S

et
ba

ck
6'

 - 
0"

Castillo Street

Level1+2Setback
6' - 0"

56' - 3"

56' - 3"

22
5'

 - 
0"

Level 3 Setback
10' - 0"

Level 1+2 Setback
6' - 0"

Level 3 Setback
10' - 0"

Le
ve

l 2
+3

 S
et

ba
ck

10
' -

 0
"

23' - 1"

20
' -

 0
"

20' - 0"

20
' x

 2
0'

 R
eq

ui
re

d 
O

pe
n 

Sp
ac

e

Pe
de

st
ria

n 
W

al
k

U
ni

t 1

2 
BR

U
ni

t 2

3 
BR

U
ni

t 3

3 
BR

U
ni

t 4

3 
BR

U
ni

t 5

3 
BR

U
ni

t 6

3 
BR

U
ni

t 7

2 
BR

22' - 2"

20
2'

 - 
10

"

R
es

id
en

ce

R
es

id
en

ce

R
es

id
en

ce

3 
St

or
y

C
on

do
 U

ni
ts

3 
St

or
y

U
ni

ts

3 
St

or
y

C
on

do
U

ni
ts

5'
 - 

10
"

4' - 0" 12' - 8" 5' - 6"

18' - 8"

5' - 0"

19' - 5"

9'
 - 

0"

8' - 0"

10
E.
Fi
gu
er
oa

St
.,
Su
ite

1
Sa
nt
a
Ba

rb
ar
a,
CA

93
10
1

Te
l:
80
5.
96
3.
82
83

Fa
x:
80
5.
96
3.
81
84

w
w
w
.rr
m
de

sig
n.
co
m

A
2.
0

Si
te

Pl
an

18
18

Ca
st
ill
o
St
.A

pa
rt
m
en

ts
5/
26
/2
01
5

18
18

Ca
st
ill
o
St
.

 1
/8

" =
 1

'-0
"

1
Si

te
 P

la
n

N
or

th



U
P

U
P

U
P

U
P

U
P

U
P

U
P

D
N

D
N

D
N

D
N

D
N

D
N

D
N

D
N

U
P

U
P

U
P

U
P

U
P

D
N

D
N

D
N

D
N

D
N

20' - 0 3/4"

20' - 2"

9'
 - 

0"

10
E.
Fi
gu
er
oa

St
.,
Su
ite

1
Sa
nt
a
Ba

rb
ar
a,
CA

93
10
1

Te
l:
80
5.
96
3.
82
83

Fa
x:
80
5.
96
3.
81
84

w
w
w
.rr
m
de

sig
n.
co
m

A
3.
0

Fl
oo

r
Pl
an

s
18
18

Ca
st
ill
o
St
.A

pa
rt
m
en

ts
5/
26
/2
01
5

18
18

Ca
st
ill
o
St
.

 1
/8

" =
 1

'-0
"

1
Le

ve
l 1

 1
/8

" =
 1

'-0
"

2
Le

ve
l 2

 1
/8

" =
 1

'-0
"

3
Le

ve
l 3



W

U
P

D
N

D
N

W

U
PD
NU
P

D
N

20' - 5"

10' - 4"

11
' -

 4
"

11
' -

 8
"

11' - 0"

11
' -

 4
"

22' - 3"

11
' -

 3
"

6' - 0"

20' - 1"

10' - 2"

11
' -

 2
"

11
' -

 1
"

11
' -

 6
"

23' - 3"

11
' -

 5
"

11
' -

 3
"

10' - 5"9' - 1"

11
' -

 2
"

10' - 10"

3' - 4"

3'
 - 

4"
3'

 - 
5"

10
E.
Fi
gu
er
oa

St
.,
Su
ite

1
Sa
nt
a
Ba

rb
ar
a,
CA

93
10
1

Te
l:
80
5.
96
3.
82
83

Fa
x:
80
5.
96
3.
81
84

w
w
w
.rr
m
de

sig
n.
co
m

A
4.
0

U
ni
t
Pl
an

s
18
18

Ca
st
ill
o
St
.A

pa
rt
m
en

ts
5/
26
/2
01
5

18
18

Ca
st
ill
o
St
.

 3
/1

6"
 =

 1
'-0

"
1

2 
BR

 - 
Le

ve
l 1

 3
/1

6"
 =

 1
'-0

"
2

2 
BR

 - 
Le

ve
l 2

 3
/1

6"
 =

 1
'-0

"
3

3 
BR

 - 
Le

ve
l 1

 3
/1

6"
 =

 1
'-0

"
4

3 
BR

 - 
Le

ve
l 2

 3
/1

6"
 =

 1
'-0

"
5

3 
BR

 - 
Le

ve
l 3

N
et

 A
re

a:
 2

36
 S

F

N
et

 A
re

a:
 4

93
 S

F

N
et

 A
re

a:
 2

68
 S

F

N
et

 A
re

a:
 5

15
 S

F

N
et

 A
re

a:
 2

77
 S

F

To
ta

l A
re

a:
 9

97
 S

F
To

ta
l A

re
a:

 7
92

 S
F

G
ro

ss
 A

re
a:

 2
67

 S
F

G
ro

ss
 A

re
a:

 5
33

 S
F

G
ro

ss
 A

re
a:

 5
75

 S
F

To
ta

l A
re

a:
 1

,3
75

 S
F

G
ro

ss
 A

re
a:

 5
61

 S
F

G
ro

ss
 A

re
a:

 5
75

 S
F

To
ta

l A
re

a:
 1

,1
36

 S
F



P L

33' - 0"

1'-4" +/-

28' - 7"

10
E.
Fi
gu
er
oa

St
.,
Su
ite

1
Sa
nt
a
Ba

rb
ar
a,
CA

93
10
1

Te
l:
80
5.
96
3.
82
83

Fa
x:
80
5.
96
3.
81
84

w
w
w
.rr
m
de

sig
n.
co
m

A
5.
0

Ex
te
ri
or

El
ev
at
io
ns

18
18

Ca
st
ill
o
St
.A

pa
rt
m
en

ts
5/
26
/2
01
5

18
18

Ca
st
ill
o
St
.

 1
/8

" =
 1

'-0
"

1
S

tre
et

 E
le

va
tio

n

 1
/8

" =
 1

'-0
"

4
S

ou
th

 E
le

va
tio

n

 1
/8

" =
 1

'-0
"

3
N

or
th

 E
le

va
tio

n

 1
/8

" =
 1

'-0
"

2
E

as
t E

le
va

tio
n



D
R

A
W

N
 :

JO
B

 :

D
A

T
E 

:

SC
A

LE
 :

SH
EE

T 
:

R
EV

IS
IO

N
 :

SH
EE

T 
TI

TL
E 

:

O
F

SH
EE

TS

landscape planning for:

1/
8 

= 
 1

'-
0"

C
.M

. 

 
52

90
 O

ve
rp

as
s 

R
oa

d
Su

ite
 1

15
SA

N
TA

 B
A

R
BA

R
A

C
A

, 9
31

11

Ph
: (

80
5)

 6
96

-6
86

4

C
a.

 L
ic

en
se

 N
o.

 3
11

4

La
nd

sc
ap

e
A

rc
hi

te
ct

 &
A

ss
oc

ia
te

s,
 In

c.

C
M

+
LA +

C
ha

rl
es

 
M

cC
lu

re

si
nc

e 
19

89

L-
1

si
gn

at
ur

e

da
te

A
C

M
L

C
h

ar
le

s
P

.M
cC

lu
re

L
an

d
sc

ap
e

A
rc

h
it

ec
t

   
   

 C
a.

 L
ic

. N
o.

 3
11

4
   

   
   

  
ex

p.
 3

-3
1-

20
17

   
   

   
   

   
  

Sa
nt

a 
B

ar
ba

ra
 

   
   

   
  

 S
in

ce
 1

98
8

 

1818 Castillo Street
Santa Barbara, California

1818 Castillo Street Apartments

 Sc
al

e:
 1

" 
=

 8
' 0

"

w
ha

t c
an

 b
e 

co
nc

ei
ve

d 
 c

an
 b

e 
cr

ea
te

d 

Pr
el

im
in

ar
y 

La
nd

sc
ap

e
Pl

an

A
pr

il 
20

15

1

2 
co

m
m

er
ci

al
 tr

ee
 ti

es
 p

er
 n

ew
 tr

ee

2"
 d

ia
. r

ec
yc

le
d 

pl
as

tic
 s

ta
ke

s
or

 lo
dg

ep
ol

e 
st

ak
es

, s
et

 p
er

pe
nd

uc
ul

ar
to

 p
re

va
ilin

g 
w

in
d

2"
 d

ee
p 

m
ul

ch
,

om
it 

in
 la

w
n 

ar
ea

s

4"
 w

id
e 

w
at

er
 b

as
in

, t
op

 n
ot

 to
 e

xc
ee

d
to

p 
of

 p
la

nt
 c

ro
w

n,
 o

m
it 

in
 la

w
n 

ar
ea

s

fe
rti

liz
er

 ta
bl

et
s 

(3
" b

el
ow

 g
ra

de
)

pl
an

tin
g 

ba
ck

fil
l

se
e 

sp
ec

ifi
ca

tio
ns

6"

6' 4'

2 
tim

es
 ro

ot
ba

ll

N
O

T 
TO

 S
C

AL
E

D
T

YP
IC

A
L 

T
R

E
E

 P
LA

NT
IN

G

2 
tim

e 
ro

ot
ba

ll 
w

id
th

6"
 m

in
.

2 
co

m
m

er
ci

al
 tr

ee
 ti

es
 p

er
 n

ew
 tr

ee

ni
sh

ed
 g

ra
de

am
en

de
d 

ba
ck

ll,
 c

om
pa

ct
 w

ith
 

wa
te

r p
rio

r t
o 

pl
ac

in
g 

sh
ru

b

am
en

de
d 

ba
ck

ll 
se

e 
no

te
s

fe
rt

iliz
er

 ta
bl

et
s 

se
e 

pl
an

tin
g 

no
te

s

pl
an

t c
ro

wn
 to

 b
e 

1" 
ab

ov
e 

su
rr

ou
nd

in
g 

gr
ad

e,
 ty

pi
ca

l a
ll 

pl
an

tin
gs N

O
T 

TO
 S

C
AL

E
E

T
YP

IC
A

L 
SH

R
U

B
 P

LA
NT

IN
G

5-
25

-1
5 

Fr
on

t b
ui

ld
in

g
m

ov
es

 n
or

th
, a

dj
us

t

Le
ge

nd
 o

f P
la

n 
Sy

m
bo

ls

ne
w

 s
tr

ee
t t

re
e

(p
yr

 k
aw

)

1 
ga

l n
an

di
na

 c
om

pa
ct

a
(d

w
ar

f 
he

av
en

ly
 b

am
bo

o)

co
nc

re
te

 p
ic

-n
ic

 b
en

ch
w

ith
 c

ol
or

fu
l m

ar
ke

t 
um

br
el

la

U
P

U
P

U
P

U
P

U
P

U
P

U
P

9'
-0

"

Castillo Street

U
ni

t 1

2 
B

R

U
ni

t 2

3 
B

R

U
ni

t 3

3 
B

R

U
ni

t 4

3 
B

R

U
ni

t 5

3 
B

R

U
ni

t 6

3 
B

R

U
ni

t 7

2 
B

R

R
es

id
en

ce

R
es

id
en

ce

R
es

id
en

ce

3 
S

to
ry

C
on

do
 U

ni
ts

3 
S

to
ry

U
ni

ts

Castillo Street

15
 g

al
 s

te
no

ca
rp

us
 s

in
ua

tu
s

(
re

w
he

el
 tr

ee
)

15
 g

al
 p

ho
tin

ia
 s

er
ru

la
ta

24
" 

bo
x 

ol
iv

e 
(fr

ui
tle

ss
)

(m
ul

ti-
tr

un
k)

15
 g

al
 p

yr
us

 k
aw

ak
am

ii
(e

ve
rg

re
en

 p
ea

r)

15
 g

al
 c

hi
on

an
th

us
 r

et
us

us
(c

hi
ne

se
 fr

in
ge

 tr
ee

) 

15
 g

al
 g

le
di

ts
ia

 tr
ia

nc
an

th
os

 
's

un
bu

rs
t'

5 
ga

l d
ie

te
s 

gr
an

d
or

a 
'v

ar
ie

ga
ta

'
(s

tr
ip

ed
 le

af
ed

 fo
rt

ni
gh

t l
ily

)

5 
ga

l p
yr

os
te

gi
a 

ve
nu

st
a

(
am

e 
vi

ne
)

5 
ga

l r
ap

hi
ol

ep
is

 c
la

ra
(in

di
an

 h
aw

th
or

n)

5 
ga

l m
ah

on
ia

 a
qu

af
ol

iu
m

 'c
om

pa
ct

a'
(d

w
ar

f o
re

go
n 

gr
ap

e)
m

m
m

m
m

m
m

m
m

m
m

ad
ja

ce
nt

 c
itr

us
 

(o
ra

ng
e)

ex
is

tin
g 

m
ex

. f
an

 p
al

m
 in

 p
ar

kw
ay

(R
EM

O
V

E)

m
m

m
m

m
m

m
m

m
m

m
m

m
m

m
m

m
m

1 
ga

l h
em

er
oc

al
lis

 'c
or

te
z 

co
ve

' 
(d

ay
lil

y)

5 
ga

l m
ah

on
ia

 a
qu

af
ol

iu
m

(o
re

go
n 

gr
ap

e)

 5
 g

al
 p

ho
rm

iu
m 

'a
pr

ic
ot

 q
ue

en
'

5 
ga

l c
ot

in
us

 'g
ol

de
n 

sp
ir

it'
(b

ri
gh

t y
el

lo
w

 s
m

ok
e 

tr
ee

)

1 
ga

l r
ap

hi
ol

ep
is

 'b
al

le
ri

na
'

(d
w

ar
f i

nd
ia

n 
ha

w
th

or
n) 

1 
ga

l p
en

ni
se

tu
m

 'o
ri

en
ta

lis
'

(d
w

ar
f f

ou
nt

ai
n 

gr
as

s)

 1
ga

l m
is

ca
nt

hu
s 

si
ne

ns
is

 'a
da

gi
o'

at
s 

@
 6

" 
o.

c.
 d

ym
on

di
a 

m
ar

ga
ra

ta
e

3"
 d

ee
p,

 p
al

m
 s

pr
in

gs
 3

/8
" 

an
gu

la
r 

go
ld

 g
ra

ve
l

15
 g

al
 p

od
oc

ar
pu

s 
he

nk
el

ii

Pr
el

im
in

ar
y 

Pl
an

tin
g 

Le
ge

nd

m

m

m

m

m
m

m
m

m
m

m m mm
m

m

vi
ne

s

gr
ou

nd
co

ve
rs



ATTACHMENT 3









Agenda Item No.  24 
 

File Code No.  670.04 
 

 

 

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 
 

COUNCIL AGENDA REPORT 
 
 

 
AGENDA DATE: July 21, 2015 
 
TO: Mayor and Councilmembers 
 
FROM: Transportation Division, Public Works Department 
 
SUBJECT: Direction To Staff On The 2015 Bicycle Master Plan 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION:   
 
That Council receive a presentation on preliminary bicycle network improvements 
developed from the community engagement process and provide input and direction to 
staff regarding the Draft Bicycle Master Plan completion.  
 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY: 
 
Staff is asking Council to review the community engagement process and to provide 
input and direction regarding the further development of the Bicycle Master Plan (BMP) 
proposed network improvements. The community engagement phase was completed in 
June 2015. The next phase of the process is to develop a BMP that reflects what we 
heard from the community that will improve bicycle safety and which meets the 
technical feasibility of Santa Barbara’s transportation system. Staff is looking for 
direction from Council regarding further analyzing all of the bicycle network 
improvements. Once this direction is received, the consultant will work through the 
summer and fall to complete the draft BMP. The BMP is scheduled for completion prior 
to the end of the 2015 calendar year.  
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
In order to develop the 2015 BMP, Council directed that a community engagement 
process be conducted, asking what the future of bicycling in Santa Barbara should look 
like. The process was designed to include multiple methods of community engagement, 
including an on-line survey, intercept surveys, an interactive website, bilingual community 
outreach, neighborhood summits, and organizational “road shows.” Public participation 
was higher than expected, with 1,440 individuals participating in the survey, 190 
participants during the citywide neighborhood summits, 10 organizations holding road 
shows, and over 400 comments on the interactive on-line mapping tool on the project 
website. The consultant team and the City's Engineering and Transportation staff also 
conducted a bicycle collision analysis using police reports. The various collision types 



Council Agenda Report 
Direction To Staff On The 2015 Bicycle Master Plan  
July 21, 2015 
Page 2 

 

included bicyclists at fault, motorists at fault, dooring, left hook collisions, right hook 
collisions, and collisions involving a bicyclist on the wrong side of the road or travelling on 
the sidewalk. The consultant team identified collision hotspot locations and analyzed 
trends to identify how bicycle infrastructure, enforcement, and education efforts could be 
improved to make bicycling safer in Santa Barbara. 

The community engagement process was held during the months of April and May 
2015, concluding with five neighborhood summits. The results of the process suggest 
that people believe it should be a goal of the City to accommodate more bicyclists for all 
types of trips (1,310 of 1,440 survey respondents). The results also suggest that this 
perspective is shared between all types of road users. For example, 85 percent of survey 
respondents who drive a car as their primary mode of travel support this goal. The bicycle 
network improvements were created with this goal in mind. 
 
After developing initial bicycle network recommendations based on the community 
engagement results and safety analysis, neighborhood summits were held in five 
neighborhoods. The purpose of the summits was to vet the initial findings and 
recommendations with community members near the proposed locations. Each event 
included a presentation that outlined the history of the BMP effort, preliminary 
community engagement findings, safety analysis, and potential bicycle facilities for 
participants to consider. The presentation was followed by participatory activities that 
allowed all summit attendees to ask questions, share knowledge of local transportation 
conditions, and point out where they thought bicycle facilities should be added to 
accommodate more bicycling in Santa Barbara. Overall, approximately 190 participants 
were in attendance. At each neighborhood summit, several bicycle facilities and options 
were discussed and refined with the public.  
 
The Public Outreach and Safety Findings Summary is attached for review (Attachment 
1). At the Council meeting, the consultant who performed the outreach will summarize 
the findings and conclusions of the community input. They will also present suggested 
bike network improvements that were developed based on community input, collision 
data, and feasibility. These project alternatives were vetted with the community at five 
neighborhood summits. Project alternatives were further refined and presented to the 
joint Planning Commission (PC) and Transportation Circulation Committee (TCC) for 
consideration, held on July 9, 2015. Staff reviewed the PC and TCC’s input at the 
meeting.   
 
The following is a summary of the initial recommended bicycle network improvements. 
These potential projects need more investigation and refinement for feasibility, initial 
design, cost estimation, and other impacts. The consultant will also develop an 
implementation strategy and incorporate these projects into the Draft BMP to be 
completed by the end of this calendar year. 



Council Agenda Report 
Direction To Staff On The 2015 Bicycle Master Plan  
July 21, 2015 
Page 3 

 

 
 
A map of the draft network with input from the Transportation/Circulation Committee and 
Planning Commission is attached (Attachment 2).  A complete list of all potential 
projects is organized by neighborhood in the Summary Report. The five key community 
recommended projects are: 
 

• State Street Spine Network: Green bike lanes and cross town connections via 
Micheltorena and Cota (some on-street parking removal required). 

• Coast Connections: Modoc, Las Positas, Cliff Drive Class I multiuse pathways.  

• Uptown Gap Closure: Class III connections along upper State, Bath/Castillo one-
way extension and Pedregosa bike friendly street. 

• Westside Connections: Chino/San Andres one-way system or Chino Bike 
Boulevard., Wentworth and Rancheria connections to Pershing Park/SBCC 
(some on-street parking removal required).  

• Eastside Connections: Laguna/Olive one-way system, shared lanes or Olive Bike 
Boulevard, Alisos and Cacique Bike Boulevards.  

At a special joint meeting of the Transportation Circulation Committee and the Planning 
Commission both voted unanimously to recommend that Council authorize the next 
phase of the BMP to develop and analyze all of the initial network projects.  
 
ATTACHMENTS: 1.  Public Outreach & Safety Findings Summary 
 2.  Draft Network Facilities Map 
 
PREPARED BY: Browning Allen, Transportation Manager/RD/mj 
 
SUBMITTED BY: Rebecca J. Bjork, Public Works Director 
 
APPROVED BY: City Administrator’s Office 
 
 
 



Public outreach & safety Findings

SUMMARY

June 2015

mjackson
Typewritten Text

mjackson
Typewritten Text

mjackson
Typewritten Text

mjackson
Typewritten Text

mjackson
Typewritten Text

mjackson
Typewritten Text

mjackson
Typewritten Text

mjackson
Typewritten Text

mjackson
Typewritten Text

mjackson
Typewritten Text

mjackson
Typewritten Text

mjackson
Typewritten Text
ATTACHMENT 1

mjackson
Typewritten Text







This page is intentionally blank.



INTRODUCTION

CHAPTER 1 



This page is intentionally blank.



INTRODUCTION

INTRODUCTION
The primary focus of the of 2015 Santa Barbara Bicycle Master Plan (SB BMP) is to engage the community; 

involving a high quality media and tech interface, and creating various avenues for community members to 

identify the future of bicycling in the City of Santa Barbara. To engage the community, outreach methods 

were developed and launched that included an online survey, Facebook page, intercept surveys, an 

informational video, roadshows (informational meetings), an interactive mapping tool, and 5 neighborhood 

summits.

Each community-centered touch-point listed above, in addition to a technical analysis of bicycle safety in 

the City, provided quality insight into the future of bicycling in the City of Santa Barbara. This document 

summarizes the results of the outreach efforts that occurred from March - May of 2015. 

The following chapters are included in this summary: 

Chapter 1: Introduction
Introduction to the summary of public outreach to date. 

Chapter 2: Survey Results and Findings
Summary of the online survey results and key takeaways.

Chapter 3: Interactive Mapping Summary
Summary of the interactive mapping tool that was hosted on the project website.

Chapter 4: Safety Summary
Summary of safety findings and collision mapping from 2004-2013 in the City of Santa Barbara.

Chapter 5: Neighborhood Summit Summary
Summary of the 5 Neighborhood Summits held in May, 2015. 

Appendix
Sign-in sheets, activity maps, image gallery, and Neighborhood Summit presentations.

1



This page is intentionally blank.



CHAPTER 2

SURVEY RESULTS
+

FINDINGS



4



SURVEY RESULTS + FINDINGS

SURVEY RESULTS + FINDINGS

Class 1 Bikeway

Class 2 Bikeway

Class 3 Bikeway

Peak hour Bikeway

17 - 23

10 - 16

6 - 9
3 - 5
1 - 2

EXISTING BIKEWAYS NUMBER OF RESPONDENTS

WHAT IS THE NEAREST INTERSECTION TO WHERE YOU LIVE?

1,440 13%Responses BUSINESS OWNERS

17% 18%STUDENTS PARENTS

WHO WERE THE RESPONDENTS?

The Bicycle Master Plan survey has proven helpful in gathering and quantifying community preferences 

regarding the future of bicycling in Santa Barbara. The survey was self-selected, online, and had a high 

rate of participation (1440 responses). While useful and informative, as a result of the online format, it 

is not a random selection of the entire population of Santa Barbara and therefore is not a statistically 

valid representation of the entire community’s opinions. However, the results do show a diversity of 

Santa Barbara road users, businesses, and age groups. Additionally, the survey findings are indicative 

of a strong community desire to enhance existing bicycle facilities and safety for all road users in Santa 

Barbara. 

Geographic diversity of respondents

Diversity of respondents 5



SURVEY RESULTS + FINDINGS

51%
30%
9%
5%
3%
1%
1%

BarelyVery Moderately Riding is not 
for me

I wont ride 
until the city 

does more

9%

25%

3%4%

59%
DO YOU THINK SB IS A SAFE PLACE TO RIDE A BIKE?

WHAT IS YOUR PRIMARY MODE OF TRANSPORTATION?

CAR

BICYCLE

EQUAL CAR/BIKE TRIPS

WALK

TRANSIT

EQUAL WALK/BIKE TRIPS

MOTORCYCLE/MOPED

The majority of respondents (51%) identify using a car as their primary mode of travel in the last 7 days. 

The majority of respondents think Santa Barbara offers a moderate level of safety for those riding a bicycle.

6



SURVEY RESULTS + FINDINGS

Trip distance too 
long

8%
e.g. Narrow 

roads with no 

space

for bikes.

Other

7%

I ride 
Regularly

38%

I prefer driving/
walking

5%

Routes are too 
hilly

6%36%

Too dangerous/
fast moving 

cars

SPEED

65

91%

9%

Yes

No

99%

85%

1%

15%

Yes

Yes

No

No

Drivers

Cyclists

Both drivers 
And cyclists

WHAT MOST PROHIBITS YOU FROM RIDING A
BIKE IN SB?

DO YOU THINK IT SHOULD BE A GOAL TO ACCOMMODATE 
MORE PEOPLE TO RIDE BIKES FOR WORK AND 
RECREATIONAL TRIPS? 

A split of respondents ride a bicycle regularly in the City, while others identify fast moving cars as the primary obstacle to riding 
a bicycle in Santa Barbara.

Of all respondents, 91% think it should be a goal to accommodate more people to ride bikes for work and recreational trips. 
Of those that stated that they used a vehicle as a primary mode of transportation in the last 7 days, 85% voted yes to this 
question. Of those that stated that they used a bicycle as a primary mode of transportation in the last 7 days, 99% voted yes 
to this question.

7



SURVEY RESULTS + FINDINGS

60%

Convenience

Environment

Avoid traffic/parking

Save $$

DON’T RIDE

No car

9%

42%

29%
23%

13%

5%

Exercise

WHY DO YOU RIDE A BIKE?
(RESPONDENTS CHOSE TOP 2 - ANSWERS DON’T EQUAL 100%)

The top three responses to the question, “Why do you ride a bike” were: exercise, convenience, and the environment.

e.g. Properly pave

the bike paths

so that cracks 

don’t develop.

Create new 
facilities

36%

Keep as 
is

6%

Improve existing 
facilities

60%

Close gaps in the 
Network

67%

Other

2%

WHAT ARE YOUR PRIORITIES FOR THE SB BIKE PLAN?
(RESPONDENTS CHOSE TOP 2 - ANSWERS DON’T EQUAL 100%)

The majority of respondents would like to close gaps in the bicycle network and see improvements to existing facilities as a 
result of the SB BMP. 

8



SURVEY RESULTS + FINDINGS

Buffered bike lanes

70%
Protected bike lanes

65%
Colored bike lanes

Bike boulevards

31%
sharrows

12%
Painted bike lanes

35%
None

8%

53%

safety for all road users
extended bike routes

improve existing routes
Education / enforcement

Comfortable walking experience

Enhanced transit service

Keep existing parking

EASE OF DRIVING

71%
67%

58%

27%

24%

24%

15%

12%

 

WHAT TYPES OF BIKE FACILITIES WOULD YOU
LIKE TO SEE MORE OF IN SANTA BARBARA? 
(RESPONDENTS CHOSE TOP 3 - ANSWERS DON’T EQUAL 100%)

LARGEST = MOST POPULAR RESPONSE

LARGEST = MOST POPULAR RESPONSE
WHAT ARE YOUR TRANSPORTATION PRIORITIES FOR SB?
(RESPONDENTS CHOSE TOP 3 - ANSWERS DON’T EQUAL 100%)

A majority of respondents would like to see buffered bike lanes, protected bike lanes, and colored bike lanes in Santa Barbara.

Respondents identified safety for all road users, extended bike routes, and improvement of existing routes as the top 
transportation priorities for Santa Barbara.

9



This page is intentionally blank.



INTERACTIVE MAPPING 
SUMMARY

CHAPTER 2



This page is intentionally blank.



TRANSPORTATION CONDITIONS ACTIVITY SUMMARY

INTERACTIVE MAPPING SUMMARY
The interactive online mapping activity allowed community members to analyze existing bikeways and 

conditions of bicycling throughout the City of Santa Barbara. Participants were also able to propose 

ideas for additional improvements that could be made for cyclists.  On the SB BMP project website, an 

interactive map at the top of the site prompted visitors to geolocate issue areas with regards to cycling 

in Santa Barbara. Participants were able to choose from the list below to identify areas of concern related 

to bicycling. Additionally, participants were able to “like”, discuss, and comment on previously submitted 

comments. 179 participants submitted individual comments, while an additional 200+ participants 

commented on previously submitted responses. 

Of all responses, “gaps in the network” and “bicycle facilites needed” were identified as top areas of 

concern. Responses were mapped throughout the City, and provided key insights into the conditions of 

bicycling in Santa Barbara. Specific detail of findings are reflected in the pages that follow. 

 MAINTAIN ROUTE AS IS

 UNDESIRABLE BIKE ROUTE

 DIFFICULT INTERSECTION

 IMPROVED TRAFFIC FLOW NEEDED

 BIKE PARKING NEEDED

 BIKE FACILITY NEEDED

 GAP IN THE NETWORK

 OTHER

This image depicts the interactive mapping summary that shows individual comments made. Comments, likes, and discussions 
that occurred as a result of these pinpointed responses are reflected in the narrative of the summaries that follow. 

13



TRANSPORTATION CONDITIONS ACTIVITY SUMMARY

Reoccurring Comments / Themes
• State Street: Great bike lanes along State Street.

• Bath Street / Castillo Street Couplet: Great facilities for Uptown/Downtown movements.

• Anapamu Street Overpass/Footbridge: Great 101 crossing.

• Castillo Street (South of Montecito Street): Nice, wide bike lanes. 

• Haley Street: Nice cross-town bike lanes.

• Ortega Park: Nice bike path along Ortega Park on Quarantina Street.

• Shoreline Drive: Great bikeway along Shoreline Drive.

  Legend

Class 1 Bikeway

Class 2 Bikeway

Class 3 Bikeway

Peak hour bikeway

existing bikeways

MAINTAIN ROUTE AS IS

Participants most frequently identified quality existing bike paths in the Downtown, Westside and Mesa neighborhoods.

The following map shows locations where participants identified that they would like to maintain the existing bicycle route.

14



TRANSPORTATION CONDITIONS ACTIVITY SUMMARY

Reoccurring Comments / Themes
• Las Positas Road: Narrow lanes, need for north/south connection.

• Modoc Road: Peak Bike hours create confusion along Modoc Rd. 

• Mission Street: Need for east/west connection across the 101. 

• San Andres Street: Modoc Rd. lanes end before crossing Mission St. -- need for a continued 

north/south connection. Cyclists today using Chino St. instead of San Andres St.

• Overall: Need for an alternative north/south bike route to State Street for bicycle riders.

• Castillo Street: Need for a bike path under the 101, connecting the Mesa to Downtown.

• Cliff Drive: Need connection from Cliff Dr. to Castillo St. (connecting people to SBCC campus).

• Milpas Street: Sharrows on Milpas St. do not work, need enhanced safety for north/south 

connection on the eastside.

• Cabrillo Boulevard: Pedestrians using Class I beach-way create conflicts. Currently undesirable 

route.

  Legend

existing bikeways

Class 1 Bikeway

Class 2 Bikeway

Class 3 Bikeway

Peak hour bikeway

DIFFICULT INTERSECTIONUNDESIRABLE BIKE ROUTE

Participants identified undesirable bike paths on the Westside and Eastside, identifying a need for enhanced safety 
along the routes identified below.

The following map shows locations where participants identified an undesirable bicycle route.

15



TRANSPORTATION CONDITIONS ACTIVITY SUMMARY

Reoccurring Comments / Themes
• Castillo Street & 101-freeway: Difficult crossing.

• Cabrillo Boulevard and Old Coast Hwy: Need for enhanced bike movement along the roundabout.

• State Street & 101-Freeway: Difficult crossing.

• Alamar Avenue & State Street: Difficult crossing.

• Mission Street & De La Vina Street: Difficult crossing.

• Garden Street & 101-on-ramp: Difficult crossing.

• State Street & Cabrillo Boulevard: Difficult crossing.

• Alisos Street & Carpinteria Street: Difficult crossing.

• Los Patos Way & Cabrillo Boulevard: Difficult crossing.

The following map shows locations where participants identified a difficult intersection in Santa Barbara.

Participants identified various difficult intersections; many of which occur at 101-Fwy crossings.

  Legend

Class 1 Bikeway

Class 2 Bikeway

Class 3 Bikeway

Peak hour bikeway

existing bikeways

DIFFICULT INTERSECTIONDIFFICULT INTERSECTION

16



TRANSPORTATION CONDITIONS ACTIVITY SUMMARY

Reoccurring Comments / Themes
• Castillo Street: Although already a bicycle route, cars are moving fast along Castillo St.- potential 

for traffic calming measures.

• Carrillo Street: Need lights to be synced for through traffic.

• Cabrillo Boulevard: Need to have continuous bike path along Cabrillo. 

• State Street: Difficult for through-moving bicyclists given consistent stop lights.

The following map shows locations where participants identified a need for improved traffic flow.

Participants identified a need for improved traffic flow on many streets that currently cross the 101-Fwy.

  Legend

existing bikeways

Class 1 Bikeway

Class 2 Bikeway

Class 3 Bikeway

Peak hour bikeway

DIFFICULT INTERSECTIONIMPROVED TRAFFIC FLOW NEEDED

17



TRANSPORTATION CONDITIONS ACTIVITY SUMMARY

Reoccurring Comments / Themes
• Hendry’s Beach:  Bike parking needed at Hendry’s Beach.

• Cottage Hospital: Need for public bike parking at Cottage Hospital (currently restricted).

• Chapala Street: Need for enhanced bike parking (to deter theft) along Chapala St.

• Cota Street / Santa Barbara Street: Need for bike parking near Farmer’s Market.

• Funk Zone: Need more bike parking within the Funk Zone.

The following map shows locations where participants identified a need for bicycle parking.

Participants identified key locations for bike parking; many of which fall within the Downtown neighborhood.

  Legend

Class 1 Bikeway

Class 2 Bikeway

Class 3 Bikeway

Peak hour bikeway

existing bikeways

DIFFICULT INTERSECTIONBIKE PARKING NEEDED

18



TRANSPORTATION CONDITIONS ACTIVITY SUMMARY

DIFFICULT INTERSECTIONBIKE FACILITY NEEDED

Reoccurring Comments / Themes
• De La Vina Street:  Either need to direct bicyclists off of De La Vina at Constance, or to the Bath 

St. / Castillo St. couplet or provide lanes along De La Vina if possible.

• Chino Street: Consider treatment to Chino St. to pull bikes off of San Andres St. 

• Micheltorena Street: Narrow at the 101 crossing. Need for enhanced facility connecting Downtown 

and the Westside.

• East/west path needed downtown. Potential for heightened facility on Canon Perdido or Carrillo

• North/south path needed adjacent to State Street. Potential for Santa Barbara, Anacapa, Olive, 

or Garden St.

• Cota or Gutierrez Street: Need westbound bike lane to provide a couplet to Haley St.

• Connection to the beach: Need for north/south connection to the beach.

• Cabrillo Boulevard: Need to separate pedestrians and bicyclists. Need for continuous path. 

The following map shows locations where participants identified a need for a bicycle facility (e.g. bike lane, bike route, etc.).

Participants identified many opportunities for a bike facility throughout the City.

  Legend

existing bikeways

Class 1 Bikeway

Class 2 Bikeway

Class 3 Bikeway

Peak hour bikeway

19



TRANSPORTATION CONDITIONS ACTIVITY SUMMARY

DIFFICULT INTERSECTIONGAP IN THE NETWORK

Reoccurring Comments / Themes
• State Street: Gap in the lane near Calle Laureles.

• De La Vina Street: Bike lane ends at Constance Ave - may benefit from better signage 

directing people to existing routes off of De La Vina. 
• Chapala Street: Either extend Chapala St. bike lane or connect Chapala St. over to existing 

bike lanes on Bath and Castillo 

• Bath Street / Castillo Street: Extend Bath St. and Castillo St. bike couplet north of Mission 

Street to the hospital

• Mission Street: Need to have an east/west connection like Mission St. to cross the 101. 

Difficult to ride along Mission St. 

• Haley Street: Gap existing on Haley St. between Castillo St. and Chapala St.

• Garden Street: Gap in the network - need for a north south connector in addition to State St.

• Cabrillo Boulevard and Niños Drive: Either extension of Class I bike path needed or 

appropriate signage for bicyclists as the facility changes.

The following map shows locations where participants identified a gap in the bicycle network.

Participants identified a number of gaps in the bicycle network. Gaps from Uptown to Downtown and Downtown to the 
Westside were frequently discussed by participants.

oownwnwnwnwn aaaa ddndndndnd DDDDDDowowowow ttntntntntowowowownnnn tttotototo tttttthhhehehehe

  Legend

Class 1 Bikeway

Class 2 Bikeway

Class 3 Bikeway

Peak hour bikeway

existing bikeways

20



TRANSPORTATION CONDITIONS ACTIVITY SUMMARY

Reoccurring Comments / Themes
• Citywide: General need for education and enforcement of traffic laws.

• Modoc Road (Uptown): High speeds on Modoc Rd. - potential for reduced speed limits.

• Las Positas Road (Uptown): Narrow bike lane - potential for extended bike path through the 

golf course.

• Intersection of Las Positas Road and Modoc Road: Need for enhanced crossing markers for 

bicyclists. 
• Las Positas Road (heading to the Mesa): Need for heightened buffer from motorists.

• End of Meigs Road/Carrillo Street lanes: Need signage at end of Carrillo St lanes for 

eastbound bicyclists.

• Cabrillo Beachway: Need separated facility to reduce conflicts with pedestrians.

• Old Coast Highway (near traffic circle): Bike lane ends and cyclists must move into gutter or 

into traffic. 

The following map shows locations where participants identified any other concerns related to bicycling in the City.

Many participants discussed the need for education, enforcement, and increased safety throughout the City.tt tttttthhhehehehe CCCCCCitititititityyyy.

  Legend

existing bikeways

Class 1 Bikeway

Class 2 Bikeway

Class 3 Bikeway

Peak hour bikeway

DIFFICULT INTERSECTIONOTHER

21



This page is intentionally blank.



SAFETY 
SUMMARY

CHAPTER 3



24



As safety continued to arise as a key community-identified area of concern throughout the outreach process, the 

project team examined bicycle-involved collisions in the City of Santa Barbara over the period of 2004 – 2013. 

In total, 1,051 bicycle-involved collisions were reported. The data were sourced from the California Highway 

Patrol’s Statewide Integrated Traffic Records System (SWITRS) and processed by the City of Santa Barbara. The 

City provided the data to the project team in the standard SWITRS tabular format. This non-geocoded format 

assigns each collision to a nearby intersection or other reference point and, as necessary, includes an offset 

distance to the exact collision location. 434 collisions occurred at intersections, 197 collisions occurred less 

than 75 feet from an intersection, and the remaining 420 collisions occurred at midblock locations. Geocoding 

midblock collisions to their precise locations, using SWITRS offset distance and direction, was not possible 

within the scope of this project. Therefore, the City and the project team focused on mapping collisions that 

occurred at intersections or less than 75 feet from an intersection. The latter collisions were assigned to their 

nearest intersection since they can be considered to have occurred within the intersection approach area.

9 bicycle collision maps are reflected in the pages that follow:

• All bicycle-involved collisions

• Bicyclist at fault – signalized intersection

• Bicyclist at fault – unsignalized intersection

• Vehicle at fault – signalized intersection

• Vehicle at fault – unsignalized intersection

• Vehicle at fault – dooring (vehicle opened door in path of oncoming cyclist)

• Vehicle at fault – left hook (vehicle made left turn while bicycle proceeded straight in other direction)

• Vehicle at fault – right hook (vehicle made right turn while bicycle proceeded straight in same direction)

• Bicyclist on wrong side of road or traveling on sidewalk

The first map on page 26 shows all bicycle-involved collisions regardless of collision type. For the remaining 

8 maps, the City of Santa Barbara examined collision factors and classified collisions into the categories listed 

above. Each of these maps shows a subset of the mappable collisions and is designed to highlight a particular 

behavior. These maps help identify where specific physical modifications, targeted enforcement, or education 

may be most beneficial.

In reviewing the 10-year bicycle-involved collision history for Santa Barbara, the following themes emerge:

• The majority of bicycle-involved collisions were reported in the greater Downtown Area and on the 

Eastside, which may be explained by generally high bicycle use in these areas

• Of the various collision types, Bicyclist at Fault – Unsignalized Intersection (138 incidents) and Bicyclist 

on Wrong Side of Road or Traveling on Sidewalk (127 Incidents) were the most commonly reported

• Vehicle at Fault – Signalized Intersection (63 incidents) and Vehicle at Fault – Left Hook (64 incidents) 

were the least reported collision types

• Vehicle at Fault – Left Hook, Vehicle at Fault – Right Hook, and Vehicle at Fault – Dooring collisions 

tended to be less clustered. In other words, it was less likely for multiple collisions of these types to 

occur at a single location

The following section summarizes key trends observed on each map.

SAFETY SUMMARY

25



1,051 bicycle-related collisions were reported in the City of Santa Barbara between 2004 and 2013; 631 

occurred at or within 75 feet of an intersection and were mapped. The citywide locations with the highest 

concentrations of collisions are shown in the table below. Each location experienced 6 or more bicycle-

related collisions between 2004 and 2013. Many of these top-collision locations are near freeway ramps 

or along principal routes between freeways and major activity centers (e.g. Downtown or Santa Barbara 

City College [SBCC]).

All Collisions

£ ARR
EL

LA
GA

CHAPALA

CLIFF

SA
N

 R
O

Q
U

E

CABRILLO
M

ISS
IO

N

CO
TA

SO
LA

SH
ORE

LIN
E

ANACAPA

OLD COAST

FOOTHILL

MODOC

STATE

CARRILLO

M
ONTE

CITO

ELISE

LO
S O

LIV
OS

HALE
Y

MILPAS

CACIQ
UE

M
ISSIO

N
 CAN

YO
N

LAS PO
SITAS

ORT
EG

A

SALINAS

FE
LL

O
W

SH
IP

H
O

PE

GARDEN

ISL
AY

QUIN
IEN

TO
SBO

ND

SERENA

CALLE ROSALES

JU
NIPE

RO

TALLANT

NOPAL

SAN REMO

ANAPA
M

U GRAY

LO
S ALAM

O
S

M
ASO

N

BALDWIN

M
ONTE

CITOM
IC

HEL
TO

RE
NA

STATE

C

OO

LALALALANTTA TTTTALANAANT

OSOOSALESALSOSSALES SSEES

M
ISSISSS

M

OS

NNN
YO

N
YO

NN
YOO

NN
N

Y
N

SALAAASAOO

RTOR
EG

LE
YYEYYEY

ONTE
C

ONTE
C

ENENE
NIENNIENIENIE

LPAPALPL

CAC

OLAOLAOLA

MM

ANNNANNACAC
NANNAN

APAPAPA
ACAPAPA

APA
ACA

A

DDDDDDDD

INUI
QUIN

I

QUININUII

LALALALA

ALDWDWL W
ALDLDBABABAA

ERENANA
ERE
ERENA
RENANA
EN

RENA
RENA

APA
APA
APA
APALA
APAALA

AALALAL
AL

ARR
EL

L

ARRR
EL

L
M

IC
H

M
I

HEL
TL

H

NONNONONNO

M

CARRIRIRR
CAAPA

M
U

PA
MAM

UUUU

APA

RO
Q

U
ORO

Q
OO

QQQ

SSE

JU
NUNI

JUJJUJUJJU

ELISE

OLIVL VO
OLIV

O
OLIVLLIV

ORT
EGTERT
EG

RT
EG

RE
NAA

RE
N

M
O

ANANANAA

ECECECTE
CETE
C

NTE
CECECECCTNTE
C

NTE
CECTE
C

TTEETE
M

ASO
M

A
M

A
M

ASO
M

GARD
GAGARD
GAR

GRGRGGR

GAGAA
GG

HHHAHAHALE
Y

BOBO
NDND

LE
YEY

MMMM
ON

M
O

M
O

QUUUQUUUIUUIUUUU
CITOCITOTOTO

QUUQQUQQQUQQUQUQQ

MILP
MIL
MIM

PASASASASAS
PA

CCABRIABBRABRBABABRIRI
PALALALALALALALLLL

ACI
ACI

CAC
CAC
CAA

ONT
ONONTNTNTNTTNTNTNTTTT

MMIL
MIMMIL
MIM

E

ANNA

STA

SASASAS

MM

NANAAANANANANANANAAANANA

FE
L

FE
L

F
ER

OROROOOOOO

E

VOVOVOOS
VOOVOSOSOSOS
VOOS
VOVOVVOOS
VOVOVOSSSS

AAAAAAAA
M

ISSISSISS
M

ISISSISS

CCC
STST

C

MMM

CACACACA
ONNON

NN
CAAAAAN
CAANAANANANNANNAN

UUUU

AP
TE

APAPAPP
TEE

APA
APA

ARRARAAARRA

N
YYOY

TEEETEETETE

AA

RRILL
RR

AA
S

O
S

A
S

AA

LLOLOLOOOLOLOLOLOOOOOOOO

LL
A

LLEL
LALL
A

M
IC

M
IC

M
IC

M
IC

M
I

MMM
IC

M
IC

M
IC

M
IC

M
IC

AGA
AGA
A

IC
HCHCHEHCHE

ICC
EL

TOLT
O

EL
TLELHEL
T

EL
T

EHEE
HOOHOOO

GAGAGAAGAGAGGEG
A

EGG
AGAGA

M
O

MMM
O

MM
O

M
OOO

AA
M

O
MM

O
M

ONONON

ANNNANA
ANNANANNANANANANANA
ANN

M
TOTOOTOO

MMMMMM
CO

T
COO

TATATATAOT
COCOCOCO

A

A
OTATATAOTATAOTAOTAO

OPAPAPAPAPAPALALALAL
OPAPAPAPAPAPAPAPA

GGAGAGGGA

AYAY
RAY
RAYAY
RAY
RAY

GGGGGGGGGAGAG
RDE
RDRD

AAA
RDR

BOO
NDNN

ALBO
N

BOO
NDND

OONONOND
ONNOONOON

HALAALE
HAALALEALE

Y
LEALAALALALAALALLLAAL

MM
ON

MMM
ON

M
O

M
O

MMM

CICCCECECC
ITITCICICICI

TE
C

TE
CECECC
ITITCICCI

ECC
ITCITCICICICI

EC
I

ECECCCCECECCEC

LPALPAPPLPLPLPP
ILPLPAAPAPA

FF

TALA

ISL
ALASL
A

OOO

101

N
Bikeway Type

Class 1

Class 2

Class 3

Peak Hr.

City LimitsCollisions

1 2 3 - 4 5 - 6 7 - 10

*631/1,051

Intersection Neighborhood Number of Collisions 

De la Vina Street & Mission Street Downtown 10 

Carrillo Street & Highway 101 Downtown/Westside 8 

Castillo Street & Montecito Street Waterfront/SBCC 8 

Micheltorena Street & State Street Downtown 8 

Mission Street & Highway 101 Downtown/Westside 8 

Carrillo Street & State Street Downtown 7 

Cabrillo Boulevard & Helena Avenue Waterfront 6 

De la Vina Street & Figueroa Street Downtown 6 

De la Vina Street & Victoria Street Downtown 6 

Source: Statewide Integrated Traffic Records System. 26



78 collisions of this type were reported in the City of Santa Barbara between 2004 and 2013. All occurred 

at intersections and were mapped. The top 5 locations for collisions of this type are shown in the table 

below.

Bicyclist at Fault - Signalized Intersection

ARR
EL

LA
GA

CHAPALA

CLIFF

SA
N

 R
O

Q
U

E

CABRILLO

M
ISS

IO
N

CO
TA

SO
LA

SH
ORE

LIN
E

ANACAPA

OLD COAST

FOOTHILL

MODOC

STATE

CARRILLO

M
ONTE

CITO

ELISE

LO
S O

LIV
OS

HALE
Y

MILPAS

CACIQ
UE

M
ISSIO

N
 CAN

YO
N

LAS PO
SITAS

ORT
EG

A

SALINAS

FE
LL

O
W

SH
IP

H
O

PE

GARDEN
ISL

AY

QUIN
IEN

TO
SBO

ND
SERENA

CALLE ROSALES

JU
NIPE

RO

TALLANT

NOPAL

SAN REMO

ANAPA
M

U GRAY

LO
S ALAM

O
S

M
ASO

N

BALDWIN

M
ONTE

CITOM
IC

HEL
TO

RE
NA

STATE101

*78 collisions of this type

! ! !
City LimitsCollisions

1

!!!
2

!!!
3

!!!
4

Bikeway Type
Class 1

Class 2

Class 3

Peak Hr.

Intersection Neighborhood Number of Collisions 

Alamar Avenue & State Street Upper State Street 4 

De la Vina Street & Mission Street Downtown 4 

Carrillo Street & Chapala Street Downtown 4 

Anacapa Street & Carrillo Street Downtown 4 

Carrillo Street & State Street Downtown 3 

Source: Statewide Integrated Traffic Records System. 

27



138 collisions of this type were reported in the City of Santa Barbara between 2004 and 2013. All occurred 

at intersections and were mapped. The top 5 locations for collisions of this type are shown in the table 

below.

£ ARR
EL

LA
GA

CHAPALA

CLIFF

SA
N

 R
O

Q
U

E

CABRILLO
M

ISS
IO

N

CO
TA

SO
LA

SH
ORE

LIN
E

ANACAPA

OLD COAST

FOOTHILL

MODOC

STATE

CARRILLO

M
ONTE

CITO

ELISE

LO
S O

LIV
OS

HALE
Y

MILPAS

CACIQ
UE

M
ISSIO

N
 CAN

YO
N

LAS PO
SITAS

ORT
EG

A

SALINAS

FE
LL

O
W

SH
IP

H
O

PE

GARDEN

ISL
AY

QUIN
IEN

TO
SBO

ND

SERENA

CALLE ROSALES

JU
NIPE

RO

TALLANT

NOPAL

SAN REMO

ANAPA
M

U GRAY

LO
S ALAM

O
S

M
ASO

N

BALDWIN

M
ONTE

CITOM
IC

HEL
TO

RE
NA

STATE101

N
Collisions

1 2 3 4 5 - 6

City Limits

*138 collisions of this type

Bikeway Type
Class 1

Class 2

Class 3

Peak Hr.

Intersection Neighborhood Number of Collisions 

Carrillo Street & Highway 101 Downtown/Westside 6 

De la Vina Street & Figueroa Street Downtown 5 

Las Positas Road & Modoc Road Las Positas/Westside 3 

Bath Street and Carrillo Street Downtown 3 

Canon Perdido Street & 
De la Vina Street 

Downtown 3 

Source: Statewide Integrated Traffic Records System. 

Bicyclist at Fault - Signalized Intersection

28



63 collisions of this type were reported in the City of Santa Barbara between 2004 and 2013. All occurred 

at intersections and were mapped. The top 5 locations for collisions of this type are shown in the table 

below.

£ ARR
EL

LA
GA

CHAPALA

CLIFF

SA
N

 R
O

Q
U

E

CABRILLO

M
ISS

IO
N

CO
TA

SO
LA

SH
ORE

LIN
E

ANACAPA

OLD COAST

FOOTHILL

MODOC

STATE

CARRILLO

M
ONTE

CITO

ELISE

LO
S O

LIV
OS

HALE
Y

MILPAS

CACIQ
UE

M
ISSIO

N
 CAN

YO
N

LAS PO
SITAS

ORT
EG

A

SALINAS

FE
LL

O
W

SH
IP

H
O

PE

GARDEN

ISL
AY

QUIN
IEN

TO
SBO

ND
SERENA

CALLE ROSALES

JU
NIPE

RO

TALLANT

NOPAL

SAN REMO

ANAPA
M

U GRAY

LO
S ALAM

O
S

M
ASO

N

BALDWIN

M
ONTE

CITOM
IC

HEL
TO

RE
NA

STATE101

N

*63 collisions of this type

Bikeway Type
Class 1

Class 2

Class 3

Peak Hr.

City LimitsCollisions

1 2 3 4 5

Intersection Neighborhood Number of Collisions 

Mission Street & Highway 101 Downtown/Westside 5 

Micheltorena Street & State Street Downtown 4 

Cabrillo Boulevard & State Street Waterfront 4 

De la Vina Street & Mission Street Downtown 3 

Hope Avenue & State Street San Roque 2 

Source: Statewide Integrated Traffic Records System. 

Vehicle at Fault - Signalized Intersection

29



£££££££££££££ ARR
EL

LA
GA

CHAPALA

CLIFF

SA
N

 R
O

Q
U

E

CABRILLO

M
ISS

IO
N

CO
TA

SO
LA

SH
ORE

LIN
E

ANACAPA

OLD COAST

FOOTHILL

MODOC

STATE

CARRILLO

M
ONTE

CITO

ELISE

LO
S O

LIV
OS

HALE
Y

MILPAS

CACIQ
UE

M
ISSIO

N
 CAN

YO
N

LAS PO
SITAS

ORT
EG

A

SALINAS

FE
LL

O
W

SH
IP

H
O

PE

GARDEN

ISL
AY

QUIN
IEN

TO
SBO

ND

SERENA

CALLE ROSALES

JU
NIPE

RO

TALLANT

NOPAL

SAN REMO

ANAPA
M

U GRAY

LO
S ALAM

O
S

M
ASO

N

BALDWIN

M
ONTE

CITOM
IC

HEL
TO

RE
NA

STATE101

N
City LimitsCollisions

*125 collisions of this type

Bikeway Type
Class 1

Class 2

Class 3

Peak Hr.

1 2 3 4 - 5

125 collisions of this type were reported in the City of Santa Barbara between 2004 and 2013. All occurred 

at intersections and were mapped. The top 5 locations for collisions of this type are shown in the table 

below.

Intersection Neighborhood Number of Collisions 

Modoc Road & Portesuello Avenue Las Positas 5 

De la Vina Street & Victoria Street Downtown 5 

Modoc Road & Palermo Drive Las Positas 3 

Castillo Street & Micheltorena Street Downtown 3 

Cabrillo Boulevard & Helena Avenue Waterfront 3 

Source: Statewide Integrated Traffic Records System. 

Vehicle at Fault - Unsignalized Intersection

30



£ ARR
EL

LA
GA

CHAPALA

CLIFF

SA
N

 R
O

Q
U

E

CABRILLO

M
ISS

IO
N

CO
TA

SO
LA

SH
ORE

LIN
E

ANACAPA

OLD COAST

FOOTHILL

MODOC

STATE

CARRILLO

M
ONTE

CITO

ELISE

LO
S O

LIV
OS

HALE
Y

MILPAS

CACIQ
UE

M
ISSIO

N
 CAN

YO
N

LAS PO
SITAS

ORT
EG

A

SALINAS

FE
LL

O
W

SH
IP

H
O

PE

GARDEN

ISL
AY

QUIN
IEN

TO
SBO

ND
SERENA

CALLE ROSALES

JU
NIPE

RO

TALLANT

NOPAL

SAN REMO

ANAPA
M

U GRAY

LO
S ALAM

O
S

M
ASO

N

BALDWIN

M
ONTE

CITOM
IC

HEL
TO

RE
NA

STATE

ANANANA
ANA QUI

QUII
QUI
QQANA

AYAY
RAY
RAYAY
RAY
RAY

MM ONNONON

101

VEHICLE AT FAULT – DOORING (2004 - 2013)
Figure X

N
City Limits

*29/74 collisions

Collisions

1 2

Bikeway Type
Class 1

Class 2

Class 3

Peak Hr.
Total collisions

Mapped collisions
(midblock locations
not shown)

74 collisions of this type were reported in the City of Santa Barbara between 2004 and 2013. 29 occurred 

at or within 75 feet of an intersection and were mapped. The top 5 locations for collisions of this type 

are shown in the table below.

Intersection Neighborhood Number of Collisions 

De la Guerra Street & State Street Downtown 3 

Figueroa Street & State Street Downtown 2 

Anacapa Street & 
Canon Perdido Street 

Downtown 2 

Allaire Street & Quinientos Street Eastside 1 

Anacapa Street & Sola Street Downtown 1 

Source: Statewide Integrated Traffic Records System. 

Vehicle at Fault - Dooring

74 collisions of this type were reported in the City of Santa Barbara between 2004 and 2013. 29 occurred 

at or within 75 feet of an intersection and were mapped. The top 5 locations for collisions of this type 

are shown in the table below.

31



££££ ARR
EL

LA
GA

CHAPALA

CLIFF

SA
N

 R
O

Q
U

E

CABRILLO

M
ISS

IO
N

CO
TA

SO
LA

SH
ORE

LIN
E

ANACAPA

OLD COAST

FOOTHILL

MODOC

STATE

CARRILLO

M
ONTE

CITO

ELISE

LO
S O

LIV
OS

HALE
Y

MILPAS

CACIQ
UE

M
ISSIO

N
 CAN

YO
N

LAS PO
SITAS

ORT
EG

A

SALINAS

FE
LL

O
W

SH
IP

H
O

PE

GARDEN
ISL

AY

QUIN
IEN

TO
SBO

ND
SERENA

CALLE ROSALES

JU
NIPE

RO

TALLANT

NOPAL

SAN REMO

ANAPA
M

U GRAY

LO
S ALAM

O
S

M
ASO

N

BALDWIN

M
ONTE

CITOM
IC

HEL
TO

RE
NA

STATE101

VEHICLE AT FAULT – LEFT HOOK (2004 - 2013)
Figure X

N
City Limits

*48/64 collisions

Collisions

1 2 3

Bikeway Type
Class 1

Class 2

Class 3

Peak Hr.

Total collisions

Mapped collisions
(midblock locations
not shown)

Intersection Neighborhood Number of Collisions 

Mission Street & Highway 101 Downtown/Westside 3 

Modoc Road & Portesuello Avenue Las Positas 3 

De la Vina Street & 
Micheltorena Street 

Downtown 2 

Haley Street & State Street Downtown 2 

Modoc Road & Palermo Drive Las Positas 2 

Source: Statewide Integrated Traffic Records System. 

Vehicle at Fault - Left Hook

64 collisions of this type were reported in the City of Santa Barbara between 2004 and 2013. 48 occurred 

at or within 75 feet of an intersection and were mapped. The top 5 locations for collisions of this type 

are shown in the table below.

32



£ ARR
EL

LA
GA

CHAPALA

CLIFF

SA
N

 R
O

Q
U

E

CABRILLO
M

ISS
IO

N

CO
TA

SO
LA

SH
ORE

LIN
E

ANACAPA

OLD COAST

FOOTHILL

MODOC

STATE

CARRILLO

M
ONTE

CITO

ELISE

LO
S O

LIV
OS

HALE
Y

MILPAS

CACIQ
UE

M
ISSIO

N
 CAN

YO
N

LAS PO
SITAS

ORT
EG

A

SALINAS

FE
LL

O
W

SH
IP

H
O

PE

GARDEN

ISL
AY

QUIN
IEN

TO
SBO

ND

SERENA

CALLE ROSALES

JU
NIPE

RO

TALLANT

NOPAL

SAN REMO

ANAPA
M

U GRAY

LO
S ALAM

O
S

M
ASO

N

BALDWIN

M
ONTE

CITOM
IC

HEL
TO

RE
NA

STATE101

VEHICLE AT FAULT – RIGHT HOOK (2004 - 2013)
Figure X

N
City Limits

*60/92 collisions

Collisions

1 2 3

Bikeway Type
Class 1

Class 2

Class 3

Peak Hr.

Total collisions

Mapped collisions
(midblock locations
not shown)

Intersection Neighborhood Number of Collisions 

Cabrillo Boulevard & State Street Waterfront 3 

Cabrillo Boulevard & Milpas Street Waterfront 2 

Castillo Street & Micheltorena Street Downtown 2 

Hope Avenue & State Street San Roque 2 

Milpas Street & Montecito Street Eastside 2 

Source: Statewide Integrated Traffic Records System. 

Vehicle at Fault - Right Hook*

92 collisions of this type were reported in the City of Santa Barbara between 2004 and 2013. 60 occurred 

at or within 75 feet of an intersection and were mapped. The top 5 locations for collisions of this type 

are shown in the table below.

33



ARR
EL

LA
GA

CHAPALA

CLIFF

SA
N

 R
O

Q
U

E

CABRILLO
M

ISS
IO

N

CO
TA

SO
LA

SH
ORE

LIN
E

ANACAPA

OLD COAST

FOOTHILL

MODOC

STATE

CARRILLO

M
ONTE

CITO

ELISE

LO
S O

LIV
OS

HALE
Y

MILPAS

CACIQ
UE

M
ISSIO

N
 CAN

YO
N

LAS PO
SITAS

ORT
EG

A

SALINAS

FE
LL

O
W

SH
IP

H
O

PE

GARDEN

ISL
AY

QUIN
IEN

TO
SBO

ND

SERENA

CALLE ROSALES

JU
NIPE

RO

TALLANT

NOPAL

SAN REMO

ANAPA
M

U GRAY

LO
S ALAM

O
S

M
ASO

N

BALDWIN

M
ONTE

CITOM
IC

HEL
TO

RE
NA

STATE101

BICYLIST ON WRONG SIDE OF ROAD OR TRAVELING ON SIDEWALK (2004 - 2013)
Figure X

Bikeway Type
Class 1

Class 2

Class 3

Peak Hr.

City Limits

*73/127 collisions

Collisions

1 2 3 - 4

Total collisions of type

Mapped collisions
(midblock locations
not shown)

Intersection Neighborhood Number of Collisions 

Carrillo Street & Highway 101 Downtown/Westside 4 

Castillo Street & Montecito Street Waterfront/SBCC 4 

Calle Cesar Chavez & Yanonali Street Waterfront 2 

De la Guerra Street & Milpas Street Eastside 2 

Milpas Street & Highway 101 Eastside/Waterfront 2 

Source: Statewide Integrated Traffic Records System. 

Bicyclist on Wrong Side of the Road or Traveling on Sidewalk

127 collisions of this type were reported in the City of Santa Barbara between 2004 and 2013. 73 occurred 

at or within 75 feet of an intersection and were mapped. The top 5 locations for collisions of this type 

are shown in the table below.

34



This page is intentionally blank.

35



This page is intentionally blank.



190 PARTICIPANTS

NEIGHBORHOOD SUMMIT 
SUMMARY

CHAPTER 4



This page is intentionally blank.



Westside Workshop

Eastside Workshop

Uptown Workshop

Downtown Workshop

Mesa Workshop

Summit Attendee Map. Upon arriving at a neighborhood summit, participants were asked to place a sticker near their 
place of residence.

The following chapter summarizes the five neighborhood summits that took place in different parts 

of the City of Santa Barbara (Uptown, Downtown, Mesa, Eastside, and Westside) from May 16th to 

May 20th, 2015. The purpose of the neighborhood summits was to gain direction from the community 

regarding the future of bicycling in Santa Barbara. Each summit covered the same materials, yet focused on 

neighborhood-specific bike routes that were chosen based on preliminary survey findings, project goals, 

roadshows, intercept surveys, and safety analysis, and were then tested and vetted with participants 

at each neighborhood summit. In order to better engage the community, the workshops were highly 

interactive and held in Spanish or English depending on those in attendance (with translators available). 

Of the 2 Spanish language summits, one was held in English.

Each neighborhood summit included a presentation that outlined the history of the project, preliminary 

survey findings, data analysis, and potential bicycle facilities for participants to consider. The presentation 

was followed by participatory activities that allowed attendees to share knowledge of local transportation 

conditions and where they thought bicycle facilities should be added or prioritized. The addition of a 

photo booth also made the summit fun for attendees of all ages. Overall, 190 participants signed into the 

neighborhood summits. The results of participatory activities as well as the surveys are included in this 

summary report.

NEIGHBORHOOD SUMMIT SUMMARY

39



NEW BICYCLE FACILITIES ACTIVITY SUMMARY

1. ALISOS STREET BIKE BOULEVARD
 - Introduction of the Alisos St. bike boulevard should be a priority between Cacique St. and  
   Gutierrez St.
 - North of Cota St. becomes hilly
 - Cota St. between Milpas St. and Alisos St. is currently not preferred for bicycle riding

2. CACIQUE STREET BIKE BOULEVARD
 - Consider extending the bike boulevard to Calle Cesar Chavez to make strong connection   
   for a Downtown connection
 - Cacique St. is under design as a bike boulevard 

3. SALINAS STREET BIKE LANES OR BIKE FRIENDLY STREET
 - Considered to be a challenging improvement
 - Explore additional options east of Soledad St.
 

4. LAGUNA/OLIVE STREET BIKE FRIENDLY STREET
 - Support for green backed sharrows uphill and downhill lanes
 - Alternative idea: create a bike boulevard on Olive St.

5. SALSIPUEDES STREET/CALLE CESAR CHAVEZ BIKE FRIENDLY STREET
 - Short term: Provide route on Quarantina St. under the 101 freeway
 - Long term: Salsipuedes/Calle Cesar Chavez connection 

6. MASON STREET BIKE LANES
 - This might interfere with pick up/drop off for schools 
 - This is already a good route to bike on even for kids, although it is currently not marked
 - Consider green-back sharrows on Mason St.

7. CABRILLO BOULEVARD Class I BIKE PATH
 - General support for this project suggestion; participants agreed for the need to for a   
   connection to Old Coast Hwy.

8. SOLEDAD STREET BIKE friendly street
 - General support for this project suggestion

EASTSIDE SUMMIT

40



NEW BICYCLE FACILITIES ACTIVITY SUMMARY

111111111

444444444

555555555555555

6666

88888888

777
222222222222222

333333333333333

CCCCAAAAAABBBBBRRRRRIIIILLLLLLLLOOOOO BBBBLLLLVVVVDDDDD
CCCCCCCCCCCCAAAAAACCCCCCCCAAAAAAAAAAAABBBBBBAAAAAAAAAAAABBBBBBBBBBRRRRRRRRRRRRBBBBBBBBBBRRRRRRRRRRRRRRIIIIRRRRRRRRLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLOOOLLLLLLOOOOOOOOOO BBBBBBLLLLLVVLLVVVVDDDVVVVDDDDDDDDDD

AAAAAAAAAAAAAANNNNNNNNNNNNNNNN
AAAAAAAAAAAAAPPPP

AAAAAAAAMMMMMMMMM
UUUUUUU

SSSSSSSSSSSSSSTTTT
CCCCCCCCCCCCCAA

NOO
NN

PPEE
RRRRDDDDDDDDDDDDD

IIIDDDDDDDDDDDDD
OOOOOOOOOOOOO

SSSSSSSSSSSSSSSTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTT

QQQQQQQQQQQQQQQQUUUUU
IIIIINNNNNNNNNNNNNN
IIEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEE
NNNNNNNNNNTTT

OOOOOOSSSSSSSSS
SSSSSSSTTTTTTTT

CCCCCCCCCCAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAA
RRRRRRRRRRRRPPPPPPPPP

IIIIINNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNN
TTTTTTTTTTTEEEEEEE

RRRI
AAAAAA
SSSSSSSSSTTTTTT

CCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCAAAAAAAAAAAAAA
CCCCCCCCIIIIIIII
QQQQQQQQQQQQQQQ
UUUUUUUUUUEEE2222

SSSSSSSSSS2

TTTTTTTTTTTT

MMMMMMMMMMMMMM
AAAAAAAAAASSSSSS

OOOOOOOOOOOOOONNNNNNNNNNNN
SSSSSSSTTTTTTTTT

AAAAAAAAAAAAAALLLLLLLLLLLIIIIIIIISSSSSSSSSOOOOOOOOOOOOOOSSSSSSSSSSSSSSS
SSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTT

VVVVVVVVVVOOOOOOOOOOOLLLLLLLUUUUUNNNNNNNNNNTTTTTTTTTTTTAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAARRRRRRRRRRRRRRIIIIOOOOOOOOOO
SSSSSSTTTTTTT

SSSSSSSOOOOOOOOOOLLLLLLLEEEEEEDDDDDDDDDAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAADDDDDDDDDDDDDDDD
SSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTT

SSSSSSSSAAAAAAAALLLLLLLLLLIIIINNNNNNNNN
3333AAAAAAAAAAAA33 SSSSSSSSSSSSSSSS

SSSSSSSSSSSSSSSTTTTTTTTTTTTTTT

CCCAAAALLLLLLLEEE
CCEEEESSSSAARRRR

CCHHHHHAAAAAAAVVVVVVEEEZ
OO

SSSSSAAAAAAALLLLLSSSSSSSSSSSIPPUEEEEEEDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDEEEEEESSSSSSSSSS
SSSSSSSSSSSSSSSTTTTTTTTT

MMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMIIIIIIIIILLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLPPPPPPPPPPAAAAAAAAAASSSSSSSSSS
SSSSSSSSSSSSTTTTTTTTTTTTTT

OOOOOLD COASSTT HHHHHHWWWWWYYYY

HHHHHAAAAAAAA
LLLLLLEEEEEEEEEEE

YYYYYYYYY
SSSSSSSTTTTTTTTTT

YYYYAAAAAAA
NNNNNNNNNOOOOOOOOOO

NNNNNNNNNNAAAAAAAAA
LLLLLLIIII

SSSSSSSTTTTTT

MMMMMMMMMMMOOOOOONNNNNNNNN
TTTTTTTTTTTTEEEEEEEEEE

CCCCCIIIIIIIII
TTTTTTOOOOOOOO

SSSSSSSSSSTTTTTTTT

LLLLLLLLLLOOOOOOOMMMMMMMMAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAA
AAAAAAAAAAAALLLTTTTTTAAAAAAA

DDDDRRRR

SSSSSAAAAAAAAANNNN
PPPPPPPAAAAAAAASSSCCCCCCCCUUUUUUUUUUAAAAAAAAAALLLLLLLL SSSSSSSSTTTTT

WWWWWEEEENNNTTTTTTWWWWWWWOOOOOOOOORRRTTHH
AAVVVVEEEEEEEEEE

CCCCCCCCCCCOOOOOOOO
TTTTTTTTTTAAAAAAAAAA

SSSSSSSSSSSSSSTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTT

AAAAAAAALLLLLLLLAAAAAAAAAAAAAMMMMMMMMMMMEDAA PPPPAAADDDDRRRRREEEE SSSSSSSEEEEEERRRRRRRRRRRRRAAAAAA

SSSSSSSSSSSSTTTTAAAAAAATTTTEEEEEEE
SSSSSSSSSSSSSTTTTTTTT

AAAAAAAAAANNNNNNNNNAAAAAAAAACCCCCCCCCCAAAAAAAPPPPPPAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAA
SSSSSSSSSSSTTTTTTTT

GGGGGGGGAAAAAAAAAAAARRRRRRRDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDEEEEEEENNNNNNNNN
SSSSSSSSSSSSSSTTTTTTTTTTTT

OOOOOOOLLLLLIIIIIVVVVVVVVVVEEEEE
SSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSTTTTTTTTTT

LLLLLLLLLLLAAAAAAAAAAAAAGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUNNNNNNNNAAAAAAAAAAAA
SSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTT

CCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCHHHAAAAAAPPPPPPPAAAAAAALLLLLLLLLAAAAAAAAAA
SSSSSSSSSSTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTT

DDDDDDEEEEEEEEEEE
LLLLLLLLLLLLAAAAAAAAAA

VVVVVVVVIIIIINNNNNNNNNAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAA
SSSSSTT

BBBAAAAAAAAATTTTTTTTTTHHHHHHHHHHH
SSSSSSSTTTTTTTIIIILLLLLLLLLLLOOOOOOOO
SSSSSSSSSSSTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTT

NNNN
AAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAANNDDDDDDDDDDDDDRRRRRRRRREEEEEEEESSSSSS

SSSSSSSSSSSTTTTTTTT
SSSSSSSSTTTTTTTTTT

11111000111
FFFRRREEEEEWWAAYY

CCCCCAAAAA
RRRRRRRR

IILLLLLLL
OOOOOO

SSSSSSSSSSSSSSTTTTTTT

SSSSSS
IIOOOOO

NNNNNN
SSSSSSSTTTT

PPPPPPPPEEEEEEEEEE
DDDDDDDDDDRRRRRRRRR

EEEEEEEEEGGGGG
OOOOOOOOOOOOSSSSSSSSSS

AAAAAAAAAA
SSSSSSSSTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTT

GGGGGGGGGGUUUUUUUU
TTTTTTTTTIIIIII
EEEEEEEEEEERRRRR

RRREE
ZZZZZZZZZZ
SSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSTTTTTTT 1100000011111111 FFFFFFFRRREEEEEEEWWWAAAYY

Dashed lines indicate projects already underway

Suggested Eastside neighborhood projects

41



NEW BICYCLE FACILITIES ACTIVITY SUMMARY

1. CHINO STREET/SAN ANDRES STREET ONE-WAY COUPLET WITH BIKE LANES
 - Improve difficult intersection at Chino St. and Carrillo St.
 - Mixed reviews: some participants suggested focusing improvements on Chino Street   
   rather than San Andres street 
 - City engineering sees other benefits to the one-way couplet system

2. SAN ANDRES STREET/CANON PERDIDO STREET/WENTWORTH AVENUE/
CORONEL PLACE BIKE FRIENDLY STREET & RANCHERIA STREET Bike LANES

 - Good connection to the beach, San Andres St. and Meigs Rd.
 - Need for better connections to the bridges on Wentworth Ave.

3. MICHELTORENA STREET BIKE LANES WEST OF STREET STATE AND BIKE 
FRIENDLY STREET EAST OF State STreet

   - Need for a cross-town east/west route
 - Will require further study given parking needs along Micheltorena St.
 - Would require parking removal between Castillo St. and State St.

4. Eucalyptus/chino/MISSION STREET SHARROWS
 - General support for this project suggestion 
 - Potential to add a spur along Modoc Rd. between Eucalyptus St. and Mission St.

5. SAN PASCUAL STREET/ARRELLAGA STREET/DUTTON AVENUE BIKE 
FRIENDLY STREET

 - Strong support for this project suggestion

6. LOMA ALTA DRIVE GREEN-BACKED SHARROWS
 - While a nice concept, hills on Loma Alta Dr. make this a less desired project 
 - Good project suggestion

7. PERSHING PARK BIKE PATH
 - General support for this project suggestion

WESTSIDE SUMMIT

42



NEW BICYCLE FACILITIES ACTIVITY SUMMARY

4
55555555555

66666666666666666

2

1 3

77777

EEEEEIII
GGGGGGGGG
SSSSSSSS

RRRRRRRDDDDDDDDDD

AAAAAAAAANNNNNNNNNNNN
AAAAAAAAAAAPPP

AAAAAAAMMMMMMMM
UUUUUUU

SSSSSSSSSSSSSSTTTT
CCCCCCCCAA

NOO
NN

PPEE
RRRDDDDDDDDDD

IIIDDDDDDDDD
OOOOOOOOOO

SSSSSSSSSSSSTTTTTTTTTTTTT AAAAAAAAAAAALLLLLLLLLIIIIIISSSSSSSSOOOOOOOOOOOOSSSSSSSSSSSSS
S

VVVVVVVVVVOOOOOOOOOOOLLLLLLLUUU

SSS

CCCA

SSSSSAAAAAAALLLLLSSSSSSSSSSSIPPUEEEDDDDDDDDDDDEEEEESSSSSS
SSSSSSSSSSSTTTTTTTT

MMMMMMMMMMMMMIIIIIIIILLLLLLLLLLLLPPPPPPPPAAAAAAAASSSSSSSS
SSSSSTTTTTTT

HHHHAAAAA
LLLLLEEEEEEE

YYYYYYY
SSSSSTTTTTTT

YYYYAAAAAAA
NNNNNNNNNOOOOOOOOOO

NNNNNNNNNNAAAAAAAAA
LLLLLLIIII

SSSSSSSTTTTTT

MMMMMMMMMMMOOOOONNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNN
TTEEEEEEEEEEEE

CCCCIIII
TTTTTOOOOOO

SSSSSSSSTTTTT

LLLLLLLLLLOOOOOOOMMMMMMMMAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAA
AAAAAAAAAAAALLLTTTTTTAAAAAAA

DDDDRRRR

SSSSSSAAAAAAAAANNNN
PPPPPPPAAAAAAAASSSCCCCCCCCUUUUUUUUUUAAAAAAAAAAALLLLLLLL SSSSSSSSTTTTT

WWWWEENNTTTWWWWWOOOOORRRTTHH
AAAVVVVE

CCCCCCCCCOOOOO
TTTTTTTTTAAAAAAAA

SSSSSSSSTTTTTTTTTTT

LA
SS

MMMMMMMMMMMOOOOOOOOOOOODDDDDDDDOOOOOOOOOOOCCCCC RRRRDDDDDDDDD
WWWWWWWWWWWWW

VVVVVVVVVVAAAAAAAAAA
LLLLLLLLLLEEEEEEE

RRRRRRRRRRRIIIIII
OOOOOOOO

SSSSSTTTTTTTTTT

MMMMMMMMMIIIISSSSSSSSS
SSSSSSSSSSSIIIIII
OOOOOOONNNNNNNN

SSSSSSSSTTTTTT

EEEUUUUU
CCCCCCCCAAAAAAAA

LLLLLLLLLLLLLLYYYYYYYYYYYYYY
PPPPPPPPPPPTTTTTTTTTTTTTT

UUUUUUUUUUUSSSSSSSSSSS
SSSSSSSSSSTTTTTTTTTT

OOO
RRRAAAAA

VVVVVIIII
SSSSSSTTTTT

AAAAAAA
DDDDDDD
RRRRRRR

SSSSSSSSSSSSTTTTAAAAAAATTTTEEEEEEE
SSSSSSSSSSSSSTTTTTTTT

AAAAAAANNNNNNNAAAAAACCCCCCCAAAAAPPPPPPAAAAAAAAAAAAA
SSSSSSTTT

GGGGGGAAAAAAAAARRRRRDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDEEEEENNNNNN
SSSTTTTT

OOOOOOLLLLIIIVVVVVVVEEEE
SSSSSSSSSSTTTTT

LLLLLLLLLLLAAAAAAAAAAAGGGGGGGGGGGGUUUUUUUUUUUUUUNNNNNNAAAAAAAA
SSSSSSSSTTTTTTTT

CCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCHHHAAAAAAPPPPPPPAAAAAAAALLLLLLLLLAAAAAAAAAA
SSSSSSTTTTT

DDDDDDEEEEEEEEEEE
LLLLLLLLLLLLAAAAAAAAAA

VVVVVVVVIIIIINNNNNNNNNNAAAAAA
SSSSSTT

BBBBBBAAAAAAAAATTTTTTTTTTHHHHHHHHHHH
SSSSSSSTTTTTT

CCCCCCCCCAAAAAAAAAASSSSSTTTTTTTIIIIILLLLLLLLLLLOOOOOOOO
SSSSSSSTTTTTTTT

SSSSSSSSSSAAAAAAAAAAANNNNN
AAAAAAAAAAAAAAAANNDDDDDDDDRRRRRREEEEEESSSSS

SSSSSSSSSTTTTTTTTTTTT

CCCCCCCCCCHHHHHHHHHHHIINNNNNNOOOOOOOOOO
SSSSSSTTTTTT

11111000111
FFFRRREEEEEWWAAYY

CCCCCAAAAA
RRRRRR

IILLLLLLL
OOOOOO

SSSSSSSSTTTTTTT

MMMMMM
IISSSSSS
SSSSSSII
OOOOONNNNNN

SSSSSSSTTTT

PPPPPPEEEEEEE
DDDDDDRRRRRR

EEEEEEGGGGG
OOOOOOOSSSSSSS

AAAAAAAA
SSSSSSTTTTTTT

MMMMMMMMMIIIIIIICCCCCCCC
HHHHHHHHHEEEEEEEEEE

LLLLLLTTTTTT
OOOOORRRRR

EEEEENNNNNN
AAAAAAA
SSSSSTTTTTTT

GGGGGGGUUUUUU
TTTTTTTIIIII
EEEEEEEERRRR

RREE
ZZZZZ
SSSSSSSSSSSSTTTTTT

PPPPPPPPUUUUUU
EEEEEEBBBBBB

LLLLLLLLOOOOOOO
SSSSSSSSSSSTTTTTTTTTT

CALLE REAL
AL

AM
AR

ADDITIONAL COMMENTS
- Support for facility on Pedregosa St.
- Milpas St. should remain auto-oriented
- Chapala St. and Carrillo St. should also remain auto-oriented
- Possibility to connect #5 to San Pascual, through alleyways? 

Suggested Westside neighborhood projects

43



NEW BICYCLE FACILITIES ACTIVITY SUMMARY

UPTOWN SUMMIT

1) STATE STREET GREEN BIKE LANES
 - Fix the gap between Constance Ave. and Calle Palo Colorado
 - Improve the intersections from Uptown into Downtown
 - Do not reduce traffic flow
 - Strong support for green lanes

2) bath street/Castillo street one-way couplet with bike lanes
 - Strong support for this project suggestion
 - Provide a bike box for left-turns on Mission St.

3) FOOTHILL route green-backed sharrows
 - Strong support for this project suggestion 
 - Enhance safety for all modes at intersections
 - Continue the route depicted to connect to the Riviera
 - Additional idea: introduce a parallel neighborhood bike route off of State St. in    
    addition to the Foothill route

4) upper state street bicycle/pedestrian connector (long-term)
 - Approved in the 2006 Upper State Street study as consistent with the Circulation Element 
 - Some residents concerned about impacts to parking in their neighborhood

5) modoc road - calle Palo Colorado connector via 101 overpass and bike path
   Along Santa Barbara golf club and Mackenzie park, with spur to tallant 
 - Long-term project
 - This suggestion should be further refined and studied

6) alamar avenue/junipero street greenbacked sharrows                                            
 - De La Vina/Pueblo as an alternate to this project
 - A good solution to alert car drivers
 - City engineer recommends maintaining Alamar Ave. as a car-priority street for access to   
   the 101

7) Bath street / castillo st connect to pueblo street: bike friendly street
 - General support for this project suggestion
 - Additional idea: De La Vina connection from Constance St. to Pueblo St. with connection to   
      Bath St. / Castillo St. via a three-block extension of bike lanes south on De La Vina St.
 

8) calle real Class II bike lanes
 - Calle Real bridge needs to be enhanced with signage 
 - Potential contraflow on Calle Real  

9) State Street, CALLE REAL, 154, and 101 INTERSECTION ENHANCEMENT
 - Strong support for this project suggestion, many concerns regarding safety at this    
    intersection
 - Near term improvement may be done with directional paint

44



NEW BICYCLE FACILITIES ACTIVITY SUMMARY

22222222

44444444444 55555555555555

55555555 666666666666666666
7777777777777777

1111111

33333333333

888888888888

9999999999

SSSS
RRRRRRRRRRRRR
DDDDDDDDD

SSSSSSAAAAAAAAANNNN
PPPPPPPAAAAAAAASSSCCCCCCCCUUUUUUUUUUAAAAAAAAAAALLLLLLLL SSSSSSSSTTTTT

WWWEEN

LA
SS

P
O
SI

TA
S

R
DDDD

LLLLLLLLLLLLAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAA RRRAAAAAAAADDDDDDDDDAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAA

MMMMMMMMMMMOOOOOOOOOOOODDDDDDDDOOOOOOOOOOOCCCCC RRRRDDDDDDDDD

WWWWWWWWWWWWW
VVVVVVVVVVAAAAAAAAAA

LLLLLLLLLLEEEEEEE
RRRRRRRRRRRIIIIII
OOOOOOOO

SSSSSTTTTTTTTTTT

MMMMMMMMMIIIISSSSSSSSSS
SSSSSSSSSSSIIIII
OOOOOONNNNNNNN

SSSSSSSSSTTTTTTTT

EEEUUUUU
CCCCCCCCAAAAAAAA

LLLLLLLLLLLLLLLYYYYYYYYYYYYYY
PPPPPPPPPPPTTTTTTTTTTT

UUUUUUUUUUSSSSSSSSSS
SSSSSSSSSTTTTTTTTT

AAAAAAAALLLLLLLLAAAAAAAAAAAAAMMMMMMMMMMMEDAA PPPPAAADDDDRRRRREEEE

AAAAAAAAAAAAAA
LLLLLLLLLAAAAAAAA

MMMMMMMMM
AAAAAAAAAA
RRRRRRRRR

AAAAAAAAAAAA
VVVVVVVVVV
EEEEEEEE

SSSSSSSSSSSSTTTTAAAAAAATTTTEEEEEEE
SSSSSSSSSSSSSTTTTTTTT

AAAAAAANNNNNNNAAAAAACCCCCCCAAAAAPPPPPAAAAAAAAAAAA
SSSSSTTTT

GGGGGGAAAAAAAAARRRRRDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDEEEEENNNNNN
SSSSSSSTTTTT

OOOOOOLLLLIIIIVVVVVVVEEEE
SSSSSSSSSSTTTT

LLLLLLLLLLLAAAAAAAAAAAGGGGGGGGGGGGUUUUUUUUUUUUUUNNNNNNAAAAAAAA
SSSSSSSSTTTTTTTTTTTTT

CCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCHHHAAAAAAPPPPPPPAAAAAAAALLLLLLLLLAAAAAAAAAA
SSSSSSTTTTTTTTT

DDDDDDEEEEEEEEEEE
LLLLLLLLLLLLAAAAAAAAAA

VVVVVVVVIIIIINNNNNNNNNNAAAAAAAAA
SSSSSTT

BBBBBBAAAAAAAAATTTTTTTTTTHHHHHHHHHHH
SSSSSSSTTTTTT

CCCCCCCCCAAAAAAAAAASSSSSTTTTTTTIIIIILLLLLLLLLLLOOOOOOOO
SSSSSSSTTTTTTTT

SSSSSSSSSSAAAAAAAAAAAANNNNN
AAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAANNDDDDDDDDRRRRRREEEEEESSSSS

SSSSSSSSSSSSTTTTTTTTTT

CCCCCCCCCCCCHHHHHHHHHHHHIINNNNNNNNOOOOOOOOOO
SSSSSSTTTTTT

11111000111
FFFRRREEEEEWWAAYY

11000111 FFFRRREEEEEEWWWAAAYYY

CCCCCAAA
RRRRRR

IILLLLLLL
OOOOOO

STTTTTTT

MMMMMM
IIIIIIS
SSSSSSII
OOOOONNNNN

SSSSSSSTTTT

PPPPPPPEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEE
DRRRRRRR

EEEEEEGGG
OOOOOOOSSSSSSS

AAAAAAAA
SSSSSSTTTTTTTTTTTT

MMMMMIIIIIICCCCCCCCCC
HHHHHHHHHHEEEEEEEEEEEEE

LLLLLLLLTTTTTTTT
OOOOOOORRRRRR

EEEEEEEENNNNNNNNNN
AAAAAAAAAAAAA
SSSSSSSSSTTTTTT

PPPPPPPPPPUUUUUU
EEEEEBBBBBB

LLLLLLLLOOOOOOO
SSSSSSSSSSSTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTT

STATE ST
MADRONA DR

SAN REMO DR
CALLE REAL

CALLE REAL

AL
AM

AR
 A

VE

Suggested Uptown neighborhood projects

Additional Comments
- Problematic intersections along Foothill Route at the 101

45



NEW BICYCLE FACILITIES ACTIVITY SUMMARY

DOWNTOWN SUMMIT
1) STATE STREET GREEN BIKE LANES
 - Strong support for coloring green bike lane
 - Closing the gap is a priority

2) COTA STREET BIKE LANE (WESTBOUND) OR SHARROWS
 - General support for a Cota St. bike lane
 - Possible removal of travel lane or parking lane to add bike lane 
 - Difficult intersections at Garden Street & State Street
 - Gutierrez St. would be a long term parallel connection

3) MICHELTORENA STREET BIKE LANES WEST OF STREET STATE & BIKE FRIENDLY STREET EAST OF STATE STREET
 - Need for a cross-town east/west route
 - Workshop participants indicated that Sola St. may be an alternative option
 - Will require further study given parking needs along Micheltorena St.
 - Suggestion to add bike lanes or sharrows east of State St. 
 - Would require parking removal between Castillo St. and State St.

4) Pedregosa Street Bike boulevard Street & Castillo Street Contraflow Bike Lane
 - Pedregosa St. may be a short term solution prior to Mission Street facility 

5) GARDEN STREET SHARROWS AND BIKE LANES (GUTIERREZ STREET - HALEY STREET)
 - Laguna Street is a preferable route over Garden St However, Garden St. connects to the    
    waterfront

6) ANACAPA STREET BIKE LANE (SOUTHBOUND) 
 - Anacapa St. road diet between Micheltorena St. and Mission St. to connect to the proposed    
     Micheltorena St. cross-town route
 
7) CABRILLO BOULEVARD BIKE LANE (EASTBOUND) Requires Traffic Analysis
 - General support for this project suggestion 
 - Green-backed sharrows between Castillo St. and Milpas St. and a road diet between Milpas St. and Los  
   Patos Wy. would create a strong eastbound connection

8) CANON PERDIDO STREET SHARROWS (Between Castillo St. and santa barbara st.)
 - Important east/west connection; signage and education are critical
 

9) DE LA VINA STREET BIKE LANE (SOUTHBOUND)
 - Some residents considered this a low priority project
 - Lots of cyclists using De La Vina because of speed
 - Would require a road diet between Carrillo St. and Haley St. to create Class II neighborhood      
     connection

10) HALEY STREET BIKE LANE (EASTBOUND between chapala Street and de la vina Street)
 - Some residents considered this a low priority project
 - City engineering and transportation consider this an important gap closure

11) Gutierrez STREET BIKE LANE (WESTBOUND)
 - Long-term project that requires a repaving and restriping of Gutierrez  
 - Short term solution: Cota St. bike lane 

12) MONTECITO STREET/HELENA AVENUE SHARROWS
 - Strong support for this project suggestion

 
46



NEW BICYCLE FACILITIES ACTIVITY SUMMARY

6

444444444444444444

5

8

999999999999

12
10111111010010101100011111110

1111111

1

3

2

777777

MMMMMM
EEEEEEIII

GGGGGGGGG
SSSSSSSS

RRRRRRRDDDDDDDDDD

LLAA
SS

PPPP
OOOOO
SSSSSIIIII

TTTTTAAAAAA
SSS

RRRRRRRRRRRRR
DDDDDDDDD

AAAAAAAAANNNNNNNNNNNN
AAAAAAAAAAAPPP

AAAAAAAMMMMMMMM
UUUUUUU

SSSSSSSSSSSSSSTTTT
CCCCCCCCAA

NOO
NN

PPEE
RRRDDDDDDDDDD

IIIDDDDDDDDD
OOOOOOOOOO

SSSSSSSSSSSSTTTTTTTTTTTTT AAAAAAAAAAAALLLLLLLLLIIIIIISSSSSSSSOOOOOOOOOOOOSSSSSSSSSSSSS
SSSSSSSSTTTTTTTTTTTT

VVVVVVVVVVOOOOOOOOOOOLLLLLLLUUUUUNNNNNNNNNNTTTTTTTTAAAAAAAAARRRRRRRRRRIIIIOOOOOOOO

SSSSSSSOOOOOOOOOOLLLLLLLEEEEEEDDDDDDDDDAAAAAAAAADD

CCCAAAALLLLLLLEEE
CCEEES

SSSSSAAAAAAALLLLLSSSSSSSSSSSIPPUEDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDEEEEESSSSSS
SSSSSSSSSSSTTTTTTTT

MMMMMMMMMMMMMIIIIIIIILLLLLLLLLLLLPPPPPPPPAAAAAAAASSSSSSSSS
SSSSSSSSSTTTTTTTTTT

HHHAAAAA
LLLLLEEEEEEE

YYYYYYY
SSSSSTTTTTTT

YYYYAAAAAAA
NNNNNNNNNOOOOOOOOOO

NNNNNNNNNNAAAAAAAAA
LLLLLLIIII

SSSSSSSTTTTTT

MMMMMMMMMMMOOOOONNNNNNN
TTTTTTTEEEEEEEE

CCCCCIIIIIII
TTTTTOOOOOO

SSSSSSSSTTTTT

LLLLLLLLLLOOOOOOOMMMMMMMMAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAA
AAAAAAAAAAAALLLTTTTTTAAAAAAA

DDDDRRRR

SSSSSSAAAAAAAAANNNN
PPPPPPPAAAAAAAASSSCCCCCCCCUUUUUUUUUUAAAAAAAAAAALLLLLLLL SSSSSSSSTTTTT

WWWWEENNTTTWWWWWOOOOORRRTTHHH
AAAVVVVVEEEEE

CCCCCCCCCOOOOO
TTTTTTTTTAAAAAAAA

SSSSSSSSTTTTTTTTTTT

LA
SSS

P
O
SI

TA
S

R
DDDD

LLLLLLLLLLLLAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAA RRRAAAAAAAADDDDDDDDDAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAA

MMMMMMMMMMMOOOOOOOOOOOODDDDDDDDOOOOOOOOOOOCCCCC RRRRDDDDDDDDDD

WWWWWWWWWWWWW
VVVVVVVVVVAAAAAAAAAA

LLLLLLLLLLEEEEEEE
RRRRRRRRRRRIIIIII
OOOOOOOO

SSSSSTTTTTTTTTTT

MMMMMMMMMIIIISSSSSSSSS
SSSSSSSSSSSIIIII
OOOOOONNNNNNNN

SSSSSSSSSTTTTTTTT

EEEEUUUUU
CCCCCCCCAAAAAAAA

LLLLLLLLLLLLLLLYYYYYYYYYYYYYY
PPPPPPPPPPPTTTTTTTTTTTTTT

UUUUUUUUUUUSSSSSSSSSSS
SSSSSSSSSSTTTTTTTTTT

FFFFFLLLLLLLL
OOOOOOOO
RRRAAAAA

VVVVVIIII
SSSSSSTTTTT

AAAAAAA
DDDDDDD
RRRRRRR

AAAAAAAALLLLLLLLAAAAAAAAAAAAAMMMMMMMMMMMEDAA PPPPAAADDDDRRRRREEEE SSSSSSSEEEEEERRRRRRRRRRRRRAAAAAA

AAAAAAAAAAAAAA
LLLLLLLLLAAAAAAAA

MMMMMMMM

SSSSSSSSSSSSTTTTAAAAAAATTTTEEEEEEE
SSSSSSSSSSSSTTTTTTTT

AAAAAAAAAAAANNNNNNNAAAAAACCCCCCCAAAAAPPPPPPAAAAAAAAAAAAA
STTTTTT

GGGGGGAAAAAAAAARRRRRDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDEEEEENNNNNN
STTTTTT

OOOOOOLLLLLIIIIVVVVVVVEEEE
SSSSSSSSSSTTTTT

LLLLLLLLLLLAAAAAAAAAAAGGGGGGGGGGGGUUUUUUUUUUUUUUNNNNNNAAAAAAAA
STTTTTTTTTTTTTTT

CCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCHHHAAAAAAPPPPPPPAAAAAAAALLLLLLLLLAAAAAAAAAA
SSSSSSTTTTTTTT

DDDDDDEEEEEEEEEEE
LLLLLLLLLLLLAAAAAAAAAA

VVVVVVVVIIIIINNNNNNNNNNAAAAAA
SSSSSTT

BBBBBBAAAAAAAAATTTTTTTTTTHHHHHHHHHHH
SSSSSSSTTTTTT

CCCCCCCCCAAAAAAAAAASSSSSTTTTTTTIIIIILLLLLLLLLLLOOOOOOOO
SSSSSSSTTTTTTTT

SSSSSSAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAANNNNN
AAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAANNDDDDDDDDRRRRRREEEEEESSSSS

SSSSSSSSSSTTTTTTTTTT

CCCCCCCCCCCCHHHHHHHHHHHHIINNNNNNNNOOOOOOOOOO
SSSSSSTTTTTT

11111000111
FFFRRREEEEEWWAAYY

11000111 FFFRRREEEEEEWWWAAAYYY

CCCCCAAAAA
RRRRRR

IILLLLLLL
OOOOOO

STTTTTTT

MMMMMM
IIIIIIS
SSSSSSII
OOOOONNNNNN

SSSSSSSTTTT

PPPPPPEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEE
DRRRRRRR

EEEEEEGGGGG
OOOOOOOSSSSSSS

AAAAAAAA
SSSSSSTTTTTTTTTTTT

MMMMMMMMMIIIIIIIICCCCCCCC
HHHHHHHHHEEEEEEEEEE

LLLLLLTTTTTT
OOOOORRRRR

EEEEENNNNNN
AAAAAAAAA
SSSSSTTT

GGGGGGGUUUUUU
TTTTTTTIIIII
EEEEEEEERRRR

RREE
ZZZZZ
SSSSSSSSSSSSTTTTTT

PPPPPPPPPUUUUUU
EEEEEBBBBBB

LLLLLLLLLOOOOOOO
SSSSSSSSSSSTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTT

STATE ST
MADRONA DR

CALLE REAL

AL
AM

AR
 A

VE

Suggested Downtown neighborhood projects

ADDITIONAL COMMENTS
- Think about school connections between Jr. High schools and High Schools 
- All 101 Freeway crossings need to be improved

47



NEW BICYCLE FACILITIES ACTIVITY SUMMARY

MESA SUMMIT

1) CLIFF DRIVE class I BIKE PATH (between Meigs Rd. and Las Positas Rd.)
 - Strong support for this project suggestion
 - Contiguous class II lanes currently being sought by City via separate grant

2) CLIFF DRIVE BIKE LANES (SBCC CLIFF ROAD ENTRANCE - CASTILLO STREET) OR BIKE PATH
   (CLIFF ROAD ENTRANCE - RANCHERIA STREET)
 - Strong support for this project suggestion

3) Cliff Drive Class II bike lanes between Meigs Road and Las Positas Road. with   
   buffered lanes between mesa lane and las positas Road
 - Cliff Drive road diet where needed.

4) SHORELINE DRIVE BIKE PATH GAP CLOSURE
 - Strong support for this project suggestion

5) ARROYO BURRO CREEK/MODOC ROAD TRAIL WITH SPUR TO HENDRY’S BEACH (also  
   referred to as: las positas class I MULTI-USE PATH)
 - Strong support for this project suggestion. 
 - Interest in seeing this project through soon
 - Project design and environmental review underway 

6) LAS POSITAS ROAD BUFFERED class II BIKE LANE (between modoc road and cliff  
    drive)
 - Consider painting this bike lane green
 - Needs street lighting
 - Strong support for this project suggestion

7) MESA LANE/CARLTON WAY/PALISADES DRIVE/ HUDSON DRIVE/OLIVER ROAD/ EL CAMINO       
   DE LA LUZ/ LA MESA PARK BIKE FRIENDLY STREET/PATH
 - Strong support for this project suggestion / possible additional routes, but this route  
    is favored as it touches many residences

8) PERSHING PARK BIKE PATH
 - Strong support for this project suggestion

48



NEW BICYCLE FACILITIES ACTIVITY SUMMARY

1

3

2

4

44444445

5555556

6666666667

777778

MMMMMM
EEEEEEEIII

GGGGGGGGG
SSSSSSSS

RRRRRRRDDDDDDDDDD

LLAAA
SS

PPPP
OOOOO
SSSSSIIII

TTTTAAAAAA
SSSS

RRRRRRRRRRRRR
DDDDDDDDD

CCCCCCCCLLLLLLLLLIIIIIIIIIIIFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFF DDRR

EEEEEEELLLLLLLL CCCCCCCCAAAAAAMMMMMMMMMMMMMIIIIINNNNNNNNNOOOOOOO DDDDDDEEEEE LLLLLAA LLLLUUUUUZZZZZ SSSSSSSSSSSHHHHHHHHHHOOOOOOOOOOOORRRRRRRRRRRREEEEELLLLLIIIIINNNNNNNNN
EEEEEEEEEE DDDDDDDDDDDRRRRRRRRRRR

CCAAAABBBRRRCCCCCCCAAAACCCCAAAAAAAABBBBAAAAAAAABBBBBBBBRRRRRRRRBBBBBBRRRRRRRR

AAAAAAAAANNNNNNNNNNNN
AAAAAAAAAAAPPP

AAAAAAAMMMMMMM
UUUUUU

SSSSSSSSSSSSSSTTTT
CCCCCCCCAA

NNOO
NN

PPEE
RRRDDDDDDDDDD

IIIDDDDDDDDD
OOOOOOOOOO

SSSSSSSSSSSSTTTTTTTTTTTTT AAAAAAAAAAAALLLLLLLLLIIIIISSSSSSSSOOOOOOOOOOOOSSSSSSSSSSSSS
SSSSSSSSTTTTTTTTTTTT

VVVVVVVVVVOOOOOOOOOOOOLLLLLLUUUUUNNNNNNNNNNTTTTTTTTAAAAAAAAARRRRRRRRRRIIIIOOOOOOOOOOO
SSSSSSTTTT

SSSSSSSOOOOOOOOOOLLLLLLLEEEEEEDDDDDDDDDAAAAAAAAADDDDDD
SSSSSSSSSTTTTTTTTTT

CCCAAAALLLLLLLEEE
CCEEEESSSSAARRRR

CCCHHHHHAAAA

SSSSSAAAAAAALLLLLSSSSSSSSSSSIPPUEEEDDDDDDDDDDDEEEEESSSSSS
SSSSSSSSSSSTTTTTTTT

MMMMMMMMMMMMMIIIIIIIILLLLLLLLLLLLLLPPPPPPPPAAAAAAAASSSSSSSS
SSSSSTTTTTTT

HHHHAAAAA
LLLLLEEEEEEE

YYYYYYY
SSSSTTTTTT

YYYYYAAAAAAAA
NNNNNNNNNOOOOOOOOOO

NNNNNNNNNNAAAAAAAAA
LLLLLLIIII

SSSSSSSTTTTTT

MMMMMMMMMMMOOOOONNNNNN
TTTTTTEEEEEE

CCIII
TTTTTOOOOOO

SSSSSSSSTTTTT

LLLLLLLLLLOOOOOOOMMMMMMMMAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAA
AAAAAAAAAAAALLLTTTTAAAAAAA

DDDDRRRR

SSSSSSAAAAAAAAANNNN
PPPPPPPAAAAAAAASSSCCCCCCCCUUUUUUUUUUAAAAAAAAAALLLLLLLL SSSSSSSSTTTTT

WWWEEENNNTTTTWWWWWWOOOOOOORRRTTHH
AAVVVVEEEEE

CCCCCCCCCOOOOO
TTTTTTTTAAAAAAAA

SSSSSSSSTTTTTTTTTTT

LA
SSS

P
O
SI

TA
S

R
DDD

LLLLLLLLLLLLAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAA RRRAAAAAAAAADDDDDDDAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAA

MMMMMMMMMMOOOOOOOOOOOODDDDDDDDOOOOOOOOOOOCCCCC RRRRRDDDDDDD

WWWWWWWWWWWWW
VVVVVVVVVVAAAAAAAAAA

LLLLLLLLLLEEEEEEEE
RRRRRRRRIIII
OOOOOOOO

SSSSSTTTTTTTT

MMMMMMMMMIIIISSSSSSS
SSSSSSIIII
OOOOOONNNNNNNN

SSSSSSSSTTTTTTT

EEEEUUUUU
CCCCCCCCAAAAAAA

LLLLLLLLYYYYYYYYYY
PPPPPPPTTTTTTTTTT

UUUUUUUUUUSSSSSSSSSS
SSSSSSSSSSTTTTTTTTT

FFFFFFFFFFLLLLLLLL
OOOOOOOO
RRRAAAAA

VVVVVIIII
SSSSSTTTTT

AAAAAAA
DDDDDDD
RRRRRRR

AAAAAAAALLLLLLLLAAAAAAAAAAAAMMMMMMMMMMMEDAA PPPPAAADDDDRRRRREEEE SSSSSSSEEEEEERRRRRRRRRRRRRAAAAAAA

AAAAAAAAAAAAAA
LLLLLLLLLAAAAAAAA

MMMMMMMMM
AAAAAAAAAA
RRRRRRRRR

AAAAAAAAAAA
VVVVVVVVVVV
EEEEEEEE

SSSSSSSSSSSSTTTTAAAAAATTTTEEEEEEE
SSSSSSSSSSSSSTTTTTTTT

AAAAAAANNNNNNNAAAAAACCCCCCCAAAAAPPPPPAAAAAAAAAAAA
SSSSSTTTT

GGGGGGAAAAAAAAARRRRRDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDEEEEENNNNNN
SSSSSSSTTTTT

OOOOOOLLLLLIIIIVVVVVVEEEE
SSSSSSSSSTTT

LLLLLLLLLLLAAAAAAAAAAAGGGGGGGGGGGGUUUUUUUUUUUUUNNNNNNAAAAAAAA
SSSSSSSTTTTTTTTTTTT

CCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCHHHAAAAAPPPPPPAAAAAAAAALLLLLLLLLAAAAAAAAAA
SSSSSSTTTTTTTTT

DDDDDDEEEEEEEEEEE
LLLLLLLLLLLLAAAAAAAAAA

VVVVVVVVIIIIINNNNNNNNNNAAAAAAAAA
SSSSSTT

BBBBBBAAAAAAAAATTTTTTTTTHHHHHHHHH
SSSSSSSTTTTTT

CCCCCCCCAAAAAAAAAASSSSSTTTTTTTIIIIILLLLLLLLLLLOOOOOOOO
SSSSSSSTTTTTTTT

SSSSSSSSSSAAAAAAAAAAAANNNNN
AAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAANNDDDDDDDDRRRRRREEEEEESSSSS

SSSSSSSSTTTTT

CCCCCCCCCCCCHHHHHHHHHHHHIINNNNNNNNOOOOOOOOOO
SSSSSSTTTTTT

11111000111
FFFRREEEEEWWAAYY

1100011 FFFRRREEEEEEWWWAAAYYY

CCCCCAAA
RRRRRR

IILLLLLLL
OOOOOO

SSSSSSSSTTTTTTT

MMMMMMMMMM
IISSSSSS
SSSSSSSII
OOOOONNNNN

SSSSSSSTTTT

PPPPPPEEEEEEE
DDDDDDRRRRRR

EEEEEEGGG
OOOOOOSSSSSSS

AAAAAAAA
SSSSSSTTTTTTT

MMMMMMMMMIIIIIIICCCCCCCCCCC
HHHHHHHHHHEEEEEEEEEEEEE

LLLLLLLLTTTTTTTT
OOOOOOORRRRRRR

EEEEEEEENNNNNNNNNN
AAAAAAAA
SSSSSSSSTTTT

GGGGGGGUUUUUU
TTTTTTTIIIIII
EEEEEEEERRRR

RREE
ZZZZZ
SSSSSSSSSSSSTTTTTT

PPPPPPPPUUUUUU
EEEEBBBBBB

LLLLLLLLLLLLOOOOOOO
SSSSSSSSSSSTTTTTTTTTT

STATE ST
MADRONA DR

SAN REMO DR
CALLE REAL

CALLE REAL

A
LA

M
AR

 A
VE

Suggested Mesa neighborhood projects
Dashed lines indicate projects already underway

Additional Comments
- Need for Flora Vista Dr. connection
- Additional perimeter route in addition to the recommended 
  #6 Bike Friendly Route 
- Crossing at Castillo St. at Cliff Dr. is difficult  

49



NEW BICYCLE FACILITIES ACTIVITY SUMMARY50



NEW BICYCLE FACILITIES ACTIVITY SUMMARY 51



M
EI

G
S 

RD

LA
S 

P
O
SI

TA
S 

R
D

CLIFF DR

EL CAMINO DE LA LUZ SHORELIN
E D

R

CABRILLO BLVD
CABRILLO BLVD

AN
AP

AM
U 

ST
CA

NO
N 

PE
RD

ID
O 

ST

QU
IN
IE
NT

OS
 S
T 

CA
RP

IN
TE

RI
A 
ST

 

CA
CI
QU

E 
ST

 

M
AS

ON
ST

ALISOS ST 

VOLUNTARIO
ST

SOLEDAD
ST

SALINAS ST

CALLE CESAR CHAVEZ

SALSIPUEDES ST

MILPAS ST

OLD COAST HWY

HA
LE

Y 
ST

YA
NO

NA
LI 

ST

MON
TE

CI
TO

ST

LOMA ALTA DR

SAN PASCUAL ST
WENTWORTH

AVE

CO
TA

 S
T

LA
S 

P
O
SI

TA
S 

R
D

LA RADA

MODOC RD

W
 V
AL

ER
IO

 S
TMIS

SI
ON

 S
T

EU
CA

LY
PT

US
 S

T 

FL
O
RA

 V
IS

TA
 D

R

ALAMEDA PADRE SERRA

FOOTHILL RD

A
LA

M
A
R
 A

V
E

STATE ST

ANACAPA
ST

SANTA BARBARA
ST

GARDEN
ST

OLIVE
ST

LAGUNA
ST

CHAPALA
ST

DE
LA

VINA
ST

BATH
ST

CASTILLO
ST

SAN ANDRES
ST

CHINO
ST

101
FREEWAY

101 FREEWAY

CA
RR

ILL
O 

ST

M
IS
SI
ON

 S
T

PE
DR

EG
OS

A 
ST

MIC
HE

LT
OR

EN
A 
ST

GU
TI
ER

RE
Z
ST

PU
EB

LO
 S
T

STATE ST
MADRONA DR

SAN REMO DR
CALLE REAL

CALLE REAL

AL
AM

AR
 A

VE

101 FREEWAY

DRAFT COMMUNITY PROPOSED BIKE NETWORK

Backbone Facility

Network Facility

Network Facility (In Progress)

Supplementary Facility

School

existing bikewaysProposed bikeways

Class 1 Bikeway

Class 2 Bikeway

Class 3 Bikeway

Peak Hour Bikeway

ATTACHMENT 2


	1.DOC
	2.PDF
	3.DOC
	4.DOC
	5.DOC
	6.DOC
	7.DOC
	8.DOC
	9.PDF
	10.DOC
	11.DOC
	12.DOC
	13.DOC
	14.DOC
	15.DOC
	16.DOC
	17.DOC
	18.DOC
	19.DOC
	20.DOC
	21.DOC
	22.DOC
	23.DOC
	24.DOC
	25.DOC
	26.PDF
	27.DOC
	28.PDF
	29.PDF
	30.PDF
	31.DOC
	32.PDF
	33.PDF
	34.PDF
	35.DOC
	36.PDF
	37.PDF
	Mayor
	Bendy White
	JULY 21, 2015
	AGENDA
	ORDER OF BUSINESS



